
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Place Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 10th April, 2017
Time: 6.30 pm

Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite
Contact: Tim Row - Principal Committee Officer 

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk 

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Questions from Members of the Public 

4  Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday 23rd January 2017

**** PART I ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED DIRECT FROM CABINET - 
Tuesday 14th March 2017 

5  Monthly Performance Report (MPR)
Members are reminded to bring with them the most recent MPR for period 
ending February 2017 which was circulated recently.  Comments / questions 
should be made at the appropriate Scrutiny Committee relevant to the subject 
matter.

6  North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG) 
Minute 863 (Cabinet Book 2, Agenda Item No. 16 refers)
Called-in by Councillors Ware-Lane and Gilbert.

**** PART I ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED DIRECT FROM CABINET - 
Tuesday 28th March 2017

7  Better Queensway: Process to appoint a preferred project partner
Minute 892 (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 5)
Referred Direct by Cabinet

8  Revocation of Pier Cycling Byelaw 
Minute 893 (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 6)
Referred direct by Cabinet

**** ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED DIRECT FROM CABINET COMMITTEE - 
Thursday 9th March 2017

None

PRE-CABINET SCRUTINY ITEMS
None

Public Document Pack



ITEMS CALLED-IN FROM THE FORWARD PLAN
None

**** OTHER SCRUTINY MATTERS 

9  In-depth Scrutiny Project - 'To investigate the case for additional 
enforcement resources for Southend' 
Report of Chief Executive

To: The Chairman & Members of Place Scrutiny Committee:

Councillor K Robinson (Chairman),
Councillors P Wexham (Vice-Chairman), M Assenheim, A Bright, D Burzotta, T Callaghan,  
M Davidson, F Evans, N Folkard, J Garston, S Habermel, D Jarvis, D Kenyon, H McDonald,  
D McGlone, M Terry and C Willis



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Place Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 23rd January, 2017
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite

Present: Councillor K Robinson (Chairman)
Councillors M Assenheim, A Bright, D Burzotta, T Callaghan, 
M Davidson, F Evans, N Folkard, J Garston, D Jarvis, R Hadley*, 
H McDonald, D McGlone, C Mulroney*, M Terry, C Willis and 
R Woodley*
*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance: Councillors J Lamb, T Cox, M Flewitt and A Holland (Executive 
Councillors)
Councillors I Gilbert, J Moyies and N Ward
R Tinlin, A Lewis, J K Williams, E Cooney, S Dolling, P Geraghty, 
D Patel, I Ambrose, C Hindle-Terry, T MacGregor and T Row

Start/End Time: 6.30 pm - 10.05 pm

651  Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Habermel (Substitute: 
Councillor Hadley), Kenyon (Substitute: Councillor Woodley) and Wexham 
(Substitute: Councillor Mulroney).

652  Declarations of Interest 

The following interests were declared at the meeting:

(a)  Councillors Cox, Flewitt, Holland and Lamb (Executive Councillors) – 
interests in all the referred items; attended pursuant to the dispensation agreed at 
Council on 19th July 2012, under S.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

(b)  Councillor Assenheim – Agenda Item Nos. 5 (Corporate Performance 
Management 2017/18), 6 (Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2020/21), 7 (Draft 
Fees & Charges 2017/18), 8 (Draft General Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18), 9 
(Monthly Performance Report) and 10 (Notice of Motion - Affordable Housing and 
Viability Issues) – Non-pecuniary interest: Sister is a tenant of South Essex 
Homes;

(c)  Councillor Assenheim – Agenda Item No. 15 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Tyrone Road and Fermoy Road) – Non-pecuniary interest: Member of 
the Patients Forum of the Doctor’s Surgery in Tyrone Road;

(d)  Councillors Bright, Cox, Folkard, J Garston, Hadley and Jarvis – Agenda Item 
No. 15 – (Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders – Tyrone Road and Fermoy 
Road) – Non-pecuniary interest: Member of Parliament for the Rochford and 
Southend East Constituency lives in Tyrone Road and is known to him;

1

4



(e)  Councillor Bright – Agenda Item No. 23 (Update on Petition Requesting 
Permit Parking Controls (Southend East)) – Non-pecuniary interest: part of the 
area is within his Ward;

(f)  Councillor Burzotta – Agenda Item No. 7 (Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18) and 
13 (Ballot for Business Improvement District (BID) Renewal) – Non-pecuniary 
interest: Family business in the Town Centre;

(g)  Councillors Burzotta and Davidson – Agenda Item Nos. 5 (Corporate 
Performance Management 2017/18), 6 (Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 
2020/21), 7 (Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18), 8 (Draft General Fund Revenue 
Budget 2017/18), 9 (Monthly Performance Report) and 10 (Notice of Motion - 
Affordable Housing and Viability Issues) – Non-pecuniary interest: Non-Executive 
Director on the South Essex Homes Board;

(h)  Councillor Callaghan – Agenda Item Nos. 5 (Corporate Performance 
Management 2017/18), 6 (Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2020/21), 7 (Draft 
Fees & Charges 2017/18), 8 (Draft General Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18), 9 
(Monthly Performance Report) and 10 (Notice of Motion - Affordable Housing and 
Viability Issues) – Non-pecuniary interest: Sister is a tenant of South Essex 
Homes;

(i)  Councillor Callaghan – Agenda Item No. 7 (Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18) – 
Pecuniary interest: Hackney Carriage Driver (matter not discussed);

(j)  Councillor Callaghan – Agenda Item No. 17 (Petition for Action on Excessive 
Speeds, Wells Avenue) – Non-pecuniary interest: Brother Lives in the road;

(k)  Councillor Cox – Agenda Item No. 7 (Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18) – Non-
pecuniary interest: Wife is a blue badge holder;

(l)  Councillor Cox – Agenda Item No. 12 (Development & Expansion of National 
Jazz Archive – Beecroft) – Disqualifying non-pecuniary interest: Person 
mentioned in the report is a work colleague (withdrew);

(m)  Councillor Flewitt – Agenda Item Nos. 5 (Corporate Performance 
Management 2017/18), 6 (Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2020/21), 7 (Draft 
Fees & Charges 2017/18), 8 (Draft General Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18), 9 
(Monthly Performance Report) and 10 (Notice of Motion - Affordable Housing and 
Viability Issues) – Non-pecuniary interest: Friends and family members are 
tenants of South Essex Homes;

(n)  Councillor J Garston – Agenda Item No. 15 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Salisbury Road) – Non-pecuniary interest: Family member lives in the 
street;

(o)  Councillor J Garston – Agenda Item No. 16 (Requests for New or Amended 
Traffic Regulation Orders – Westcliff Parade) – Non-pecuniary interest: Lives 
nearby;

(p)  Councillor J Garston – Agenda Item No. 19 (Petition for One-Way Traffic 
Flow, Westcliff Parade) – Non-pecuniary interest: Lives nearby;

2



(q)  Councillor Hadley – Agenda Item No. 7 (Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18) – 
Non-pecuniary interest: Allotment holder;

(r)  Councillor Holland – Agenda Item Nos. 5 (Corporate Performance 
Management 2017/18), 6 (Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2020/21), 7 (Draft 
Fees & Charges 2017/18), 8 (Draft General Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18), 9 
(Monthly Performance Report) and 10 (Notice of Motion - Affordable Housing and 
Viability Issues) – Non-pecuniary interest: Son works for South Essex Homes;

(s)  Councillor McDonald – Agenda Item No. 23 (Update on Petition Requesting 
Permit Parking Controls (Southend East)) – Non-pecuniary interest: part of the 
area is within her Ward;

(t)  Councillor Mulroney – Agenda Item No. 25 (Petition for Maintenance Works, 
Ashleigh Drive Leigh on Sea) – Non-pecuniary interest: The road is within her 
Ward;

(u)  Councillor Terry – Agenda Item No. 7 (Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18) – 
Non-pecuniary interest: Knows the owner of Mikes Boatyard;

(v)  Councillor Terry – Agenda Item No. 15 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Tyrone Road and Fermoy Road) – Non-pecuniary interest: Residents in 
the streets are known to him;

(w)  Councillor Terry – Agenda Item No. 22 (Petition Requesting Permit Parking 
Controls, Roots Hall Avenue) – Non-pecuniary interest: Season Ticket Holder at 
Southend United FC;

(x)  Councillor Woodley – Agenda Item No. 15 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Tyrone Road and Fermoy Road) – Non-pecuniary interest: Lives in 
Tyrone Road.

653  Questions from Members of the Public 

The Executive Councillor for Enterprise, Tourism and Economic Development 
responded to a written question from Mr Webb.

The Executive Councillor for Traffic, Waste and Cleansing responded to a written 
question from Mr Webb and two written questions from Nr Nelson.

654  Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday 28th November 2016 

Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday 28th November 2016 be 
received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.

655  Corporate Performance Management 2017/18 

The Committee considered Minute 645 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 19th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to all three Scrutiny 
Committees, together with the report of the Chief Executive detailing the 
Council’s corporate approach to performance management for 2017/18.

3



Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1.  That the Corporate Priority Performance Indicators to be monitored via the 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR) for 2017/18, as set out at Appendix 1 to the 
submitted report, be approved.

2.  That the MPR will also include a small basket of indicators (as outlined in 
paragraph 4.3 of the report) relating to areas where the Council does not have 
lead responsibility or direct control.

3.  That the Corporate Priority Actions, to support implementation of the Council’s 
2017/18 Corporate Priorities, as set out at Appendix 2 to the report, be 
approved.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor:- Lamb

656  Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2020/21 

The Committee considered Minute 648 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 19th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to all three Scrutiny Committees, 
together the report of the Corporate Management Team setting out a draft 
programme of capital projects for the period 2017/18 to 2020/21.

In response to question regarding the amended capital programme 2016/17 to 
2020/21 relating to the Seaways Development Enabling Works, the Chief 
Executive confirmed that he would clarify the position why the current approved 
allocation for this project had been omitted from Appendix 8.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1.  That the current approved Programme for 2017/18 to 2019/20 of £125.4m, as 
set out in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be noted.
 
2.  That the changes to the approved Programme, as set out in Appendix 2 to the 
report, be noted.
 
3.  That the proposed new schemes and additions to the Capital Programme for 
the period 2017/18 to 2020/21 totalling £59.1m of which £52.9m is for the 
General Fund and £6.2m for the Housing Revenue Account, as set out in 
Appendices 6 and 7 to the report, be endorsed.
 
4.  That the proposed schemes subject to external funding approval for the period 
2017/18 to 2020/21 totalling £42.6m as set out in Appendices 2 and 7 to the 
report, be endorsed.
 

4



5.  That it be noted that the proposed new schemes and additions, as set out in 
Appendices 6 and 7 to the report, and other adjustments as set out in Appendix 2 
to the report, will result in a proposed capital programme (excluding schemes 
subject to external funding approval) of £185.8m for 2017/18 to 2020/21.
 
6.  That it be noted that of the total programme of £185.8m for the period 2017/18 
to 2020/21, the level of external funding supporting this programme is £58.2m.
 
7.  That it be noted that a final review is being undertaken on the 2016/17 outturn 
and that the results will be included in the report to Cabinet on 14th February 
2017.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget 
following Cabinet on 14th February 2017 is a Council Function.
Executive Councillor:- Lamb

657  Draft Fees & Charges 2017/18 

The Committee considered Minute 649 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 19th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to all three Scrutiny Committees, 
together the report of the Corporate Management Team detailing fees and 
charges for services included in the budget proposals for 2017/18.

Following a discussion regarding the proposed introduction of pay and display 
parking in Eastern Esplanade and Thorpe Esplanade, the Executive Councillor 
for Transport, Waste and Cleansing stated that he would be prepared to consider 
the possibility of excluding of these proposals.

Resolved:-

That, subject to the confirmation of the correct figures for the proposed fees for a 
one day Cat A cricket season ticket every weekday with and without a Council 
pavilion, the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the proposed fees and charges for each Department as set out in the 
submitted report and appendices, be endorsed.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget 
following Cabinet on 14th February 2017 is a Council Function.
Executive Councillor:- Lamb

658  Draft General Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18 

The Committee considered Minute 650 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 19th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to all three Scrutiny Committees, 
together the report of the Corporate Management Team presenting the draft 
revenue budget for 2017/18.

Resolved:-

That, subject to the exclusion of the proposed charge to schools for Bikeability 
level 2 training from the 2017/18 Budget Savings all Council Services (excluding 

5



schools) (see PL20 on page 7 of Appendix 13), the following decisions of Cabinet 
be noted:

“1. That the 2017/18 draft revenue budget and any required commencement of 
consultation, statutory or otherwise, be approved.
 
2. That it be noted that the 2017/18 draft revenue budget has been prepared on 
the basis of a Council Tax increase of 4.99%, being 1.99% for general use and 
3% for Adult Social Care.
 
3. That it be noted that the 2017/18 draft revenue budget has been prepared 
using the provisional local government finance settlement and that the outcome 
from the final settlement will need to be factored into the final budget proposals 
for Budget Cabinet and Budget Council.
 
4. That the 2017/18 draft revenue budget, as endorsed, be referred to all three 
Scrutiny Committees, Business sector and Voluntary sector to inform Cabinet, 
which will then recommend the Budget and Council Tax to Council.
 
5. That the schools position and the recommendations to the Schools Forum on 
18th January 2017, as set out in Appendix 14 and 14(i) to the submitted report, 
be noted and referred to People Scrutiny Committee and then to Cabinet and 
Council.
 
6. That the direction of travel for 2018/19 and beyond, as set out in section 15 of 
the report, be endorsed.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget 
following Cabinet on 14th February 2017 is a Council Function.
Executive Councillor:- Lamb

659  Monthly Performance Report 

The Committee considered the Monthly Performance Report (MPR) covering the 
period to end November 2016, which had been circulated recently.
 
Resolved:-
 
That the report be noted.
 
Note:- This is an Executive Function.
Executive Councillor:- As appropriate to the item.

660  Notice of Motion - Affordable Housing and Viability Issues 

The Committee considered Minute 595 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny by Cabinet, concerning 
the Notice of Motion in relation to the provision of affordable housing through 
section 106 agreements. This was proposed by Councillor Mulroney and 
seconded by Councillor Gilbert (this had been referred to Cabinet in accordance 
with Standing Order 8.4).

6



In response to the issues raised at the meeting, the Executive Councillor for 
Housing, Planning & Public Protection undertook to write a suitable letter to the 
Secretary of State responsible for planning matters to highlight the concerns.  A 
copy of the letter and any response would be copied to the proposer of the Notice 
of Motion.

Resolved:-
 
That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1.  That it be noted that, considering the Government’s approach to encouraging 
significant levels of new house building, it is highly unlikely that it will remove the 
relevant sections of National Planning Policy Framework and the National 
Planning Practice Guidance.
 
2.  That it further be noted that, since the adoption of the Interim Affordable 
Housing Policy, (by Council 20th October 2016), the Council is better placed to 
ensure equitable off-site contributions are made. However, the effectiveness of 
the Policy would be monitored.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function.
Executive Councillor :- Flewitt

661  General Market Provision 

The Committee considered Minute 601 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny by Cabinet, together 
with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) providing an update on the 
Thursday General Market in the High Street following three years of trading and 
set out the options for the future management of the market.

The Director of Legal & Democratic Services confirmed that outsourcing the 
management of the Market required a proper procurement process.  If the 
contract value is above the EU threshold, then there must be an advert in the 
European Journal and the contract must be awarded to the most economically 
advantageous tender, regardless of the geographic location of the company.  If 
the contract value is below the EU threshold, then the contract must be awarded 
in accordance with the Council’s Contracts Procedure Rules and on the basis of 
securing best value for money. Local companies can (and are) supported and 
encouraged, but fair competition is required and if the contract value is over £25K 
it must be advertised on the UK Contracts Finder website.
 
Resolved:-
 
1.  That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the management of the market be outsourced to an experienced market 
operator, external to the Council, on a three year contract with an option for a 
further two years.”

2.  That, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 39, the matter be referred to 
Council.

7



Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor:- Holland

662  Development & Expansion of National Jazz Archive - Beecroft 

The Committee considered Minute 602 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny by Cabinet, together 
with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) informing Members of the 
proposal for Jazz Centre (UK) to develop and expand its programme to take over 
areas of the lower ground floor of the Beecroft Centre, Victoria Avenue.

Resolved:-
 
That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1.  That, in principle, the Jazz Centre (UK) proposal to extend its presence 
beyond the current single room on the Lower Ground Floor of the Beecroft 
Centre, be approved.
 
2.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place), in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Culture, Tourism and the Economy, be authorised to approve the 
terms of a lease, based on the terms negotiated and recommended by Asset 
Management.
 
3.  That the future aspirations of Jazz Centre UK to further develop a Jazz Club 
for Southend into a regular performance space subject to future self-funding and 
planning considerations, be noted.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor:- Holland

663  Ballot for Business Improvement District (BID) Renewal 

The Committee considered Minute 603 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny by Cabinet, together 
with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) providing an update on the 
success of the Southend Business Improvement District (BID) since its launch in 
April 2013, and the requirements in relation to the undertaking of a renewal ballot 
of Southend town centre and central seafront businesses to extend the Southend 
BID for another five year term.

Resolved:-
 
That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1.  That the progress and impact of the BID in Southend’s town centre and 
central seafront area, be noted.
 
2.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place), in consultation with the Executive 
Councillor for Culture, Tourism and the Economy, be authorised to:-
 

8



- Consider on behalf of the Council as billing authority, whether the proposal 
conflicts with any formally adopted policy of the Council, and, if it does, give 
notice of this in accordance with the BID regulations
 
- Determine whether the Council should support the BID proposal and if so, to 
vote yes on its behalf in the BID ballot. If a ‘no’ vote is proposed, this will be 
referred to Cabinet for further consideration
 
- Formally manage the ballot process in accordance with BID regulations
 
- That subject to a ‘yes’ vote at ballot by the relevant BID business community, 
the Council as relevant local billing authority will manage the billing and collection 
of the additional levy, and its transfer to the BID company. In the event of a ‘no’ 
vote, the costs of the ballot be recovered from the BID Company as per the BID 
regulations.
 
- Review and update the Operating Agreement, as required, that details the 
billing, collection and enforcement provisions as well as the arrangements for 
transmitting the BID receipts to the BID in consultation with the Director of 
Finance and Resources.
 
- Enter into a revised service level agreement with the BID company regarding 
the operation of the BID and delivery of Council requirements and baselines.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor:- Holland

664  Standing Order 46 

The Committee considered Minute 605 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to scrutiny by Cabinet. 

Resolved:-

That the submitted report be noted.

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor:- As appropriate to the item

665  Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders - Various Locations 

The Committee considered Minute 578 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the reports of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of the 
representations that had been received in response to the statutory consultation 
for proposed Traffic Regulation Orders in respect of various proposals within the 
Borough.

With reference to the he proposed amendment of the waiting restrictions from 
2.00 p.m. – 3.00 p.m. Mondays to Fridays to 11.00 a.m. to noon Mondays to 
Fridays in Tyrone Road and Fermoy Road, the Executive Councillor for 
Transport, Waste and Cleansing undertook to keep a Members’ Request open to 

9



enable alternative appropriate options to be explored without the need to change 
the current waiting restrictions in the road.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That, subject to the exclusion of the proposals relating to Tyrone Road and 
Fermoy Road, the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to confirm The 
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (Various Roads) (Stopping, Waiting, Loading 
and Unloading Prohibitions and Restrictions, Parking Places and Permit Parking 
Zones)(Consolidation) Order 2016 (Amendment No. 2) Order 2016 as advertised 
and the order be sealed accordingly.
 
2. That the proposed amendment of the waiting restrictions from 2.00 p.m. – 3.00 
p.m. Mondays to Fridays to 11.00 a.m. to noon Mondays to Fridays in Tyrone 
Road and Fermoy Road be not progressed.
 
3.  That The Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (Various Roads) (Stopping, 
Waiting, Loading and Unloading Prohibitions and Restrictions, Parking Places 
and Permit Parking Zones)(Consolidation) Order 2016 (Amendment No. 1) Order 
2016 be confirmed, subject to the deletions form the Order set out below, and 
sealed accordingly
 
(i)  Introduction of “No Waiting At Any Time” parking restrictions on the following 
lengths of Western Road:
 
South Side – Outside No. 48 Western Road
South Side – Outside Nos 118 and 120 Western Road.
 
(ii)  Revocations – No Waiting at any time in Western Road Item Nos. 109669 
and 109616
 
4.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to confirm The 
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (Various Roads) (Consolidation of Moving 
Traffic and Speed Limit) Order 2006 (as amended) (Amendment No 2) Order 
2016 as advertised and that the order be sealed accordingly.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

666  Requests for New or Amended Traffic Regulation Orders 

The Committee considered Minute 579 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that sought Members' approval 
to authorise the advertisement of the amendments and/or new waiting restrictions 
at the locations indicated in Appendix 1 to the report and the supplementary 
report tabled at that meeting, in accordance with the statutory processes and, 
subject to there being no objections received following statutory advertisement, to 
arrange for the relevant orders to be sealed and implement the proposals.

10



Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That officers be requested to prepare detailed proposals for a pedestrian 
crossing in Western Esplanade between the Casino and the junction with 
Shorefield Road for consideration.
 
2.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to publish the relevant 
statutory notice and undertake the necessary consultation for a traffic regulation 
order to extend the existing permit parking controls around the Cliffs Pavilion 
area to include the section of Westcliff Parade between Westcliff Avenue, Wilson 
Road, Westcliff Parade and Cambridge Road and, subject to there being no 
objections received following statutory advertisement, to arrange for the order to 
be sealed.
 
3.  That the current seasonal restrictions in Clieveden Road and Walton Road 
remain unchanged.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

667  Petition for Action on Excessive Speeds, Wells Avenue 

The Committee considered Minute 580 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
petition from residents of Wells Avenue requesting action on excessive speeds of 
vehicles travelling in the road.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That the petitioner be thanked for taking the time to compile the petition.
 
2.  That the situation be monitored and a further survey be undertaken in 
March/April, the dates for which be agreed in consultation with the Ward 
Councillors.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

668  Request for Waiting Restrictions - Belfairs Park Drive 

The Committee considered Minute 581 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) concerning a request for waiting 
restrictions to be implemented in Belfairs Park Drive.

Resolved:-

That the following decision of Cabinet Committee be noted:

11



“That the Deputy Chief Executive be requested to publish the statutory notices 
and undertake the necessary consultation for the relevant traffic regulation order 
to introduce part week limited waiting restrictions in Belfairs Park Drive the times 
of which to be determined in consultation with the Ward Councillors and, subject 
to there being no objections received following statutory advertisement, to 
arrange for the orders to be sealed and the proposals implemented.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

669  Petition for One-Way Traffic Flow, Westcliff Parade 

The Committee considered Minute 582 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
petition comprising 131 signatures requesting the traffic flow of Westcliff Parade 
be amended to one-way.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That the petitioner be thanked for taking the time to compile the petition.
 
2.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to publish the statutory 
notices and undertake the necessary consultation for the relevant traffic 
regulation order to amend the traffic flow in the section of Western Parade from 
Wilson Road to Trinity Road to one-way westwards.
 
3.  That it be noted that due to the current workload, the proposals will not be 
progressed until after April 2017.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

670  Petition for One-Way Traffic Flow, St Lukes Road 

The Committee considered Minute 583 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
survey undertaken by the Parish Church involving 18 residents of St Luke’s 
Road. The resulting petition requested that the traffic flow be amended to one-
way (Eastwards) from Bournemouth Park Road to Ely Road.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That Father McClusky be thanked for taking the time to compile the petition.
 

12



2.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to publish the statutory 
notices and undertake the necessary consultation for the relevant traffic 
regulation order to amend the traffic flow in the section of St Luke’s
Road from Bournemouth Park Road to Ely Road to one-way.
 
3.  That it be noted that due to the current workload, the proposals will not be 
progressed until after April 2017.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

671  Petition for Removal of Waiting Restrictions, Centurion Close, Shoebury 

The Committee considered Minute 584 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
petition from residents of Centurion Close requesting removal of recently 
introduced waiting restrictions at and around the junction of Lowry Close.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That the petitioner be thanked for taking the time to compile the petition.
 
2.  That consideration of this matter be deferred pending the outcome of the 
recently submitted application for planning permission in the road and that 
officers be requested to liaise with the officer of the local planning authority as 
regards any necessary traffic regulation orders, parking or other highway works 
that may be required.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

672  Petition Requesting Permit Parking Controls, Roots Hall Avenue 

The Committee considered Minute 585 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
petition signed by 16 residents of Roots Hall Avenue requesting Permit Parking 
Controls to deter non-resident parking.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That the petition be noted and the residents be thanked for taking the time to 
compile the petition.
 
2.  That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to publish the statutory 
notices and undertake the necessary consultation for the relevant traffic 
regulation order to introduce a Permit Parking Area in Roots Hall Avenue and 
review all existing waiting restrictions in the street. The operational hours of the 

13



parking scheme to be determined in consultation with the residents of Roots hall 
Avenue.
 
3.  That in the event that no objections are received to the proposal, the Deputy 
Chief Executive (Place) be authorised confirm the Traffic Regulation Order and 
arrange for the proposals to be implemented.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

673  Update on Petition Requesting Permit Parking Controls (Southend East) 

The Committee considered Minute 586 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of 
discussions between Ward Councillors for Southchurch, Thorpe and Kursaal 
wards to discuss a petition signed by 324 residents of the roads north of 
Southend East Railway Station requesting parking controls to deter all day 
parking by commuters.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That the concerns of Ward Members regarding any proposals to introduce a 
Permit Parking Area in the streets detailed in Appendix 1 to the report of the 
Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be noted.
 
2.  That no further action is to be taken in respect of the proposals to introduce a 
Permit Parking Area in the streets detailed in Appendix 1 to this report Deputy 
Chief Executive (Place).
 
3.  That the proposals for hardening parts of the verge in Riviera Drive be 
progressed.
 
4.  That a report be prepared for Members’ consideration on sustainable 
materials including details of costs and implications.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

674  Petition Requesting Pedestrian Crossing, Waiting Restrictions and a 
School Crossing Patrol, Darlinghurst Grove Leigh on Sea - Information 
Item 

The Committee considered Minute 587 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
petition signed by school users requesting a pedestrian crossing facility, waiting 
restrictions and a school crossing patrol to be provided in Darlinghurst Grove.

14



Resolved:-

That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the petition be noted and that officers assess the location and provide a 
report of the findings to the Traffic & Parking Working Party and Cabinet 
Committee.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

675  Petition for Maintenance Works, Ashleigh Drive Leigh on Sea 

The Committee considered Minute 588 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, together with 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that appraised Members of a 
petition from residents of Ashleigh Drive highlighting the state of footways and 
carriageways and requesting that the Council rectify this as soon as possible.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“1.  That the petitioner be thanked for compiling the petition.
 
2.  That no further action be taken at this time for the reasons detailed in the 
report.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

676  Number of Residential Parking Permits Allowed Per Household 

The Committee considered Minute 589 of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held 
on 9th January 2017, which had been referred direct to Scrutiny, regarding the 
Council’s policy relating to the number of residential parking permits household 
were allowed to purchase.  This item had been requested to be included on the 
Agenda for that meeting by Councillor Ware-Lane in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 35.1 (d).

Resolved:-

That the following decision of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“That officer prepare a report for consideration by the Traffic & Parking Working 
Party and Cabinet Committee to include details of the number of permits for 
residents in town centre, access to parking the town for residents, businesses, 
shoppers and visitors and parking charges, to help inform the development of a 
Parking Strategy for the Borough.”

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor: Councillor Cox

15



677  In-depth Scrutiny Project - 'To investigate the case for additional 
enforcement resources for Southend' 

The Committee received an oral update on the progress that had been made in 
respect of the agreed joint in-depth scrutiny project for 2016/17 entitled 'To 
investigate the case for additional enforcement resources for Southend'.
 
Resolved:-
 
That the progress be noted.
 
Note:- This is a Scrutiny Function.

678  Exclusion of the Public 

Resolved:-

That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below, on the 
grounds that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

679  Standing Order 46 - Confidential Sheet 

The Committee considered Minute 607 of the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th 
January 2017, which had been referred direct to scrutiny by Cabinet. 

Resolved:-

That the submitted report be noted.

Note:- This is an Executive Function
Executive Councillor:- As appropriate to the item.

680  Dipti Patel - Director for Public Protection 

The Chairman explained that this would be the last meeting of the Committee to 
be attended by Ms Dipti Patel, the Council’s Director for Public Protection, as she 
would shortly be taking up a new post at the London Borough of Havering.   The 
Committee thanked Ms Patel for her hard work and support during her time at the 
Council and wished her well in her new role.

Chairman:

16



V1.0

MMONTHLY PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 

February 2017 

Contents 

Section 1 2016-17 Exceptions – Current Month’s Performance  
Page 1 - 5 

Current Month’s performance information for indicators rated 
Red or Amber 

Section 2  2016-17 Corporate Performance Indicators 
Page 6 - 9 

Performance Information for all Corporate Priority Indicators 

Section 3 Detail of Indicators Rated Red or Amber 
Page 10 - 23 

Performance detail for indicators rated Red or Amber 

Section 4 Budget Management Statements 
Page 25 - 55 Budget monitor and forecast by Portfolio 

Capital Expenditure Section 5 
Page 5 7

Summary of Capital Expenditure 

17

5



V1.0

Key to Columns and symbols used in report 

Column Heading Description

better

worse

 

18



S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

: 
2

0
1

6
-2

0
1

7
 E

xc
ep

ti
o

n
s 

- 
C

u
rr

en
t 

M
on

th
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 r
at

ed
 R

ed
 o

r 
A
m

be
r 

G
en

er
at

ed
 o

n
: 

27
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
13

:5
5 

Ex
p

ec
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e 
A
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

m
is

si
ng

 t
ar

ge
t

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 O
U

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

5.
4 

W
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
lo

st
 p

er
 F

TE
 

du
e 

to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

- 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 s

ta
ff
 [

C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
6.

72
 

6.
49

 
7.

20
 

W
hi

le
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
m

et
 it

s 
ta

rg
et

 f
or

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 b

ut
 is

 n
ot

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
ta

rg
et

 f
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e.
 H

R
 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
an

ag
er

s 
w

ith
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

, 
an

d 
to

 h
el

p 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 id

en
tif

y 
tr

en
ds

. 
Th

e 
C
ou

nc
il 

st
ill

 c
om

pa
re

s 
fa

vo
ur

ab
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri
tie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

se
ct

or
s 

(l
at

es
t 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
sh

ow
s 

co
un

ci
ls

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 
8.

5 
da

ys
 lo

st
 p

er
 F

TE
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

).
  

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

Ex
p

ec
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e 
A
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

m
is

si
ng

 t
ar

ge
t

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 O
U

s 
Pe

op
le

 

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

1.
4 

R
at

e 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 p

er
 

10
,0

00
 (

no
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
te

m
ps

) 
[M

on
th

ly
 S

na
ps

ho
t]

 

G
ol

di
lo

ck
s 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

17
 

59
.6

 
45

.7
-5

2.
3 

45
.7

-5
2.

3 

Th
e 

ra
te

 o
f 
ch

ild
re

n 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

st
ab

le
 t

hi
s 

m
on

th
. 

Th
is

 is
 b

ec
au

se
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
se

 p
la

ns
 w

er
e 

di
sc

on
tin

ue
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 n

um
be

r 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
be

co
m

in
g 

su
bj

ec
t 

of
 a

 
C
P 

Pl
an

, 
ho

w
ev

er
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
di

sc
on

tin
ue

d 
fr

om
 a

 p
la

n 
is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 lo
w

er
 t

ha
n 

av
er

ag
e.

 T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

m
is

si
ng

 t
ar

ge
t.

 T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

w
or

k 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

19



M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 r

at
e 

of
 C

P 
pl

an
s.

 

C
P 

3.
2 

D
el

ay
ed

 t
ra

ns
fe

rs
 o

f 
ca

re
 

fr
om

 h
os

pi
ta

l f
or

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

pe
r 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
(A

S
C
O

F 
2C

(2
))

 [
Ye

ar
 t

o 
da

te
 

av
er

ag
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
2.

08
 

1.
43

 
1.

43
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 h
as

 d
ec

lin
ed

 s
lig

ht
ly

 t
hi

s 
m

on
th

, 
in

flu
en

ce
d 

by
 5

 n
ew

 d
el

ay
s 

(4
 f
ro

m
 a

cu
te

, 
1 

fr
om

 n
on

-a
cu

te
),

 b
ut

 w
e 

re
m

ai
n 

w
el

l b
el

ow
 t

he
 

re
gi

on
al

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 
3.

79
. 
A 

7 
da

y 
a 

w
ee

k 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 f
lo

w
 is

 
su

pp
or

te
d.

 A
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 t
he

 o
ve

rn
ig

ht
 

su
pp

or
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 a

m
on

gs
t 

th
e 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 b

ei
ng

 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
bo

th
 p

re
ve

nt
 h

os
pi

ta
l a

dm
is

si
on

 
an

d 
ai

de
 t

im
el

y 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

fr
om

 h
os

pi
ta

l. 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

Ex
p

ec
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e 
A
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

m
is

si
ng

 t
ar

ge
t

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 O
U

s 
Pl

ac
e 

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

1.
1 

S
co

re
 a

ga
in

st
 1

0 
BC

S 
cr

im
es

; 
Th

ef
t 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
, 

th
ef

t 
fr

om
 v

eh
ic

le
, 

ve
hi

cl
e 

in
te

rf
er

en
ce

, 
do

m
es

tic
 

bu
rg

la
ry

, 
th

ef
t 

of
 c

yc
le

, 
th

ef
t 

fr
om

 p
er

so
n,

 c
ri
m

in
al

 
da

m
ag

e,
 c

om
m

on
 a

ss
au

lt,
 

w
ou

nd
in

g'
s,

 r
ob

be
ry

. 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
76

04
 

67
54

 
73

89
 

S
ou

th
en

d 
C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ha

ve
 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

fr
om

 t
he

 1
6/

17
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 I
nt

el
lig

en
ce

 
A
ss

es
sm

en
t.

 T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 m
ul

tia
ge

nc
y 

fo
cu

s 
on

 c
er

ta
in

 k
ey

 h
ig

h 
cr

im
e 

ar
ea

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
Yo

rk
 

R
oa

d 
(O

pe
ra

tio
n 

S
to

ne
ga

te
),

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
cr

im
es

 
th

at
 a

re
 c

au
si

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 (

 v
io

le
nt

 c
ri
m

e)
, 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l l
in

ks
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ke
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

bo
ar

ds
. 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 t

he
 in

-d
ep

th
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

n 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
is

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 a
nd

 h
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
C
ri
m

e 
C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 a

nd
 w

id
er

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
bo

th
 

fr
om

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
. 

 
Th

e 
B
C
S
 C

ri
m

e 
br

ea
kd

ow
n 

fo
r 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
17

: 
Th

ef
t 

of
 a

 v
eh

ic
le

 -
 4

%
;T

he
ft

 f
ro

m
 a

 v
eh

ic
le

 -
 

1
0

%
; 

V
eh

ic
le

 in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 -
 2

%
; 

B
ur

gl
ar

y 
in

 a
 

dw
el

lin
g 

- 
8

%
; 

B
ic

yc
le

 t
he

ft
 -

 6
%

; 
Th

ef
t 

fr
om

 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 -
 3

%
; 

C
ri
m

in
al

 D
am

ag
e 

- 
1

9
%

; 
H

M
IC

 V
io

le
nc

e 
W

ith
ou

t 
In

ju
ry

 -
 2

9
%

; 
W

ou
nd

in
g 

(S
er

io
us

 a
nd

 O
th

er
) 

- 
1

7
%

; 
R
ob

be
ry

 (
Pe

rs
on

al
 P

ro
pe

rt
y)

 -
 2

%
. 
 

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

20



M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

2.
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 s

en
t 

fo
r 

re
us

e,
 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
16

 
47

.7
9%

 
54

.0
0%

 
54

.0
0%

 

R
ep

or
te

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

  
Th

is
 f

ig
u

re
 is

 t
h

e 
la

te
st

 p
o

si
ti

on
 a

n
d 

w
ill

 
b

e 
va

lid
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
0

1
7

. 
It

 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 t

he
 s

et
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

ta
rg

et
 f
or

 
20

16
/1

7 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 
R
ec

en
t 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fig
ur

es
 h

av
e 

sh
ow

ed
 a

 d
ec

lin
e 

in
 n

at
io

na
l 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
av

er
ag

e 
ra

te
s 

do
w

n 
to

 4
3.

9%
 w

ith
 a

 
w

ar
ni

ng
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ta
rg

et
s 

of
 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
50

%
 b

y 
20

20
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

be
 m

is
se

d.
 

Th
is

 is
 p

ar
tly

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 p
ac

ka
gi

ng
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 o

n 
pr

od
uc

ts
, 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
fo

r 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 f
or

 c
ar

ri
er

 b
ag

s 
an

d 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

pr
od

uc
er

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 m

ea
ni

ng
 

pa
ck

ag
in

g 
is

 b
ei

ng
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
 

an
d 

is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

to
 

re
cy

cl
e.

 M
an

y 
la

rg
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 o
ut

le
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ir
ed

 t
o 

re
m

ov
e 

pa
ck

ag
in

g 
up

on
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

la
rg

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

ap
pl

ia
nc

es
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
ha

d 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

l f
or

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 

re
cy

cl
in

g.
 T

he
 t

ar
ge

t 
fig

ur
e 

ha
s 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
M

B
T 

pl
an

t 
w

he
re

 a
 s

m
al

le
r 

th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

be
in

g 
re

cy
cl

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 p

la
nt

. 
 

Pl
ac

e 
S
cr

ut
in

y 

Ex
p

ec
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e 
S
om

e 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 a

ga
in

st
 t

ar
ge

t
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 O

U
s 

Pe
op

le
 

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

1.
3 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
po

lic
e 

as
 

ha
vi

ng
 r

un
 a

w
ay

 t
ha

t 
re

ce
iv

e 
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

re
tu

rn
 t

o 
ho

m
e 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 [

C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
79

.2
%

 
85

%
 

85
%

 

Th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

ra
te

 o
f 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 r
et

ur
n 

to
 h

om
e 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

th
is

 m
on

th
 is

 7
9.

2%
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 h
ad

 3
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
lif

ic
 m

is
si

ng
 

pe
rs

on
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 F

eb
ru

ar
y,

 2
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
LA

C
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t 
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

ty
 c

he
ck

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
y 

m
is

si
ng

 
ep

is
od

es
. 
 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
P 

1.
5 

R
at

e 
of

 L
oo

ke
d 

Af
te

r 
C
hi

ld
re

n 
(L

AC
) 

pe
r 

10
,0

00
 

[M
on

th
ly

 S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

G
ol

di
lo

ck
s 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

17
 

69
 

 
 

W
e 

re
m

ai
n 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

 b
y 

17
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

un
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 a

sy
lu

m
 s

ee
ki

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
t 

ye
ar

 e
nd

. 
A
s 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 r

ep
or

te
d 

w
e 

ar
e 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

21



M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
M

on
th

's
 

V
al

u
e

M
on

th
's

 
Ta

rg
et

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

lo
ok

ed
 a

ft
er

. 
S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

Pl
ac

em
en

t 
Pa

ne
l w

hi
ch

 o
ff
er

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

of
 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g,

 a
nd

 t
he

 E
dg

e 
of

 C
ar

e 
te

am
 

w
ho

 o
ff
er

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
to

 f
am

ili
es

 s
o 

th
ey

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

ca
re

 f
or

 t
he

ir
 

ad
ol

es
ce

nt
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 W
e 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ri
en

ci
ng

 
pr

es
su

re
s 

du
e 

to
 d

el
ay

s 
in

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
he

ar
in

gs
 in

 
or

de
r 

th
at

 f
in

al
 a

do
pt

io
n 

or
de

rs
 a

re
 g

ra
nt

ed
, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 d
ue

 t
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 c

as
e 

la
w

. 
Th

is
 

m
ea

ns
 it

 c
an

 t
ak

e 
lo

ng
er

 f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 le
av

e 
ca

re
 v

ia
 a

do
pt

io
n.

 F
ur

th
er

 w
or

k 
on

 o
ur

 m
od

el
 

of
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

th
e 

re
un

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 f

am
ili

es
 w

ill
 

fu
rt

he
r 

re
du

ce
 L

AC
 n

um
be

rs
 d

ur
in

g 
20

17
/1

8.
  

C
P 

3.
1 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
65

 
an

d 
ov

er
 w

ho
 w

er
e 

st
ill

 a
t 

ho
m

e 
91

 d
ay

s 
af

te
r 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
l t

o 
re

ha
b/

re
ha

b 
[R

ol
lin

g 
Q

ua
rt

er
] 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
79

.6
%

 
86

%
 

86
%

 

Fo
r 

th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

ri
od

, 
10

3 
A
du

lts
 u

se
d 

th
e 

re
ab

le
m

en
t 

se
rv

ic
e,

 8
2 

Ad
ul

ts
 w

er
e 

st
ill

 a
t 

ho
m

e 
91

 d
ay

s.
 A

n 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f 
th

e 
21

 A
du

lts
 n

ot
 

at
 h

om
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 
O

ve
r 

th
e 

lo
ng

er
 

te
rm

 t
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
fo

r 
im

pa
ct

 
fr

om
 t

he
 n

ew
 D

om
ic

ili
ar

y 
C
ar

e 
C
on

tr
ac

t 
du

e 
to

 
co

m
m

en
ce

 in
 M

ay
 2

01
7 

as
 t

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

re
ab

le
m

en
t 

/ 
en

ab
le

m
en

t 
fa

ce
t.

  

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
P 

3.
3 

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ho
 

re
ce

iv
e 

di
re

ct
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 
(A

S
C
O

F 
1C

 (
2A

))
 [

Ye
ar

 t
o 

da
te

 S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
29

.4
%

 
30

%
 

30
%

 

Th
er

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

fix
ed

 t
re

nd
 j
us

t 
be

lo
w

 
ta

rg
et

, 
w

hi
ch

 is
 e

ch
oe

d 
by

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 t
he

 E
as

t 
R
eg

io
n.

 B
ar

ri
er

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 

th
is

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
go

in
g 

to
 b

e 
ex

pl
or

ed
, 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 t

he
 t

im
e 

ta
ke

 f
or

 a
n 

Ad
ul

t 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 d

ir
ec

t 
pa

ym
en

t.
 T

hi
s 

is
 a

 r
ep

lic
a 

of
 

th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ea

st
er

n 
R
eg

io
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pa

re
d.

  

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

Ex
p

ec
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e 
S
om

e 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 a

ga
in

st
 t

ar
ge

t
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 O

U
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt
h 

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

3.
8 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
4 

w
ee

k 
st

op
 s

m
ok

in
g 

co
ur

se
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
75

1 
1,

15
0 

1,
30

0 
Fi

na
l q

ui
t 

da
ta

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
un

til
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
A
pr

il 
20

17
. 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 s

ta
te

 t
ha

t 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

22



M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 la
st

 
ye

ar
 

C
om

m
en

t 
- 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, 

ac
ti

on
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 f

u
tu

re
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 q
ui

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 u
p 

to
 4

2 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 a
 q

ui
t 

da
te

 is
 s

et
. 
 

C
P 

3.
9 

Ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 t

he
 N

H
S
 H

ea
lth

 
C
he

ck
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
- 

by
 

th
os

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 [

C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
3,

95
8 

5,
05

0 
5,

67
3 

O
ut

re
ac

h 
w

or
k 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

. 
Th

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
he

ck
 

bu
s 

is
 s

ite
d 

at
 3

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 in
 S

ou
th

en
d 

(W
ai

tr
os

e,
 B

 &
 Q

 a
nd

 S
ou

th
en

d 
A
ir
po

rt
) 

7 
da

ys
 

a 
w

ee
k 

ov
er

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
3 

w
ee

ks
. 

 

G
Ps

 a
re

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 t

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
su

pp
or

t 
to

 in
vi

te
 

pa
tie

nt
s 

in
 f
or

 t
he

ir
 N

H
S
 H

ea
lth

 C
he

ck
. 

So
m

e 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

re
 p

ilo
tin

g 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

ca
lls

 t
o 

pa
tie

nt
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
no

t 
re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 in

vi
te

s.
 T

ex
t 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

se
nt

 o
ut

 t
o 

pa
tie

nt
s 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

em
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

 a
ls

o.
  

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

23



S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

: 
2

0
1

6
-2

0
1

7
 C

or
p

o
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 I

n
d

ic
at

o
rs

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

al
l 2

01
3-

20
14

 C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ri
or

it
y 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

G
en

er
at

ed
 o

n
: 

27
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
13

:5
5 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
Ex

p
ec

te
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e:

 A
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

m
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 5

 O
n

 c
o

u
rs

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
ar

g
et

 1
7

 S
om

e 
sl

ip
p

ag
e 

ag
ai

n
st

 t
ar

g
et

 6
 

A
im

: 
S

A
FE

: 
P

ri
or

it
ie

s 
• 

C
re

at
e 

a 
sa

fe
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 v

is
it
or

s.
 •

 W
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it
h 

Es
se

x 
Po

lic
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 t

o 
ta

ck
le

 c
ri

m
e.

  
• 

Lo
ok

 a
ft

er
 a

nd
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 o
ur

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
du

lt
s.

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

o
r 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

1.
1 

S
co

re
 a

ga
in

st
 1

0 
BC

S 
cr

im
es

; 
Th

ef
t 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
, 

th
ef

t 
fr

om
 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 v
eh

ic
le

 in
te

rf
er

en
ce

, 
do

m
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
y,

 t
he

ft
 o

f 
cy

cl
e,

 
th

ef
t 

fr
om

 p
er

so
n,

 c
ri
m

in
al

 
da

m
ag

e,
 c

om
m

on
 a

ss
au

lt,
 

w
ou

nd
in

g'
s,

 r
ob

be
ry

. 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 A

im
 t

o 
M

in
im

is
e 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

17
 

76
04

 
67

54
 

73
89

 
C
ar

l R
ob

in
so

n
 

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

1.
2 

A
du

lts
 in

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 in

 
st

ab
le

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 o
r 

w
ith

ou
t 

su
pp

or
t.

 (
A
S
C
O

F 
1H

) 
[Y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
76

%
 

66
%

 
66

%
 

S
ha

ro
n 

H
ou

ld
en

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

1.
3 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
po

lic
e 

as
 h

av
in

g 
ru

n 
aw

ay
 t

ha
t 

re
ce

iv
e 

an
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

re
tu

rn
 t

o 
ho

m
e 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 [

C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
79

.2
%

 
85

%
 

85
%

 
Jo

hn
 O

'L
ou

gh
lin

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

1.
4 

R
at

e 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 C

hi
ld

 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Pl
an

 p
er

 1
0,

00
0 

(n
ot

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

te
m

ps
) 

[M
on

th
ly

 
S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

G
ol

di
lo

ck
s 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

17
 

59
.6

 
45

.7
-5

2.
3 

45
.7

-5
2.

3 
Jo

hn
 O

'L
ou

gh
lin

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

1.
5 

R
at

e 
of

 L
oo

ke
d 

Af
te

r 
C
hi

ld
re

n 
(L

A
C
) 

pe
r 

10
,0

00
 [

M
on

th
ly

 
S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

G
ol

di
lo

ck
s 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

17
 

69
 

57
.3

-6
8.

3 
57

.3
-6

8.
3 

Jo
hn

 O
'L

ou
gh

lin
 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

24



A
im

: 
C

LE
A

N
: 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 •
 C

on
ti
nu

e 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 g
re

en
 t

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
an

d 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 t
o 

be
ne

fit
 t

he
 lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

 •
 E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

e 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l s
te

w
ar

ds
hi

p.

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

2.
1 

N
um

be
r 

of
 r

ep
or

te
d 

m
is

se
d 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 [

M
on

th
ly

 
S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
30

 
45

 
45

 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

2.
2 

%
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
 o

f 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s:
 li

tt
er

 [
C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 
A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
94

%
 

92
%

 
92

%
 

Pl
ac

e 
S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

2.
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

se
nt

 f
or

 r
eu

se
, 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
16

 
47

.7
9%

 
54

.0
0%

 
54

.0
0%

 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 

A
im

: 
H

E
A

LT
H

Y
: 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 •
 A

ct
iv

el
y 

pr
om

ot
e 

he
al

th
y 

an
d 

ac
ti
ve

 li
fe

st
yl

es
 f
or

 a
ll.

 •
 W

or
k 

w
it
h 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

ri
va

te
 r

en
te

d 
se

ct
or

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 h
ou

si
ng

.•
 I

m
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

lif
e 

ch
an

ce
s 

of
 o

ur
 r

es
id

en
ts

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 o
ur

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

&
 a

du
lt
s,

 b
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 r
ed

uc
e 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 

de
pr

iv
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

3.
1 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
65

 a
nd

 
ov

er
 w

ho
 w

er
e 

st
ill

 a
t 

ho
m

e 
91

 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 f
ro

m
 h

os
pi

ta
l 

to
 r

eh
ab

/r
eh

ab
 [

R
ol

lin
g 

Q
ua

rt
er

] 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
79

.6
%

 
86

%
 

86
%

 
S
ha

ro
n 

H
ou

ld
en

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

3.
2 

D
el

ay
ed

 t
ra

ns
fe

rs
 o

f 
ca

re
 f
ro

m
 

ho
sp

ita
l f

or
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

(A
S
C
O

F 
2C

(2
))

 [
Ye

ar
 t

o 
da

te
 a

ve
ra

ge
] 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
2.

08
 

1.
43

 
1.

43
 

S
ha

ro
n 

H
ou

ld
en

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

3.
3 

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ho
 r

ec
ei

ve
 d

ir
ec

t 
pa

ym
en

ts
 (

A
SC

O
F 

1C
 (

2A
))

 [
Ye

ar
 

to
 d

at
e 

S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
29

.4
%

 
30

%
 

30
%

 
S
ha

ro
n 

H
ou

ld
en

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

3.
4 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

[M
on

th
ly

 S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
10

%
 

10
%

 
10

%
 

S
ha

ro
n 

H
ou

ld
en

 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 

C
P 

3.
5 

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

In
vo

lv
ed

 w
ith

 
Ea

rl
y 

H
el

p 
As

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
2,

04
9 

1,
83

7 
2,

00
0 

Jo
hn

 O
'L

ou
gh

lin
 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

25



M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

3.
6 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
an

d 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 a
t 

co
un

ci
l o

w
ne

d 
/ 

af
fil

ia
te

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
an

d 
sp

or
tin

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
4,

00
9,

62
4 

3,
66

6,
66

7 
4,

00
0,

00
0 

 
 

S
co

tt
 D

ol
lin

g 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

3.
7 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 D

ea
l 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 
A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
48

 
36

 
40

 
 

 
Ja

m
es

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

3.
8 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

4 
w

ee
k 

st
op

 s
m

ok
in

g 
co

ur
se

 [
C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
75

1 
1,

15
0 

1,
30

0 
 

 
Li

es
el

 P
ar

k 
Pe

op
le

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

3.
9 

Ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 t

he
 N

H
S
 H

ea
lth

 C
he

ck
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

- 
by

 t
ho

se
 e

lig
ib

le
 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
3,

95
8 

5,
05

0 
5,

67
3 

 
 

M
ar

ga
re

t 
G

ra
y 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

 

A
im

: 
P

R
O

P
E

R
O

U
S

: 
P

ri
or

it
ie

s 
• 

M
ax

im
is

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 t

o 
en

ab
le

 t
he

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 q
ua

lit
y,

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g.

 •
 E

ns
ur

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

it
y 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
em

 t
o 

be
 li

fe
lo

ng
 le

ar
ne

rs
 &

 h
av

e 
fu

lfi
lli

ng
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t.

 •
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
to

w
n 

is
 'o

pe
n 

fo
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
’ 

an
d 

th
at

 n
ew

, 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
en

te
rp

ri
se

 is
 n

ur
tu

re
d 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d.
 E

ns
ur

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

re
ge

ne
ra

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

to
w

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

cu
lt
ur

e 
le

d 
ag

en
da

.

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

4.
3 

%
 o

f 
C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

fo
r 

20
16

/1
7 

co
lle

ct
ed

 in
 y

ea
r 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 
A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
92

.4
0%

 
92

.2
0%

 
97

.2
0%

 
 

 
Jo

e 
C
he

st
er

to
n 

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

4.
4 

%
 o

f 
N

on
-D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

 f
or

 
20

16
/1

7 
co

lle
ct

ed
 in

 y
ea

r 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
92

.0
0%

 
91

.6
0%

 
97

.8
0%

 
 

 
Jo

e 
C
he

st
er

to
n 

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

4.
5 

M
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
92

.8
6%

 
79

.0
0%

 
79

.0
0%

 
 

 
Pe

te
r 

G
er

ag
ht

y 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

4.
6 

M
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
90

.2
2%

 
84

.0
0%

 
84

.0
0%

 
 

 
Pe

te
r 

G
er

ag
ht

y 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

4.
7 

O
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
94

.8
7%

 
90

.0
0%

 
90

.0
0%

 
 

 
Pe

te
r 

G
er

ag
ht

y 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

4.
8 

C
ur

re
nt

 R
en

t 
Ar

re
ar

s 
as

 %
 o

f 
re

nt
 

du
e 

[M
on

th
ly

 S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
1.

36
%

 
1.

7%
 

1.
7%

 
 

 
S
ha

ro
n 

H
ou

ld
en

 
Po

lic
y 

an
d 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

4.
9 

Th
e 

%
  
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 g
oo

d 
or

 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
[M

on
th

ly
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
84

.7
1%

 
75

%
 

75
%

 
 

 
B
ri
n 

M
ar

tin
 

Pe
op

le
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

 

26



M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

S
na

ps
ho

t]
 

A
im

: 
E

X
C

EL
LE

N
T:

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 •
 W

or
k 

w
it
h 

&
 li

st
en

 t
o 

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 &
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

et
te

r 
ou

tc
om

es
 f

or
 a

ll 
• 

En
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
be

 s
el

f-
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 &
 f
os

te
r 

pr
id

e 
in

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
• 

Pr
om

ot
e 

&
 le

ad
 a

n 
en

tr
ep

re
ne

ur
ia

l, 
cr

ea
ti
ve

 &
 in

no
va

ti
ve

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 o
ur

 t
ow

n.

M
P

R
 

C
od

e
S

h
o

rt
 N

am
e 

M
in

im
is

e 
or

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

La
te

st
 

M
on

th
 

M
on

th
's

 
V

al
u

e 
M

on
th

's
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
n

n
u

al
 

Ta
rg

et
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

Ex
p

ec
te

d 
O

u
tc

om
e 

B
et

te
r 

or
 

w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 B
y 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

C
P 

5.
1 

N
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
rs

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

vo
lu

nt
ee

ri
ng

 in
 C

ul
tu

re
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
[C

um
ul

at
iv

e]
 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
15

,8
12

 
11

,9
17

 
13

,0
00

 
 

 
S
co

tt
 D

ol
lin

g 
Pl

ac
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

5.
2 

G
ov

m
et

ri
c 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
of

 
S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
(3

 C
ha

nn
el

s 
- 

Ph
on

es
, 

Fa
ce

 2
 F

ac
e 

&
 W

eb
) 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
86

.3
2%

 
80

.0
0%

 
80

.0
0%

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

C
or

ri
ga

n;
 J

oa
nn

a 
R
uf

fle
 

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

5.
3 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
on

lin
e 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 
A
im

 t
o 

M
ax

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
58

,8
11

 
45

,8
26

 
50

,0
00

 
 

 
Jo

an
na

 R
uf

fle
 

Po
lic

y 
&

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

C
P 

5.
4 

W
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
lo

st
 p

er
 F

TE
 d

ue
 t

o 
si

ck
ne

ss
 -

 e
xc

lu
di

ng
 s

ch
oo

l s
ta

ff
 

[C
um

ul
at

iv
e]

 

A
im

 t
o 

M
in

im
is

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
17

 
6.

72
 

6.
49

 
7.

20
 

 
 

Jo
an

na
 R

uf
fle

 
Po

lic
y 

&
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
S
cr

ut
in

y 
 

27



Section 3: Detail of indicators rated Red or Amber 

Aim: SAFE: Priorities • Create a safe environment across the town for residents, workers and 
visitors. • Work in partnership with Essex Police and other agencies to tackle crime.  • Look after and 
safeguard our children and vulnerable adults.
Expected Outcome: At risk of missing target 2 Some slippage against target 2 

CP 1.1

Score against 10 BCS crimes; Theft of 
vehicle, theft from vehicle, vehicle 
interference, domestic burglary, theft of 
cycle, theft from person, criminal damage, 
common assault, wounding's, robbery. 
[Cumulative] 

Expected Outcome Format Aim to Minimise 

Managed By Carl Robinson* 

Year Introduced 2007

28



4% - 10% 2%
8% 6% 3% 19%

29% 17%
2%

29



CP 1.3

The percentage of children reported to the 
police as having run away that receive an 
independent return to home interview 
[Cumulative] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Maximise 

    

Managed By John O'Loughlin 

Year Introduced 2013 

     

 

     

 

30



CP 1.4
Rate of children subject to a Child 
Protection Plan per 10,000 (not including 
temps) [Monthly Snapshot] 

Expected Outcome  Format Goldilocks 

    

Managed By John O'Loughlin 

Year Introduced   
     

 

     

 

31



CP 1.5
Rate of Looked After Children (LAC) per 
10,000 [Monthly Snapshot] 

Expected Outcome  Format Goldilocks 

    

Managed By John O'Loughlin 

Year Introduced   
     

 

     

32



Aim: CLEAN: Priorities • Continue to promote the use of green technology and initiatives to benefit 
the local economy and environment. • Encourage and enforce high standards of environmental 
stewardship.
Expected Outcome: At risk of missing target 1  

CP 2.3
Percentage of household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling and composting 
[Cumulative] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Maximise 

    

Managed By Carl Robinson* 

Year Introduced 2008 

     

 

     

 

33



This figure is the latest position and will be validated by the end of March 2017.

34



Aim: HEALTHY: Priorities • Actively promote healthy and active lifestyles for all. • Work with the 
public and private rented sectors to provide good quality housing. • Improve the life chances of our 
residents, especially our vulnerable children & adults, by working to reduce inequalities and social 
deprivation across our communities. 
Expected Outcome: At risk of missing target 1 Some slippage against target 4 

CP 3.1

Proportion of older people 65 and over 
who were still at home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital to rehab/rehab 
[Rolling Quarter] 

Expected Outcome Format Aim to Maximise 

Managed By Sharon Houlden 

Year Introduced 

35



 

36



CP 3.2
Delayed transfers of care from hospital for 
social care per 100,000 population (ASCOF 
2C(2)) [Year to date average] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Minimise 

    

Managed By Sharon Houlden 

Year Introduced   
     

 

     

 

37



CP 3.3
The proportion of people who use services 
who receive direct payments (ASCOF 1C 
(2A)) [Year to date Snapshot] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Maximise 

    

Managed By Sharon Houlden 

Year Introduced   
     

 

     

 

38



CP 3.8
Number of people successfully completing 
4 week stop smoking course [Cumulative] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Maximise 

    

Managed By Liesel Park 

Year Introduced   
     

 

     

 

39



CP 3.9
Take up of the NHS Health Check 
programme - by those eligible 
[Cumulative] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Maximise 

    

Managed By Margaret Gray 

Year Introduced   
     

 

     

 

40



Aim: EXCELLENT: Priorities • Work with & listen to our communities & partners to achieve better 
outcomes for all • Enable communities to be self-sufficient & foster pride in the town • Promote & lead 
an entrepreneurial, creative & innovative approach to the development of our town.
Expected Outcome: At risk of missing target 1  

CP 5.4
Working days lost per FTE due to sickness 
- excluding school staff [Cumulative] 

Expected Outcome  Format Aim to Minimise 

    

Managed By Joanna Ruffle 

Year Introduced 2009 

     

 

     

 

41



42



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 

 
Period 11 

 
as at 28 February 2017 

Portfolio Summary

43



2 

Contents 
 
Commentary 3 
  
General Fund Summary Forecast 9 
  
Portfolio  
  
Leader 10 
Culture, Tourism and the Economy 12 
Corporate and Community Support Services 14 
Housing, Planning & Public Protection Services 18 
Children & Learning 20 
Health & Adult Social Care 23 
Transport, Waste & Cleansing 25 
Technology 28 
Housing Revenue Account Summary Forecast 30 
  
 

44



3 

1. Commentary 
 
This report outlines the budget monitoring position for the General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account for 2016/17, based on the views of the Directors and their Management Teams, in light of 
expenditure and income to 28 February 2017. 
 
The starting point for the budget monitoring is the original budget as agreed by Council in February 
2016. Therefore, the full cost budget is being monitored, including fully allocated Management, 
Administrative and Technical Services (MATS) and capital financing costs. As at the end of October 
2016 all corporate savings had been allocated.  
 
 
2. Overall Budget Performance – General Fund 
 
As at the end of February, an underspend to the overall Council budget of £2,387,000 is currently being 
forecast for the year-end. This position reflects a projected overspend of £154,000 in Council 
departmental spending and a £2,541,000 underspend on financing costs and levies. The budget 
pressures which services are reporting are detailed in section 3. The forecast net underspend of 
£2,387,000 is currently estimated to be transferred to earmarked reserves. 
  

Portfolio Latest 
Budget 
2016/17 

£000

Projected 
Outturn 
2016/17   

£000

February 
Forecast 
Variance   

£000

January 
Forecast 
Variance   

£000

Leader 2,858      2,855 (3)              (25)             

Culture, Tourism and the Economy 16,559     16,772 213           310            

Corporate and Community Support Services 4,888      4,516 (372)          (282)           

Housing, Planning & Public Protection Services 10,883     10,819 (64)            (28)             

Children & Learning 32,552     32,855 303           551            

Health & Adult Social Care 43,101     43,362 261           221            

Transport, Waste & Cleansing 25,833     25,649 (184)          (397)           

Technology 65           65 -               -                

Total Portfolio 136,739   136,893 154           350            

Non-Service Areas (12,186) (14,727) (2,541) (326)

Earmarked Reserves (1,347) 1,040 2,387 (24)

Net Expenditure / (Income) 123,206   123,206 0 0 

General Fund Portfolio Forecast Comparison 2016/17

at 28 February 2017 - Period 11

 
 
Where Portfolios are forecasting an overspend by the end of the year, the relevant Director has been 
advised that appropriate action plans must be in place to address any projected overspend position so 
that a balanced budget for the Council is produced by the year end. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



4 

3. Service Variances - £154,000 forecast overspend 
 
The key variances are as shown in the following table:-  
Portfolio Unfavourable Favourable Net Previous 

period
£(000) £(000) £(000) £(000)

Leader

Treasury Management Costs (3) 0

Vacancies in the Policy and Communications team (25)

0 (3) (3) (25)
Culture, Tourism and the Economy
Southend Pier - Loss of income due to repair of pile caps and 
associated repair costs due to buggy usage for certain users

133 200

Grounds Maintenance - Additional peak relief staff due to 
weather conditions

69 60

Grounds Maintenance - One off additional materials and 
maintenance costs in relation to the new Southend contract

60 60

Grounds Maintenance - shortfall in income 35 40

Golf course - reduced income due to lower user numbers 50 50

The Forum - Facilities Management contract 100 100

Leigh Library - Income shortfall 6 0

Leisure Management - Newly tendered contract saving & part 
year vacant post

(182) (182)

Town Centre - Additional income from the weekly markets (30) 0

Tourism & Events - Vacant post & unspent contractors budget (28) (18)

453 (240) 213 310
Corporate and Community Support

Income from Cremations (150) (50)

Vacancies in the Customer Service team (61) (8)

IT Costs relating to Citizens Accounts 52 0

Income from the Customer Service support for the Veolia (47) (30)

Benefits Admin Team Staffing 100 100

Vacancies in the Partnership team and Grants to Voluntary 
Organisation teams

(15) (50)

Corporate Training Income (14) (14)

Vacancy in the Transport Management team (20) 0

Vacancies in the Accounts Payable and Accountancy teams (20) (170)

Vacancy in the Asset Management Team (50) (50)

Additional security costs for Civic Campus 25 25

Lettings Income not achieved at Civic Centre 23 23

Council Tax Court Income (80) (90)

Maternity cover in Democratic Services 15 0

Vacancies in the Chief Executive Support team (50) (35)

Printing and Postage for Local Elections and Referendum 10 12

Vacancy Factor in the Legal Team 0 5

Legal Services Court Costs and Barristers' Fees 55 65

Legal Services Income 25 20

Staffing costs in the Business Rates team (35) (15)

Vacancies in Corporate Procurement (20) (20)

Property - Increased capitalisation of staffing costs (50) 0

Property - Income received in relation to a written off invoice (70) 0

Other Minor Variance 5 0

258 (630) (372) (282)  

46



5 

 
…Continued
Housing, Planning & Public Protection Services
Building Control - staffing pressures 57 57
Development Control - staffing & court cost underspends (77) (64)
Development Control - drop in income 20 0
Development Control - CIL monitoring income (42) (42)
CCTV - Consultants costs and equipment maintenance 27 27
Vacancies in Private Sector Housing (65) (27)

Vacancies in Community Housing 0 (35)

Regulatory Services - Legal advice 13 13

Licensing - Tables and chairs income shortfall 28 27

Licensing - Gambling Act income shortfall 17 21

Minor variances (42) (5)

162 (226) (64) (28)

Children and Learning
Children's Placements - high cost children with disabilities, 
and cost of direct payments

58 56

Children's Placements - forecast for current cohort of looked 
after children

7 46

Unaccompanied ayslym younder people - legacy scheme 41 54

Unaccompanied asylum younger people - 16/17 National 
transfer scheme

18 17

Pressure on Leaving Care accommodation placements 102 102

Staffing pressure costs in children services due to highlevels 
of agency staff and MARAT team

106 321

Children under Sect 17 and Sect 20 support costs (69) (62)

Funding pressures at the Marigold Assessment centre mostly 
attrituable to transport costs

127 143

Legal charges for children in care - high case load 159 86

Forecast on current in-house fostering placements and impact 
of adoption referral income

4 38

Home to School Education Transport - lower demand and 
contract management

(150) (150)

School Improvement staff vacancies (100) (100)

622 (319) 303 551

Health and Adult Social Care
People with a Learning Disability - Lower than estimated 
residential care placements  and direct payments

(263) (249)

People with Mental Health Needs - Higher than estimated 
residential care placements, direct payments and supported 
living

596 532

Older People - Reduced residential care packages (151) (108)

Physical and Sensory Impairment - Higher than estimated 
residential care placements

51 71

Pressure against budgeted vacancy levels 64 77

Health contribution towards Integrated commissioning (17) (24)

Underspend on service contracts (19) (78)

711 (450) 261 221
 

47



6 

…Continued
Transport, Waste & Cleansing
Street lighting - full year benefits not expected to be achieved 418 355
Traffic Signals - reduction in contractor costs due to LED 9 (24)
Street works Common Permit Scheme - S.74 penalties (469) (467)
Highways Maintenance - rechargeable works not being 169 152
Structural maintenance - footway repairs 144 184
Projects Implementation - transport & online resource costs 22 21
Environmental Maintenance - contract costs 24 (23)
Winter Maintenance - anticipated stock value at year end (92) 0
Bridge Maintenance - reactive repairs (32) (32)
Decriminalised parking - delay in new contract implementation 152 139
Decriminalised parking - estimated bad debt provision at year 
end

(83) 133

Decriminalised parking - reduction in income 717 649
Parking management - income from on- and off-street (277) (262)
Concessionary fares - based on consultant estimate 35 73
Strategic Transport Policy 11 11
Travel Centre - additional security required for site 58 60
Traffic Management - reduction in contractor costs (71) (72)
Traffic Management - fall in capitalisation 100 116
Traffic Management - transport/supplies & services (15) 0
Traffic Management - highways boundary searches (15) 0
Road Safety - changes to service delivery (52) (47)
Public Conveniences - Reduced electricity consumption (30) (30)
Waste Collection - Vacant post within the team (16) (16)
Waste Disposal - Reduced gate fee at the MBT. Balance 
transferred to the Waste Reserve.

(438) (780)

Cleansing - Service Licences no longer required (19) (19)
Environmental Care - Vacant post and associated staffing (65) (65)
Environmental Care - Revised vehicle hire contract (32) (32)
Waste Management - Income from ECC in relation to the JWA (518) (531)
Flood Defences - vacant posts (42) (42)
Flood Defences - pump station servicing & land licence 109 76
Flood Defences - maintenance 74 36
Business Support - Low staff turnover resulting in vacancy 
factor pressure

40 40

2,082 (2,266) (184) (397)
Technology

0 0 0 0

Total 4,288 (4,134) 154 350 

 
 
Non Service Variances (£2,541,000 forecast underspend) 
 
Financing Costs – (£2,535K) 
This provision is forecast to be underspent against budget at the year-end as; revised Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy (£2,035K); PWLB interest (£361K) due to reduced borrowing; reduced 
interest from in-house investments due to lower interest rates £110K; interest on short term borrowing 
(£51K); interest on Bonds (£56K); interest property funds (£200K); Schools and trust balances interest 
£51K; finance lease costs £5K; other £2K. 
 
Levies – (£6K) 
The annual levy from the Coroners Court is less than advised by the organisation when setting the 
budget. 
 

48



7 

4. Appropriations to / from Earmarked Reserves 
 
Net appropriations from Earmarked Reserves totalling £3,874,000 were agreed by Council when 
setting the 2016/17 budget in February 2016. The current outturn position allows for further in-year net 
appropriations to reserves, totalling (£4,914,114).  Total net appropriations from / (to) reserves for 
2016/17 will therefore equal (£1,040,114). 
 

• £367,950 from the Business Transformation Reserve to enable the progression of various 
projects. 

• £2,073,936 from the Earmarked Reserves for Grants carried forward from previous years 
• (£301,000) to the Specific Projects Reserve to cover identified projects 
• £250,000 from the Queensway Reserve to cover on-going revenue costs of the project 
• £30,000 from SEN Reserve to support school music 
• (£150,000) to the Rental Equalisation Reserve 
• (£434,000) to the Waste Reserve due to the MBT commissioning phase 
• (£4,364,000) reduction in the contribution to RCCO from original budget 
• (£2,387,000) appropriation to reserves at the year end  

                  
(£4,914,114) 

 
 
5. Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay (RCCO) 
 
The original budget for 2016/17 included planned revenue contributions for capital investments, via the 
use of Earmarked Reserves, of £6,472,000. Due to slippage in the capital programme, this budget is 
now £2,164,000 with the unused budget being returned to the Capital, Agresso and Social Care 
Reserves respectively. A net change of £4,308,000 has occurred, part of which relates to £56,000 
which has been allocated from contingency to fund the purchase of Bronze Cannons salvaged from 
The London. 
 
 
6. Performance against Budget savings targets for 2016/17 

 
As part of setting the Council budget for 2016/17, a schedule of Departmental and Corporate savings 
was approved totalling £10.086 million. These are required to achieve a balanced budget.  
 
A monthly exercise is in place to monitor the progress of the delivery of these savings.  A breakdown, 
by RAG status, of the Departmental Savings is shown below: 

 

Red Amber Green

Original 
Savings 

Total
Projected 
Outturn

Forecast 
Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Department
Chief Executive 25 75 1,308 1,408 1,383 (25)
People 260 3,547 1,504 5,311 5,015 (296)
Place 0 1,380 1,987 3,367 2,833 (534)

Total 285 5,002 4,799 10,086 9,231 (855)  
 
Although the current forecast is showing a shortfall of £855,000 against the required savings total of 
£10.086 million, it is currently expected that the total savings will be delivered in full as part of each 
Department’s overall budget total by the end of the financial year either by finding alternative savings or 
ensuring amber and red savings are delivered in full. 
 
 
 

49



8 

7. Overall Budget Performance – Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The HRA budget was approved by Council on 25th February 2016 and anticipated that £2,287,000 
would be appropriated to earmarked reserves in 2016/17. 
 
The closing HRA balance as at 31st March 2016 was £3,502,000 
 
. 
8. Budget Virements 
 
In line with the approved financial procedure rules all virements over £50,000 between portfolio 
services or between pay and non-pay budgets are to be approved by Cabinet. 
Below is a table showing the virements which fall within these parameters. 
 

DR CR
£ £

Virements over £50,000 in reported period 500            (500)           
Virements over £50,000 previously reported 7,018         (7,018)        
Virements approved under delegated authority 10,224       (10,224)      
Total virements 17,742       (17,742)       
 
The virements for Cabinet approval this period are: 
 

• £500,000 To reallocate Care Act Funding 
 

£500,000 Total

50



9 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

G
ro

ss
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

G
ro

ss
 

In
co

m
e

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
ir

e
m

e
n

t
L

a
te

st
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x

p
e

ct
e

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
F

o
re

ca
st

 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
B

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 
D

a
te

S
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 

D
a

te
T

o
 D

a
te

 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
 

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

Le
ad

er
4,

76
5 

(1
,0

62
)

3,
70

3 
(8

45
)

2,
85

8 
2,

85
5 

(3
)

(1
,8

36
)

(2
,0

45
)

(2
09

)
C

ul
tu

re
, 

To
ur

is
m

 a
nd

 t
he

 E
co

no
m

y
17

,4
39

 
(3

,1
78

)
14

,2
61

 
2,

29
8 

16
,5

59
 

16
,7

72
 

21
3 

15
,6

05
 

15
,8

73
 

26
8 

C
or

po
ra

te
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
12

7,
43

5 
(1

24
,7

72
)

2,
66

3 
2,

22
5 

4,
88

8 
4,

51
6 

(3
72

)
5,

17
7 

4,
69

4 
(4

83
)

H
ou

si
ng

, 
P

la
nn

in
g 

&
 P

ub
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s
13

,6
89

 
(2

,9
42

)
10

,7
47

 
13

6 
10

,8
83

 
10

,8
19

 
(6

4)
9,

92
6 

9,
81

1 
(1

15
)

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
11

6,
23

4 
(8

5,
46

4)
30

,7
70

 
1,

78
2 

32
,5

52
 

32
,8

55
 

30
3 

29
,2

98
 

29
,5

52
 

25
4 

H
ea

lth
 &

 A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
76

,0
04

 
(3

5,
09

2)
40

,9
12

 
2,

18
9 

43
,1

01
 

43
,3

62
 

26
1 

39
,5

75
 

39
,6

52
 

77
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t,
 W

as
te

 &
 C

le
an

si
ng

35
,0

73
 

(1
1,

94
3)

23
,1

30
 

2,
70

3 
25

,8
33

 
25

,6
49

 
(1

84
)

23
,9

06
 

24
,8

61
 

95
5 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
5,

85
8 

(5
,7

48
)

11
0 

(4
5)

65
 

65
 

0 
69

 
13

5 
66

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

39
6,

49
7 

(2
70

,2
01

)
12

6,
29

6 
10

,4
43

 
13

6,
73

9 
13

6,
89

3 
15

4 
12

1,
72

0 
12

2,
53

3 
81

3 

R
ev

er
sa

l o
f D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

(2
1,

71
1)

3,
06

9 
(1

8,
64

2)
(5

,9
58

)
(2

4,
60

0)
(2

4,
60

0)
0 

(2
3,

08
0)

(2
3,

08
2)

(2
)

Le
vi

es
58

5 
0 

58
5 

0 
58

5 
57

9 
(6

)
49

1 
48

5 
(6

)
F

in
an

ci
ng

 C
os

ts
20

,4
08

 
(4

,6
21

)
15

,7
87

 
(7

2)
15

,7
15

 
13

,1
80

 
(2

,5
35

)
11

,7
09

 
9,

29
3 

(2
,4

16
)

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

5,
81

6 
0 

5,
81

6 
(2

,8
32

)
2,

98
4 

2,
98

4 
0 

1,
29

7 
0 

(1
,2

97
)

P
en

si
on

s 
U

pf
ro

nt
 F

un
di

ng
(4

,7
82

)
0 

(4
,7

82
)

0 
(4

,7
82

)
(4

,7
82

)
0 

0 
0 

0 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

In
co

m
e

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

1,
12

6 
1,

12
6 

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
31

6 
(1

,5
52

)
(1

,2
36

)
(8

,8
62

)
(1

0,
09

8)
(1

2,
63

9)
(2

,5
41

)
(9

,5
83

)
(1

2,
17

8)
(2

,5
95

)

N
e

t 
O

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
39

6,
81

3 
(2

71
,7

53
)

12
5,

06
0 

1,
58

1 
12

6,
64

1 
12

4,
25

4 
(2

,3
87

)
11

2,
13

7 
11

0,
35

5 
(1

,7
82

)

G
en

er
al

 G
ra

nt
s

0 
(4

,2
52

)
(4

,2
52

)
0 

(4
,2

52
)

(4
,2

52
)

0 
(3

,5
57

)
(3

,7
01

)
(1

44
)

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

av
in

gs
(2

00
)

0 
(2

00
)

20
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

R
ev

en
ue

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 C
ap

ita
l

6,
47

2 
0 

6,
47

2 
(4

,3
08

)
2,

16
4 

2,
16

4 
0 

5,
93

3 
0 

(5
,9

33
)

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 /
 (

fro
m

) 
E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
R

es
er

ve
s

(3
,8

74
)

0 
(3

,8
74

)
2,

52
7 

(1
,3

47
)

1,
04

0 
2,

38
7 

(5
,0

58
)

(6
,6

95
)

(1
,6

37
)

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 /
 (

fro
m

) 
G

en
er

al
 R

es
er

ve
s

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 /
 (

In
co

m
e

)
39

9,
21

1 
(2

76
,0

05
)

12
3,

20
6 

0 
12

3,
20

6 
12

3,
20

6 
0 

10
9,

45
5 

99
,9

59
 

(9
,4

96
)

U
se

 o
f 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

15
11

,0
00

 
11

,0
00

 
11

,0
00

 
0 

U
se

 in
 Y

ea
r

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
B

a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

31
 M

a
rc

h
 2

01
6

11
,0

00
 

0 
11

,0
00

 
11

,0
00

 
0 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17

a
t 

28
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

01
7 

- 
P

e
ri

o
d

 1
1

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
S

u
m

m
a

ry

51



10
 

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
C

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 N
on

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 C

os
ts

3,
76

0 
(1

77
)

3,
58

3 
(8

68
)

2,
71

5 
2,

71
2 

(3
)

(1
,9

66
)

(2
,1

75
)

(2
09

)
b

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
73

 
0 

73
 

5 
78

 
78

 
0 

72
 

66
 

(6
)

c
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

99
 

0 
99

 
43

 
14

2 
14

2 
0 

13
4 

13
6 

2 
d

S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

83
3 

(8
85

)
(5

2)
(2

5)
(7

7)
(7

7)
0 

(7
6)

(7
2)

4 

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
4,

76
5 

(1
,0

62
)

3,
70

3 
(8

45
)

2,
85

8 
2,

85
5 

(3
)

(1
,8

36
)

(2
,0

45
)

(2
09

)

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
L

e
a

d
e

r
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

J 
L

a
m

b

 
 V

ir
em

en
ts

£0
00

T
ra

n
sf

er
 f

ro
m

 e
ar

m
a

rk
ed

 r
es

er
ve

s
(3

63
)

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fr

om
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
5

 
In

 y
ea

r 
vi

re
m

en
ts

(4
87

)
(8

45
)

52



11
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
L

e
a

d
e

r
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

J 
L

a
m

b
  

F
o

re
ca

st
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

 
Y

ea
r 

to
 D

at
e 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

a.
 

A
 s

av
in

g 
on

 m
on

ey
 m

ar
ke

t f
ee

s 
ar

e 
of

fs
et

tin
g 

th
e 

D
ilu

tio
n 

Le
vy

 c
ha

rg
e 

 
B

ud
ge

ts
 fo

r 
S

al
ar

ie
s,

 C
or

po
ra

te
 In

iti
at

iv
es

, a
nd

 A
ud

it 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 u
nd

er
sp

en
t. 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
ad

-h
oc

 a
nd

 h
ig

h 
va

lu
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
so

m
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
co

re
 c

os
ts

 it
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

fil
e 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
s 

fo
r 

P
en

si
on

s 
B

ac
kf

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 In
iti

at
iv

es
 m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
. 

b.
 

 
 

 

c.
 

 
 

 

d.
 

 
 

 

53



12
 S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
A

rt
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
70

6 
(3

64
)

34
2 

4 
34

6 
34

6 
0 

33
8 

33
2 

(6
)

b
A

m
en

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
2,

96
4 

(3
86

)
2,

57
8 

82
9 

3,
40

7 
3,

57
1 

16
4 

3,
14

4 
3,

42
0 

27
6 

c
C

ul
tu

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
10

4 
(6

)
98

 
0 

98
 

98
 

0 
90

 
94

 
4 

d
Li

br
ar

y 
S

er
vi

ce
3,

78
9 

(3
90

)
3,

39
9 

57
6 

3,
97

5 
4,

08
1 

10
6 

3,
83

6 
3,

95
1 

11
5 

e
M

us
eu

m
s 

A
nd

 A
rt

 G
al

le
ry

1,
30

3 
(6

7)
1,

23
6 

10
7 

1,
34

3 
1,

34
3 

0 
1,

25
2 

1,
25

5 
3 

f
P

ar
ks

 A
nd

 A
m

en
iti

es
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
2,

73
6 

(6
67

)
2,

06
9 

(6
39

)
1,

43
0 

1,
48

0 
50

 
1,

21
3 

1,
19

1 
(2

2)
g

S
po

rt
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
17

9 
(4

5)
13

4 
1 

13
5 

13
5 

0 
12

4 
12

9 
5 

h
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
62

7 
(1

44
)

48
3 

1,
04

8 
1,

53
1 

1,
34

9 
(1

82
)

1,
47

2 
1,

33
7 

(1
35

)
i

S
ou

th
en

d 
Th

ea
tr

es
57

5 
(1

7)
55

8 
17

8 
73

6 
73

6 
0 

70
9 

70
4 

(5
)

j
R

es
or

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
ie

r 
an

d 
F

or
es

ho
re

 
an

d 
S

ou
th

en
d 

M
ar

in
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
en

tr
e

3,
41

0 
(9

99
)

2,
41

1 
(4

92
)

1,
91

9 
2,

05
2 

13
3 

1,
75

8 
1,

93
4 

17
6 

k
To

ur
is

m
26

7 
(1

1)
25

6 
49

 
30

5 
27

7 
(2

8)
28

2 
26

0 
(2

2)
l

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

36
3 

0 
36

3 
22

8 
59

1 
59

1 
0 

66
1 

62
6 

(3
5)

m
To

w
n 

C
en

tr
e

21
1 

(5
8)

15
3 

(3
)

15
0 

12
0 

(3
0)

13
9 

10
3 

(3
6)

n
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e
20

5 
(2

4)
18

1 
16

2 
34

3 
34

3 
0 

38
8 

34
3 

(4
5)

o
Q

ue
en

sw
ay

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
0 

0 
0 

25
0 

25
0 

25
0 

0 
19

9 
19

4 
(5

)

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
17

,4
39

 
(3

,1
78

)
14

,2
61

 
2,

29
8 

16
,5

59
 

16
,7

72
 

21
3 

15
,6

05
 

15
,8

73
 

26
8 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

u
lt

u
re

, 
T

o
u

ri
sm

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
co

n
o

m
y

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
A

 H
o

ll
a

n
d

 
          

  

V
ir

em
en

ts
£0

00

Tr
an

sf
er

 fr
om

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
es

38
7 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fro

m
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
30

3 
In

 y
ea

r v
ire

m
en

ts
1,

60
8 

2,
29

8 

54



13
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

u
lt

u
re

, 
T

o
u

ri
sm

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
co

n
o

m
y

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
A

 H
o

ll
a

n
d

  
F

o
re

ca
st

 O
u

tt
u

rn
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 
 

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 

a.
 

 
 

 

b.
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ta
ff

in
g,

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

cu
rr

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 s
et

tin
g 

up
 th

e 
ne

w
 S

ou
th

en
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

in
 

in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 fu
ll 

ye
ar

 o
f r

ev
is

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y.

 
 

 
A

 w
et

 S
pr

in
g/

S
um

m
er

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
hi

gh
er

 le
ve

ls
 o

f r
el

ie
f s

ta
ff

 a
nd

 o
ve

rt
im

e.
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ta
ff

in
g,

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

cu
rr

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 s
et

tin
g 

up
 th

e 
ne

w
 S

ou
th

en
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

in
 

in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n.
 

 
c.

 
 

 
 

d.
 

T
he

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tr
ac

t a
t t

he
 F

or
um

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
le

t f
or

 lo
ng

er
 

th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

F
or

um
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 a
 2

 y
ea

r 
de

la
y 

to
 r

en
eg

ot
ia

te
 th

e 
co

st
s.

 T
hi

s 
m

at
te

r 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

ea
lt 

w
ith

 b
y 

th
e 

F
or

um
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
pa

ny
. 

 
T

he
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

on
tr

ac
t a

t t
he

 F
or

um
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

le
t f

or
 lo

ng
er

 
th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
F

or
um

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
pa

ny
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 a

 2
 y

ea
r 

de
la

y 
to

 r
en

eg
ot

ia
te

 th
e 

co
st

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
at

te
r 

is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 b

y 
th

e 
F

or
um

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

. 

e.
 

 
 

 

f. 
A

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 v
is

ito
r 

nu
m

be
rs

 to
 th

e 
go

lf 
co

ur
se

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 o

ut
do

or
 s

po
rt

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ha
s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 in
co

m
e.

  
 

 

g.
 

 
 

 

h.
 

S
av

in
g 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
te

nd
er

ed
 le

is
ur

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tr
ac

t 
 

S
av

in
g 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
te

nd
er

ed
 le

is
ur

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tr
ac

t 

i. 
 

 
 

j. 
Lo

ss
 o

f i
nc

om
e 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 P
ie

r 
tr

ai
n 

be
in

g 
ou

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 d

ue
 to

 
re

pa
irs

 o
f t

he
 p

ile
 c

ap
s 

du
ri

ng
 th

e 
bu

si
es

t s
ea

so
n 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

 
Lo

ss
 o

f i
nc

om
e 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 P
ie

r 
tr

ai
n 

be
in

g 
ou

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 d

ue
 to

 
re

pa
irs

 o
f t

he
 p

ile
 c

ap
s 

du
ri

ng
 th

e 
bu

si
es

t s
ea

so
n 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

k.
 

V
ac

an
cy

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

am
. 

 
V

ac
an

cy
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

te
am

. 

l. 
 

 
 

m
. 

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
pa

rt
 y

ea
r 

va
ca

nc
y 

in
 th

e 
te

am
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
co

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r.

 
 

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
pa

rt
 y

ea
r 

va
ca

nc
y 

in
 th

e 
te

am
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
co

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r.

 

n.
 

 
 

 

o.
 

 
 

 

55



14
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
C

em
et

er
ie

s 
an

d 
C

re
m

at
or

iu
m

1,
43

6 
(2

,1
98

)
(7

62
)

(9
6)

(8
58

)
(1

,0
08

)
(1

50
)

(7
77

)
(9

82
)

(2
05

)
b

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
en

tr
e

2,
90

2 
(2

,8
36

)
66

 
10

6 
17

2 
11

6 
(5

6)
16

4 
95

 
(6

9)
c

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

B
en

ef
it

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

(2
3)

(2
3)

d
D

ia
l A

 R
id

e
11

7 
(1

9)
98

 
19

 
11

7 
11

7 
0 

10
6 

10
6 

0 
e

S
up

po
rt

 t
o 

M
ay

or
21

8 
0 

21
8 

6 
22

4 
23

4 
10

 
20

8 
21

7 
9 

f
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
B

en
ef

it 
A

dm
in

2,
67

7 
(1

,1
95

)
1,

48
2 

61
 

1,
54

3 
1,

64
3 

10
0 

1,
42

2 
1,

52
3 

10
1 

g
R

en
t 

B
en

ef
it 

P
ay

m
en

ts
98

,9
47

 
(9

9,
05

0)
(1

03
)

0 
(1

03
)

(1
03

)
0 

(9
0)

83
 

17
3 

h
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

31
7 

0 
31

7 
(2

1)
29

6 
28

1 
(1

5)
26

8 
25

1 
(1

7)
i

S
up

po
rt

 T
o 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r
80

2 
0 

80
2 

24
 

82
6 

82
6 

0 
75

9 
76

1 
2 

j
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
2,

20
8 

(2
,2

39
)

(3
1)

48
 

17
 

17
 

0 
18

 
37

 
19

 
k

P
eo

pl
e 

&
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
53

2 
(5

27
)

5 
(1

)
4 

(1
0)

(1
4)

4 
(2

6)
(3

0)
l

Ti
ck

fie
ld

 T
ra

in
in

g 
C

en
tr

e
38

6 
(3

83
)

3 
10

 
13

 
13

 
0 

15
 

(6
)

(2
1)

m
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

22
7 

(2
40

)
(1

3)
(1

14
)

(1
27

)
(1

47
)

(2
0)

(1
16

)
(1

45
)

(2
9)

n
V

eh
ic

le
 F

le
et

72
0 

(7
41

)
(2

1)
(6

9)
(9

0)
(9

0)
0 

(8
2)

(7
6)

6 
o

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
P

ay
ab

le
25

7 
(2

56
)

1 
0 

1 
(1

9)
(2

0)
5 

(2
0)

(2
5)

p
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

34
0 

(3
51

)
(1

1)
55

 
44

 
44

 
0 

41
 

33
 

(8
)

q
A

cc
ou

nt
an

cy
2,

72
7 

(2
,7

42
)

(1
5)

(3
01

)
(3

16
)

(3
16

)
0 

(3
11

)
(3

45
)

(3
4)

r
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

43
8 

(4
34

)
4 

30
 

34
 

(1
6)

(5
0)

34
 

(1
8)

(5
2)

s
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

&
 C

or
po

ra
te

 F
ra

ud
94

8 
(9

40
)

8 
0 

8 
8 

0 
10

 
(7

0)
(8

0)
t

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
2,

90
9 

(2
,8

43
)

66
 

26
1 

32
7 

37
5 

48
 

39
0 

44
0 

50
 

u
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
en

tr
es

 a
nd

 C
lu

b 
60

54
 

(1
)

53
 

1,
38

3 
1,

43
6 

1,
43

6 
0 

1,
42

9 
1,

42
9 

0 
v

C
or

po
ra

te
 a

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l E

st
at

es
79

4 
(2

,5
39

)
(1

,7
45

)
57

9 
(1

,1
66

)
(1

,1
66

)
0 

(1
,0

45
)

(1
,0

28
)

17
 

w
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
A

dm
in

1,
35

5 
(4

81
)

87
4 

0 
87

4 
79

4 
(8

0)
80

1 
70

3 
(9

8)
x

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

43
0 

0 
43

0 
0 

43
0 

44
5 

15
 

39
6 

40
8 

12
 

y
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l S

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e
1,

08
4 

(1
,2

72
)

(1
88

)
(5

7)
(2

45
)

(2
95

)
(5

0)
(2

27
)

(2
74

)
(4

7)
z

E
le

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 E

le
ct

or
al

 R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n
40

9 
0 

40
9 

25
 

43
4 

44
4 

10
 

41
5 

42
3 

8 
aa

In
su

ra
nc

e
18

5 
(2

43
)

(5
8)

1 
(5

7)
(5

7)
0 

15
4 

13
8 

(1
6)

ab
Lo

ca
l L

an
d 

C
ha

rg
es

27
9 

(3
18

)
(3

9)
0 

(3
9)

(3
9)

0 
(3

2)
(4

4)
(1

2)
ac

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

17
3 

(1
,2

37
)

(6
4)

21
 

(4
3)

37
 

80
 

(4
5)

35
 

80
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
A

 M
o

ri
n

g

56



15
 

ad
N

on
 D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

34
7 

(3
04

)
43

 
(1

)
42

 
7 

(3
5)

18
 

(2
9)

(4
7)

ae
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
75

6 
(7

48
)

8 
26

6 
27

4 
25

4 
(2

0)
26

5 
21

0 
(5

5)
af

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

74
9 

(6
35

)
11

4 
(1

0)
10

4 
(1

6)
(1

20
)

32
5 

23
9 

(8
6)

ag
M

em
be

r 
E

xp
en

se
s

71
2 

0 
71

2 
0 

71
2 

70
7 

(5
)

65
5 

64
9 

(6
)

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
12

7,
43

5 
(1

24
,7

72
)

2,
66

3 
2,

22
5 

4,
88

8 
4,

51
6 

(3
72

)
5,

17
7 

4,
69

4 
(4

83
)

 
 

V
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
£
0

0
0

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

fr
o
m

 e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e
se

rv
e

s
(8

3
)

A
llo

ca
tio

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o
n
tin

g
e
n
cy

4
0
 

In
 y

e
a

r 
vi

re
m

e
n
ts

2
,2

6
8
 

2
,2

2
5
 

 
                    

57



16
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
A

 M
o

ri
n

g
   

F
o

re
ca

st
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

 
Y

ea
r 

to
 D

at
e 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

a.
 

D
ur

in
g 

D
ec

em
be

r,
 J

an
ua

ry
  &

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 c

re
m

at
io

ns
 h

as
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 e

ar
lie

r 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 
 

S
al

ar
y 

an
d 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 A
ct

 F
un

er
al

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
. R

ep
ai

rs
 to

 th
e 

bo
ile

r 
ar

e 
ca

us
in

g 
a 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

th
e 

R
ep

ai
rs

 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 b

ud
ge

t h
ow

ev
er

 h
ig

he
r 

C
re

m
at

io
n 

fig
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

la
st

 
qu

ar
te

r 
ha

ve
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 in

co
m

e.
 

b.
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 th
e 

V
eo

lia
 c

on
tr

ac
t a

nd
 s

ta
ff

 
va

ca
nc

ie
s 

ar
e 

of
fs

et
tin

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l I

T
 c

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

iti
ze

ns
 A

cc
ou

nt
 

 
A

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
du

e 
to

 u
nb

ud
ge

te
d 

IT
 c

os
ts

 in
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 te
am

 is
 

be
in

g 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

va
ca

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
er

 in
co

m
e 

th
an

 p
re

di
ct

ed
.  

 

c.
 

 
 

O
ve

rp
a

ym
en

ts
 r

ep
ai

d 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 p
rio

r 
ye

ar
s 

d.
 

 
 

 

e.
 

O
ve

rs
pe

nd
 o

n 
P

or
te

r’s
 p

re
m

is
es

 b
ud

ge
t d

ue
 to

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

co
st

s 
w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
t o

f 2
01

5/
16

 y
e

ar
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 o
ve

rt
im

e 
co

st
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ch
au

ff
eu

r 
 

 

f. 
F

or
ec

as
t o

ve
rs

pe
nd

s 
on

 a
ge

nc
y 

co
st

s 
 

A
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 e

m
pl

o
ye

es
’ b

ud
ge

t d
ue

 to
 o

ve
rt

im
e 

an
d 

ag
en

cy
 

g.
 

 
 

P
er

io
d 

11
 m

on
ito

re
d 

po
si

tio
n 

h.
 

S
ta

ff
 V

ac
an

ci
es

 
 

 

i. 
 

 
 

j. 
 

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 in
co

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr

om
 S

uf
fo

lk
 C

C
 to

 fu
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
or

k 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ra
w

n 
do

w
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

B
us

in
es

s 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

H
R

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
T

al
en

t P
oo

l. 
S

om
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ar
e 

no
 lo

ng
er

 s
ub

sc
rib

in
g 

to
 th

e 
H

R
 fu

nc
tio

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 a

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 in

co
m

e.
 

k.
 

In
co

m
e 

fo
r 

C
or

po
ra

te
 T

ra
in

in
g 

 
In

co
m

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 p

ro
fil

ed
 in

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
. I

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 th
at

 
m

or
e 

co
st

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 p

ar
tia

lly
 o

ff
se

t 
th

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
l. 

 
 

In
co

m
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

T
ic

kf
ie

ld
 C

en
tr

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 b

ud
ge

t b
ut

 it
 is

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

st
s 

(r
el

at
in

g 
to

 a
 p

os
si

bl
e 

V
A

T
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t)

. 
m

. 
V

ac
an

cy
 in

 th
e 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 

 
 

n.
 

 
 

o.
 

S
ta

ff
 v

ac
an

cy
 

 
 

58



17
 

 
F

o
re

ca
st

 O
u

tt
u

rn
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 
 

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 

p.
 

 
 

 

q.
 

 
 

P
os

iti
on

s 
in

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

fil
le

d 
bu

t t
he

re
 a

re
 s

til
l 

va
ca

nc
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

C
on

tr
ol

 te
am

 
r.

 
S

ta
ff

 V
ac

an
ci

es
 

 
 

s.
 

 
 

A
n 

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 d

ue
 to

 s
ta

ff 
va

ca
nc

ie
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 p
ar

tia
lly

 o
ffs

et
 b

y 
an

 
ov

er
sp

en
d 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l e
xp

er
tis

e 
in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s.

  I
nc

om
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
 d

at
e 

is
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 w
he

n 
se

tti
ng

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 

t. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ec

ur
ity

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
iv

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ea

rli
er

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 le

d 
to

 a
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

.  
In

co
m

e 
ra

is
ed

  i
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 

bu
dg

et
ed

 

 
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s,

 th
e 

fu
rn

itu
re

 b
ud

ge
t i

s 
 u

nd
er

sp
en

t b
ut

 is
 b

ei
ng

 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

an
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 o
n 

C
on

tr
ac

t C
le

an
in

g,
 S

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 R

ep
ai

rs
 &

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 
u.

 
 

 
 

v.
 

 
 

 

w
. 

M
or

e 
in

co
m

e 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 c
ou

rt
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ra
is

ed
 th

an
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 

 
M

or
e 

co
ur

t p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

iti
at

ed
 th

an
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 w
he

n 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 w
as

 s
et

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 o
ff

se
t b

y 
a 

hi
gh

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

B
ad

 D
eb

t a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r.
 T

hi
s 

is
 m

iti
ga

tin
g 

an
 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
on

 A
ge

nc
y 

S
ta

ff
 

x.
 

P
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

bu
dg

et
 d

ue
 to

 e
xt

ra
 s

ta
ff

 to
 c

ov
er

 M
at

er
ni

ty
 L

ea
ve

 
 

  

y.
 

S
ta

ff
 v

ac
an

ci
es

 
 

 

z.
 

P
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 th
e 

po
st

ag
e 

an
d 

pr
in

tin
g 

bu
dg

et
s 

du
e 

to
 lo

ca
l e

le
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 
re

fe
re

nd
um

 in
 y

ea
r 

 
 

aa
. 

 
 

V
ac

an
ci

es
 d

ur
in

g 
ye

ar
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

fil
le

d 

ab
. 

 
 

H
ig

he
r 

in
co

m
e 

to
 d

at
e 

th
an

 fo
re

ca
st

 in
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

.  
T

hi
s 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

ac
. 

C
ou

rt
 C

os
ts

 a
nd

 B
ar

ris
te

rs
 F

ee
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
ca

se
s 

ar
e 

hi
gh

er
 

th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
at

 th
is

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

.  
It 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
  t

he
 

in
co

m
e 

bu
dg

et
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

dd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

pr
es

su
re

 

 
 

ad
. 

V
ac

an
t h

ou
rs

 in
 th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

R
at

es
 te

am
 

 
 

ae
. 

U
nd

er
sp

en
d 

on
 a

 v
ac

an
t p

os
t. 

 
 

af
. 

T
hi

s 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 is
 d

ue
 to

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ee
n 

w
rit

te
n 

of
f a

nd
 a

 r
is

e 
in

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
lis

at
io

n 
of

 s
al

ar
ie

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 r

ev
en

ue
 s

ta
ff

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

 
T

hi
s 

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 is

 d
ue

 to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
co

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 h

ad
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 b
ee

n 
w

rit
te

n 
of

f a
nd

 a
 r

is
e 

in
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

lis
at

io
n 

of
 s

al
ar

ie
s 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 r
ev

en
ue

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
co

st
s.

 
ag

. 
A

n 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

M
em

be
rs

 N
at

io
na

l I
ns

ur
an

ce
 b

ud
ge

t 
 

 

 
 

 
 

59



18
 

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
S

tr
at

eg
y 

&
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

H
ou

si
ng

25
6 

(2
55

)
1 

0 
1 

1 
0 

0 
0 

0 
b

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r 

H
ou

si
ng

4,
13

9 
(5

87
)

3,
55

2 
97

 
3,

64
9 

3,
58

4 
(6

5)
3,

34
5 

3,
28

3 
(6

2)
c

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 &

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s
1,

27
6 

(5
14

)
76

2 
16

7 
92

9 
92

9 
0 

86
7 

86
7 

0 
d

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e

3,
45

6 
0 

3,
45

6 
(3

16
)

3,
14

0 
3,

09
8 

(4
2)

2,
87

3 
2,

83
9 

(3
4)

e
C

lo
se

d 
C

irc
ui

t 
Te

le
vi

si
on

51
7 

(3
2)

48
5 

10
 

49
5 

52
2 

27
 

46
5 

46
7 

2 
f

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y
25

1 
(3

2)
21

9 
3 

22
2 

22
2 

0 
19

9 
17

8 
(2

1)
g

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tr

ol
73

2 
(3

97
)

33
5 

(1
)

33
4 

39
1 

57
 

29
4 

36
1 

67
 

h
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
on

tr
ol

82
9 

(5
69

)
26

0 
(1

)
25

9 
16

7 
(9

2)
24

1 
15

3 
(8

8)
i

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
nn

in
g

41
2 

0 
41

2 
0 

41
2 

40
5 

(7
)

51
4 

51
1 

(3
)

j
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
B

us
in

es
s

70
7 

(1
1)

69
6 

63
 

75
9 

77
2 

13
 

69
7 

70
8 

11
 

k
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Li

ce
ns

in
g

57
0 

(4
83

)
87

 
31

2 
39

9 
44

4 
45

 
98

 
18

5 
87

 
l

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

23
6 

0 
23

6 
(2

11
)

25
 

25
 

0 
97

 
38

 
(5

9)
m

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

30
8 

(6
2)

24
6 

13
 

25
9 

25
9 

0 
23

6 
22

1 
(1

5)

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
13

,6
89

 
(2

,9
42

)
10

,7
47

 
13

6 
10

,8
83

 
10

,8
19

 
(6

4)
9,

92
6 

9,
81

1 
(1

15
)

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
H

o
u

si
n

g
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 P

u
b

li
c 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
M

 F
le

w
it

t

 
 V

ir
em

en
ts

£0
00

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
33

3 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fr
om

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

7 
In

 y
ea

r 
vi

re
m

en
ts

(2
04

)
13

6 

60



19
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
H

o
u

si
n

g
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 P

u
b

li
c 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
M

 F
le

w
it

t
  

F
o

re
ca

st
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

 
Y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

a.
 

 
 

 

b.
 

V
ac

an
ci

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

ith
in

 P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r 

H
ou

si
ng

. 
 

 

c.
 

 
 

 

d.
 

U
nd

er
sp

en
d 

on
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 
 

 

e.
 

C
C

T
V

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 a
nd

 a
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

br
ou

gh
t i

n 
to

 w
or

k 
on

 s
pe

ci
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

 
 

f. 
 

 
 

g.
 

P
re

ss
ur

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

st
af

fin
g 

co
st

s 
 

C
ur

re
nt

 v
ar

ia
nc

es
 a

re
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
ut

tu
rn

 

h.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
on

tr
ol

 h
as

 u
nd

er
sp

en
ds

 o
n 

bu
dg

et
ed

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
co

st
s 

an
d 

co
ur

t 
co

st
s/

le
ga

l f
ee

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 to
ta

l £
77

k.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 o
ff

se
t b

y 
a 

dr
op

 in
 fo

re
ca

st
 in

co
m

e 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

£2
0k

. S
ep

ar
at

el
y,

 
in

co
m

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
w

or
k 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 L

ev
y 

(C
IL

) 
cr

ea
tin

g 
a 

su
rp

lu
s 

of
 £

42
k.

 

 
C

ur
re

nt
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 a
re

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 

i. 
 

 
 

j. 
Le

ga
l a

dv
ic

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 n
at

io
na

l c
ou

rt
 c

as
e 

ag
ai

ns
t a

 c
om

pa
ny

. 
 

Le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f a
 n

at
io

na
l c

ou
rt

 c
as

e 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 c

om
pa

ny
. 

k.
 

In
co

m
e 

fr
om

 T
ab

le
s 

&
 C

ha
irs

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 a

nd
 G

am
bl

in
g 

A
ct

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 is

 
be

lo
w

 b
ud

ge
t. 

 
In

co
m

e 
fr

om
 T

ab
le

s 
&

 C
ha

irs
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 a
nd

 G
am

bl
in

g 
A

ct
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 is
 

be
lo

w
 b

ud
ge

t. 

l. 
 

 
C

ur
re

nt
 V

ac
an

ci
es

 

m
. 

 
 

 

  

61



20
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 I
n

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

2,
54

9 
(2

,1
66

)
38

3 
1 

38
4 

28
7 

(9
7)

34
7 

24
5 

(1
02

)
b

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 S

pe
ci

al
 N

ee
ds

2,
04

7 
(7

39
)

1,
30

8 
30

4 
1,

61
2 

1,
64

4 
32

 
1,

49
1 

1,
52

1 
30

 
c

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

 
C

ar
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

10
,9

93
 

(9
,5

62
)

1,
43

1 
(1

1)
1,

42
0 

1,
42

0 
0 

1,
30

1 
1,

29
6 

(5
)

d
C

hi
ld

re
n 

F
ie

ld
w

or
k 

S
er

vi
ce

s
4,

31
1 

0 
4,

31
1 

44
0 

4,
75

1 
4,

84
7 

96
 

4,
39

3 
4,

50
0 

10
7 

e
C

hi
ld

re
n 

F
os

te
rin

g 
an

d 
A

do
pt

io
n

6,
79

6 
(2

52
)

6,
54

4 
38

9 
6,

93
3 

7,
22

9 
29

6 
6,

43
4 

6,
64

2 
20

8 
f

Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
1,

44
4 

(3
97

)
1,

04
7 

(9
4)

95
3 

95
3 

0 
85

2 
87

9 
27

 
g

O
th

er
 E

du
ca

tio
n

72
8 

(5
80

)
14

8 
29

 
17

7 
17

7 
0 

22
1 

15
7 

(6
4)

h
P

riv
at

e 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t

4,
21

1 
(1

56
)

4,
05

5 
20

0 
4,

25
5 

4,
26

2 
7 

3,
95

0 
3,

96
8 

18
 

i
C

hi
ld

re
n 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

1,
01

6 
(5

9)
95

7 
36

5 
1,

32
2 

1,
40

1 
79

 
1,

22
6 

1,
28

5 
59

 
j

C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

pe
ci

al
is

t 
P

ro
je

ct
s

30
4 

(1
89

)
11

5 
(3

9)
76

 
26

1 
18

5 
10

3 
13

2 
29

 
k

S
ch

oo
l S

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 P

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s
20

,2
79

 
(1

2,
30

2)
7,

97
7 

85
 

8,
06

2 
7,

81
2 

(2
50

)
6,

57
9 

6,
64

4 
65

 

l
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
4,

20
5 

(1
,7

11
)

2,
49

4 
11

3 
2,

60
7 

2,
56

2 
(4

5)
2,

40
1 

2,
28

3 
(1

18
)

m
S

ch
oo

ls
 D

el
eg

at
ed

 B
ud

ge
ts

57
,3

51
 

(5
7,

35
1)

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

n
A

ge
 1

4-
19

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
11

6,
23

4 
(8

5,
46

4)
30

,7
70

 
1,

78
2 

32
,5

52
 

32
,8

55
 

30
3 

29
,2

98
 

29
,5

52
 

25
4 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
J 

C
o

u
rt

e
n

a
y

 
 V

ir
em

en
ts

£0
00

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
1,

09
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fr

om
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
92

9 
In

 y
ea

r 
vi

re
m

en
ts

(2
40

)
1,

78
2 

62



21
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
J 

C
o

u
rt

e
n

a
y

  
F

o
re

ca
st

 O
u

tt
u

rn
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 
 

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 

a.
 

U
nd

er
sp

en
d 

du
e 

to
 v

ac
an

ci
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
 

 

b.
 

C
ur

re
nt

 c
oh

or
t o

f L
D

D
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

 p
a

ym
en

ts
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

re
 

ov
er

sp
en

di
ng

. 
 

 

c.
 

 
 

 

d.
 

O
ve

rs
pe

nd
 d

ue
 to

 c
os

t o
f A

ge
nc

y 
S

oc
ia

l W
or

ke
rs

 in
 fr

on
tli

ne
 c

hi
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ro
le

s 
in

 C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 F
irs

t C
on

ta
ct

 te
am

s.
 T

ea
m

s 
ar

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 

ru
n 

w
ith

 V
ac

an
ci

es
 d

ue
 to

 c
as

el
oa

ds
. 

 
O

ve
rs

pe
nd

 d
ue

 to
 c

os
t o

f A
ge

nc
y 

S
oc

ia
l W

or
ke

rs
 in

 fr
on

tli
ne

 c
hi

ld
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
ro

le
s 

in
 C

ar
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 F

irs
t C

on
ta

ct
 te

am
s.

 T
ea

m
s 

ar
e 

un
ab

le
 to

 
ru

n 
w

ith
 V

ac
an

ci
es

 d
ue

 to
 c

as
el

oa
ds

. 
e.

 
T

he
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
is

 m
os

tly
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 a
 fo

re
ca

st
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 o
n 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r 

le
av

in
g 

ca
re

, a
nd

 th
e 

M
ar

ig
ol

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
ce

nt
re

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
os

tly
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 tr
an

sp
or

t c
os

ts
.  

 
T

he
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
is

 m
os

tly
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 a
 fo

re
ca

st
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 o
n 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r 

le
av

in
g 

ca
re

, a
nd

 th
e 

M
ar

ig
ol

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
ce

nt
re

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
os

tly
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 tr
an

sp
or

t c
os

ts
. 

 

f. 
 

 
 

g.
 

 
 

 

h.
 

C
ur

re
nt

 c
oh

or
t o

f 5
3 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 P

V
I p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 is

 
fo

re
ca

st
 to

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
, W

ith
in

 th
is

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
22

 r
es

id
en

tia
l p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 1
3 

a 
ye

ar
 a

go
.  

T
hi

s 
bu

dg
et

 r
em

ai
n 

vo
la

til
e 

an
d 

su
sc

ep
tib

le
 to

 
su

dd
en

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 d

em
an

d 
fr

om
 h

ig
h 

co
st

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
ec

ur
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
. 

 
C

ur
re

nt
 c

oh
or

t o
f 5

3 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 P
V

I p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 is
 

fo
re

ca
st

 to
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

, W
ith

in
 th

is
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

22
 r

es
id

en
tia

l p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 1

3 
a 

ye
ar

 a
go

.  
T

hi
s 

bu
dg

et
 r

em
ai

n 
vo

la
til

e 
an

d 
su

sc
ep

tib
le

 to
 

su
dd

en
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 d
em

an
d 

fr
om

 h
ig

h 
co

st
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

ec
ur

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

. 
i. 

£4
0k

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ne
w

ly
 fo

rm
ed

 M
A

R
A

T
 te

am
. A

 fu
rt

he
r 

pr
es

su
re

 a
ga

in
st

 b
ud

ge
t v

ac
an

cy
 fa

ct
or

 is
 a

ls
o 

pr
es

en
t i

n 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 te

am
 a

re
 th

e
y 

ar
e 

ru
nn

in
g 

at
 fu

ll 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t. 

 
 

j. 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 le
ga

l r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

in
 c

hi
ld

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ca
se

s,
 li

nk
ed

 to
 h

ig
h 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e.

  T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
is

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 c

ou
ld

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
s 

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r 

th
e 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
w

as
 £

20
0k

 a
nd

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
12

0 
ca

se
s.

 

 
 

k.
 

A
s 

la
st

 y
ea

r,
 th

er
e 

is
 fo

re
ca

st
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
of

 £
15

0k
 fo

r 
ho

m
e 

to
 s

ch
oo

l 
tr

an
sp

or
t c

os
ts

, h
ow

ev
er

 c
os

ts
 m

ay
 s

ta
rt

 to
 r

is
e 

on
ce

 th
e 

gr
ow

th
 in

 p
up

il 
nu

m
be

rs
 r

ea
ch

es
 th

e 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 p

ha
se

.  
A

 £
10

0k
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
is

 a
ls

o 
fo

re
ca

st
 in

 th
e 

S
ch

oo
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 d

ue
 to

 v
ac

an
ci

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
. 

 
 

l. 
U

nd
er

sp
en

d 
du

e 
to

 a
 v

ac
an

t p
os

t 
 

 

63



22
 

m
. 

 
 

 

n.
 

 
 

 

64



23
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
A

du
lt 

S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
60

0 
(5

93
)

7 
(1

)
6 

(1
1)

(1
7)

7 
(1

4)
(2

1)

b
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Te

am
2,

62
8 

(2
,6

85
)

(5
7)

(2
0)

(7
7)

(1
47

)
(7

0)
(7

1)
(1

10
)

(3
9)

c
S

tr
at

eg
y 

&
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2,
29

8 
(2

,3
28

)
(3

0)
12

5 
95

 
14

7 
52

 
95

 
71

 
(2

4)
d

P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
15

,8
78

 
(1

,6
29

)
14

,2
49

 
25

8 
14

,5
07

 
14

,2
44

 
(2

63
)

13
,2

99
 

13
,0

75
 

(2
24

)
e

P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 N
ee

ds
3,

62
7 

(1
65

)
3,

46
2 

23
7 

3,
69

9 
4,

29
5 

59
6 

3,
39

1 
3,

96
2 

57
1 

f
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e

32
,2

69
 

(1
4,

94
0)

17
,3

29
 

(3
56

)
16

,9
73

 
16

,8
22

 
(1

51
)

15
,5

62
 

15
,4

70
 

(9
2)

g
O

th
er

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

2,
02

1 
(6

65
)

1,
35

6 
1,

59
0 

2,
94

6 
3,

01
0 

64
 

2,
73

8 
2,

74
0 

2 
h

P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 P

hy
si

ca
l o

r 
S

en
so

ry
 

Im
pa

irm
en

t
5,

18
2 

(1
,0

03
)

4,
17

9 
60

 
4,

23
9 

4,
29

0 
51

 
3,

88
8 

3,
80

1 
(8

7)

i
S

er
vi

ce
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

&
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n
14

9 
(6

9)
80

 
(2

)
78

 
77

 
(1

)
72

 
71

 
(1

)
j

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

8,
51

6 
(8

,3
79

)
13

7 
19

9 
33

6 
33

6 
0 

31
0 

31
0 

0 
k

D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 A

ct
io

n 
Te

am
2,

52
9 

(2
,3

73
)

15
6 

99
 

25
5 

25
5 

0 
24

3 
24

3 
0 

l
Y

ou
ng

 P
er

so
ns

 D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 T

ea
m

30
7 

(2
63

)
44

 
0 

44
 

44
 

0 
41

 
33

 
(8

)

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
76

,0
04

 
(3

5,
09

2)
40

,9
12

 
2,

18
9 

43
,1

01
 

43
,3

62
 

26
1 

39
,5

75
 

39
,6

52
 

77
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

L
 S

a
lt

e
r

 
V

ir
em

en
ts

£0
00

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
78

2 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fr
om

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

1,
21

7 
In

 y
ea

r 
vi

re
m

en
ts

19
0 

2,
18

9 

 
   

65



24
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

L
 S

a
lt

e
r

 
  

F
o

re
ca

st
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

 
Y

ea
r 

to
 D

at
e 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

a.
 

H
ea

lth
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
 

 

b.
 

M
os

tly
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
va

ca
nc

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

te
am

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
 

 

c.
 

In
 y

ea
r 

pr
es

su
re

 a
ga

in
st

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
co

st
s 

 
 

d.
 

F
or

ec
as

t u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

on
 r

es
id

en
tia

l c
ar

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
ay

ca
re

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 
 

e.
 

F
or

ec
as

t o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 o

n 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l c
ar

e,
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 li
vi

ng
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

 
F

or
ec

as
t o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e,

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 li

vi
ng

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
 

pa
ym

en
ts

. 
f. 

F
or

ec
as

t u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

on
 r

es
id

en
tia

l c
ar

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
 

 

g.
 

T
ea

m
s 

ar
e 

ru
nn

in
g 

at
 fu

ll 
st

af
fin

g 
le

ve
ls

 w
hi

ch
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
ca

us
in

g 
a 

sl
ig

ht
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

ag
ai

ns
t b

ud
ge

te
d 

va
ca

nc
y 

le
ve

ls
. 

 
 

h.
 

F
or

ec
as

t o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 o

n 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l c
ar

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
 

 

i. 
 

 
 

j. 
 

 
 

k.
 

 
 

 

l. 
 

 
 

66



25
 S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

9,
61

1 
(2

,2
29

)
7,

38
2 

35
2 

7,
73

4 
7,

92
8 

19
4 

7,
11

8 
7,

46
0 

34
2 

b
B

rid
ge

s 
an

d 
S

tr
uc

tu
ra

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

43
2 

0 
43

2 
(1

1)
42

1 
38

9 
(3

2)
38

6 
35

7 
(2

9)
c

D
ec

rim
in

al
is

ed
 P

ar
ki

ng
1,

30
6 

(1
,6

33
)

(3
27

)
(3

)
(3

30
)

45
6 

78
6 

(2
91

)
50

6 
79

7 
d

C
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

1,
44

3 
(5

,9
59

)
(4

,5
16

)
1,

43
7 

(3
,0

79
)

(3
,3

56
)

(2
77

)
(2

,6
61

)
(2

,7
61

)
(1

00
)

e
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es
3,

24
6 

0 
3,

24
6 

(1
0)

3,
23

6 
3,

27
1 

35
 

3,
20

0 
3,

24
1 

41
 

f
P

as
se

ng
er

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
40

5 
(6

2)
34

3 
52

5 
86

8 
92

6 
58

 
85

7 
91

9 
62

 
g

R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
an

d 
S

ch
oo

l C
ro

ss
in

g
40

3 
(6

0)
34

3 
0 

34
3 

29
1 

(5
2)

31
0 

27
0 

(4
0)

h
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

P
la

nn
in

g
1,

07
7 

(5
7)

1,
02

0 
6 

1,
02

6 
1,

05
0 

24
 

95
6 

1,
01

1 
55

 
i

Tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 P

ar
ki

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
68

3 
(5

)
67

8 
(5

8)
62

0 
61

9 
(1

)
56

8 
55

8 
(1

0)
j

P
ub

lic
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s

60
4 

0 
60

4 
19

4 
79

8 
76

8 
(3

0)
73

5 
68

3 
(5

2)
k

W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
3,

85
0 

0 
3,

85
0 

90
0 

4,
75

0 
4,

73
4 

(1
6)

4,
32

0 
4,

34
8 

28
 

l
W

as
te

 D
is

po
sa

l
4,

12
0 

0 
4,

12
0 

1,
02

6 
5,

14
6 

4,
72

6 
(4

20
)

4,
52

5 
4,

26
8 

(2
57

)
m

C
le

an
si

ng
1,

91
6 

(7
)

1,
90

9 
(3

35
)

1,
57

4 
1,

55
5 

(1
9)

1,
46

1 
1,

44
0 

(2
1)

n
C

iv
ic

 A
m

en
ity

 S
ite

s
57

0 
0 

57
0 

(7
1)

49
9 

49
9 

0 
45

7 
46

1 
4 

o
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

ar
e

64
4 

(4
)

64
0 

(1
63

)
47

7 
38

0 
(9

7)
45

1 
34

4 
(1

07
)

p
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

2,
07

8 
0 

2,
07

8 
(1

,0
54

)
1,

02
4 

50
6 

(5
18

)
80

8 
91

0 
10

2 
q

F
lo

od
 a

nd
 S

ea
 D

ef
en

ce
86

0 
(6

4)
79

6 
(3

0)
76

6 
90

7 
14

1 
74

3 
79

9 
56

 
r

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

To
ur

is
m

 a
nd

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

C
en

tr
al

 P
oo

l
1,

82
5 

(1
,8

63
)

(3
8)

(2
)

(4
0)

0 
40

 
(3

7)
47

 
84

 

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
35

,0
73

 
(1

1,
94

3)
23

,1
30

 
2,

70
3 

25
,8

33
 

25
,6

49
 

(1
84

)
23

,9
06

 
24

,8
61

 
95

5 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
, 

W
a

st
e

 &
 C

le
a

n
si

n
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
- 

C
ll

r 
T

 C
o

x

V
ir

em
en

ts
£0

00
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

fr
om

/(
to

) 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
es

(4
26

)
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fr
om

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

13
0 

In
 y

ea
r 

vi
re

m
en

ts
2,

99
9 

2,
70

3 

 

67



26
 

 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 F

o
re

ca
st

 2
01

6/
17

a
t 

28
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

01
7 

- 
P

e
ri

o
d

 1
1

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

, 
W

a
st

e
 &

 C
le

a
n

si
n

g
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

T
 C

o
x

  
F

o
re

ca
st

 O
u

tt
u

rn
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 
 

Y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 

a.
 

S
tr

ee
t l

ig
ht

in
g 

en
er

g
y 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
re

du
ci

ng
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

LE
D

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
ho

w
ev

er
 d

el
a

ys
 a

t t
he

 o
ut

se
t m

ea
n 

th
e 

fu
ll 

be
ne

fit
 is

 y
et

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. T

he
 s

av
in

g 
in

 th
e 

20
16

/1
7 

bu
dg

et
 w

as
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
or

ig
in

al
 ti

m
et

ab
le

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l i
n-

ye
ar

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ci

rc
a 

£4
18

k 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 r

es
er

ve
s.

 
S

tr
uc

tu
ra

l m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 r
ep

ai
r 

w
or

ks
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 o

n 
fo

ot
w

a
ys

, i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 
re

su
lt 

in
 a

 b
ud

ge
t p

re
ss

ur
e 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
£1

40
-1

60
k 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
ur

re
nt

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 le
ve

ls
. P

ro
ac

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 ta

ke
n 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
co

st
s 

an
d 

th
is

 is
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 h
er

e.
 

T
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
w

or
ks

 r
ec

ha
rg

ed
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 fo

r 
da

m
ag

e 
ca

us
ed

 to
 th

e 
hi

gh
w

a
y 

is
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 le
ve

l c
re

at
in

g 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
re

ss
ur

e 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

£1
69

k.
 

In
co

m
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

st
re

et
 w

or
ks

 c
om

m
on

 p
er

m
it 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
le

ve
l. 

A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

is
 is

 d
ue

 to
 p

en
al

tie
s 

le
vi

ed
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 
S

.7
4 

ov
er

ru
ns

. A
t c

ur
re

nt
 r

at
es

 a
n 

in
co

m
e 

su
rp

lu
s 

of
 b

et
w

ee
n 

£0
.4

-0
.5

m
 

se
em

s 
lik

el
y.

 

 
O

ve
rs

pe
nd

 to
 d

at
e 

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
ut

tu
rn

 

b.
 

A
n 

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 o

f £
30

k 
on

 r
ea

ct
iv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d.
 

 
T

he
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
to

 d
at

e 
is

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 

c.
 

D
el

a
ys

 in
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
de

cr
im

in
al

is
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 m
ea

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. T

he
 b

ud
ge

t p
re

ss
ur

e 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

hi
s 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
£1

52
k.

 T
he

 s
ho

rt
fa

ll 
in

 in
co

m
e 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
du

e 
to

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 d
eb

ts
 b

ei
ng

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f, 

th
is

 h
as

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

be
d 

de
bt

 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 T
he

 n
et

 e
ff

ec
t o

f t
hi

s 
is

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ov
er

sp
en

d.
  

 
O

ve
rs

pe
nd

 to
 d

at
e 

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
ut

tu
rn

 

d.
 

C
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

w
as

 a
bo

ve
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

le
ve

ls
 s

o 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

su
rp

lu
s 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
b

y 
£1

5k
 to

 £
27

7k
.T

he
 s

ur
pl

us
 o

f £
33

0k
 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 m

on
th

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 £
26

2k
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

in
co

m
e 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 b

ei
ng

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 le

ve
l, 

th
is

 is
 li

ke
ly

 d
ue

 to
 p

oo
r 

w
ea

th
er

.  

 
U

nd
er

sp
en

d 
to

 d
at

e 
is

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 

e.
 

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 fa

re
s 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
th

re
e 

qu
ar

te
rs

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

nf
irm

ed
 a

nd
 o

ur
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
ha

ve
 u

pd
at

ed
 th

ei
r 

es
tim

at
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
es

e 
up

da
te

d 
fig

ur
es

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 £
3.

21
m

 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 b

ud
ge

t o
f £

3.
17

m
. F

lu
ct

ua
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 in

 th
e 

fin
al

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

m
ea

n 
th

is
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

co
ul

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

ga
in

 o
r 

 
 

68



27
 de

cr
ea

se
 fu

rt
he

r.
 

f. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ec

ur
ity

 le
ve

ls
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

at
 th

e 
T

ra
ve

l C
en

tr
e 

w
ill

 c
os

t 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

£7
0k

 fo
r 

a 
fu

ll 
ye

ar
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 c
au

se
 a

 b
ud

ge
t p

re
ss

ur
e 

of
 £

60
-

70
k.

 

 
 

g.
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

of
 £

52
k 

on
 R

oa
d 

S
af

et
y 

du
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 
de

liv
er

y,
 w

hi
ls

t m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
le

ve
l o

f s
er

vi
ce

. 
 

 

h.
 

T
ra

ffi
c 

si
gn

al
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 h
av

e 
re

du
ce

d 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

up
gr

ad
e 

to
 L

E
D

 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
 p

ot
en

tia
l u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
ci

rc
a.

 £
30

k.
 T

hi
s 

is
 n

ow
 b

ei
ng

 o
ff

se
t b

y 
ov

er
sp

en
ds

 o
n 

st
af

f t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 o

nl
in

e 
da

ta
ba

se
 c

os
ts

. 

 
T

he
 Y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

va
ria

nc
e 

sh
ow

s 
an

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 d

ue
 to

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
E

U
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 c
la

im
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 a
rr

ea
rs

. 

i. 
A

s 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 r
ep

or
te

d 
T

ra
ffi

c 
M

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
w

ith
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
sh

ow
 a

n 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 o
f a

ro
un

d 
£7

1k
. T

he
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

du
e 

to
 a

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f a

nd
 r

ed
uc

ed
 c

ap
ita

lis
at

io
n 

ha
s 

fa
lle

n 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 to

 a
ro

un
d 

£1
00

k 
an

d 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

s 
on

 tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
&

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

£1
5k

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

es
e,

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

hi
gh

w
a

ys
 

bo
un

da
ry

 s
ea

rc
he

s 
ha

s 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 b

ud
ge

t e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 b
y 

ar
ou

nd
 £

15
k.

 

 
 

j. 
T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

at
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 

si
te

s.
 

 
T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

at
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 

si
te

s.
 

k.
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 v

ac
an

t p
os

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

as
te

 te
am

. 
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 v

ac
an

t p
os

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

as
te

 te
am

. 

l. 
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

M
B

T
 s

til
l b

ei
ng

 in
 it

s 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ph

as
e,

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 r

ed
uc

ed
 

ga
te

 fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f w

as
te

. 
 

C
os

ts
 fo

r 
M

B
T

 P
la

nt
 a

re
 e

st
im

at
ed

 p
en

di
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

ha
rg

es
 fr

om
 E

ss
ex

 C
C

. 

m
. 

S
er

vi
ce

 li
ce

nc
es

 a
re

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 n
ew

 S
tr

ee
t 

C
le

an
si

ng
 c

on
tr

ac
t. 

 
S

er
vi

ce
 li

ce
nc

es
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

he
 n

ew
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

le
an

si
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

t. 

n.
 

 
 

 

o.
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 v

ac
an

t p
os

t i
n 

th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
ar

e 
te

am
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 a
n 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
m

pl
o

ye
e 

co
st

s.
 

 
T

he
re

 is
 a

 v
ac

an
t p

os
t i

n 
th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

ar
e 

te
am

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 a

n 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

m
pl

o
ye

e 
co

st
s.

 

p.
 

Jo
in

t W
or

ki
ng

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

W
as

te
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
C

re
di

t l
es

s 
co

st
s,

 le
ss

 le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

re
 n

ew
 w

as
te

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
 

Le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

re
 N

ew
 W

as
te

 C
on

tr
ac

t. 

q.
 

T
he

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

on
 s

ta
ff

in
g 

va
ca

nc
ie

s,
 r

ep
or

te
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
, r

em
ai

ns
 a

nd
 is

 
fo

re
ca

st
 a

t £
42

k.
 

U
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

co
st

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 p

um
pi

ng
 s

ta
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

in
g,

 fe
es

 
fo

r 
sp

oi
l s

to
ra

ge
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

lif
f S

ta
bi

lis
at

io
n 

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 fo

re
ca

st
 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
flo

od
 d

ef
en

ce
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 h

av
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

a 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

pr
es

su
re

 o
f 

£1
83

k.
 

 
O

ve
rs

pe
nd

 to
 d

at
e 

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
ut

tu
rn

. 

r.
 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
hi

gh
 le

ve
ls

 o
f s

ta
ff

 r
et

en
tio

n,
 th

e 
va

ca
nc

y 
fa

ct
or

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

am
 is

 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

m
et

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 in
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
fo

un
d.

 

 
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f s
ta

ff
 r

et
en

tio
n,

 th
e 

va
ca

nc
y 

fa
ct

or
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

te
am

 is
 

un
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
m

et
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fo
un

d.
 

69



28
 

   

S
e

rv
ic

e
G

ro
ss

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
G

ro
ss

 
In

co
m

e
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

om
m

s 
&

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

5,
85

8 
(5

,7
48

)
11

0 
(4

5)
65

 
65

 
0 

69
 

13
5 

66
 

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
5,

85
8 

(5
,7

48
)

11
0 

(4
5)

65
 

65
 

0 
69

 
13

5 
66

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

T
 B

yf
o

rd

 
  V

ir
em

en
ts

£0
00

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
fr

om
/(

to
) 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
11

4 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fr
om

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

0 
In

 y
ea

r 
vi

re
m

en
ts

(1
59

)
(4

5)

 
           

70



29
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17
a

t 
28

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
01

7 
- 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 H

o
ld

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

T
 B

yf
o

rd
  

F
o

re
ca

st
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

 
Y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

a.
 

 
 

A
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
os

ts
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 A
ge

nc
y,

 S
ta

nd
b

y 
&

 P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

P
a

y,
 R

ec
ru

itm
en

t c
os

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
V

ac
an

cy
 F

ac
to

r 
is

 b
ei

ng
 o

ff
se

t b
y 

hi
gh

er
 

in
co

m
e 

th
an

 p
ro

fil
ed

. C
ap

ita
lis

at
io

n 
of

 s
al

ar
y 

co
st

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
pr

es
su

re
 o

n 
st

af
fin

g 
co

st
s 

by
 y

ea
r-

en
d 

ha
s 

no
t y

et
 h

ap
pe

ne
d 

71



30
 D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

ir
e

m
e

n
t

L
a

te
st

 
B

u
d

g
e

t
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te
S

p
e

n
d

 t
o

 
D

a
te

T
o

 D
a

te
 

V
a

ri
a

n
ce

 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

a
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
27

6 
0 

27
6 

27
6 

0 
27

6 
27

6 
0 

b
P

re
m

is
es

 (
E

xc
lu

di
ng

 R
ep

ai
rs

)
70

2 
0 

70
2 

76
2 

60
 

64
4 

68
4 

40
 

c
R

ep
ai

rs
4,

73
6 

0 
4,

73
6 

4,
73

6 
0 

4,
00

7 
4,

00
7 

0 
d

S
up

pl
ie

s 
&

 S
er

vi
ce

s
67

 
0 

67
 

67
 

0 
61

 
61

 
0 

e
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
F

ee
 

5,
61

8 
0 

5,
61

8 
5,

61
8 

0 
4,

75
4 

4,
75

4 
0 

f
M

A
TS

1,
04

8 
0 

1,
04

8 
1,

04
8 

0 
96

1 
96

1 
0 

g
P

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

B
ad

 D
eb

ts
37

2 
0 

37
2 

37
2 

0 
34

1 
34

1 
0 

h
C

ap
ita

l F
in

an
ci

ng
 C

ha
rg

es
13

,0
45

 
0 

13
,0

45
 

13
,0

45
 

0 
11

,9
58

 
11

,9
58

 
0 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
25

,8
64

 
0 

25
,8

64
 

25
,9

24
 

60
 

23
,0

02
 

23
,0

42
 

40
 

i
F

ee
s 

&
 C

ha
rg

es
(5

03
)

0 
(5

03
)

(5
03

)
0 

(4
61

)
(4

61
)

0 
j

R
en

ts
(2

6,
64

5)
0 

(2
6,

64
5)

(2
6,

94
5)

(3
00

)
(2

4,
42

5)
(2

4,
57

5)
(1

50
)

k
O

th
er

(2
63

)
0 

(2
63

)
(2

63
)

0 
(2

41
)

(2
41

)
0 

l
In

te
re

st
(2

10
)

0 
(2

10
)

(2
10

)
0 

(1
93

)
(1

93
)

0 
m

R
ec

ha
rg

es
(5

30
)

0 
(5

30
)

(3
90

)
14

0 
(4

86
)

(4
06

)
80

 

In
co

m
e

(2
8,

15
1)

0 
(2

8,
15

1)
(2

8,
31

1)
(1

60
)

(2
5,

80
5)

(2
5,

87
5)

(7
0)

n
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
n 

to
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
2,

28
7 

0 
2,

28
7 

2,
38

7 
10

0 
0 

0 
0 

o
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
on

 C
ap

ita
l F

in
an

ci
ng

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 /
 (

In
co

m
e

)
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

(2
,8

03
)

(2
,8

33
)

(3
0)

U
se

 o
f 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

16
3,

50
2 

0 
3,

50
2 

3,
50

2 
0 

U
se

 in
 Y

ea
r

(0
)

0 
(0

)
(0

)
0 

B
a

la
n

ce
 a

s 
a

t 
31

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

7
3,

50
2 

0 
3,

50
2 

3,
50

2 
0 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 A
cc

o
u

n
t 

F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17

a
t 

28
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

01
7 

- 
P

e
ri

o
d

 1
1

D
e

p
u

ty
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

cu
ti

ve
 -

 S
im

o
n

 L
e

ft
le

y

72



31
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 A
cc

o
u

n
t 

F
o

re
ca

st
 2

01
6/

17

a
t 

28
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

01
7 

- 
P

e
ri

o
d

 1
1

D
e

p
u

ty
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

cu
ti

ve
 -

 S
im

o
n

 L
e

ft
le

y
 

  
F

o
re

ca
st

 O
u

tt
u

rn
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 
 

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 

a.
 

 
 

 

b.
 

F
or

ec
as

t O
ve

rs
pe

nd
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f s

ec
ur

ity
 p

at
ro

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 th
e 

V
ic

to
ria

 W
ar

d 
 

 

c.
 

 
 

 

d.
 

 
 

 

e.
 

 
 

 

f. 
 

 
 

g.
 

 
 

 

h.
 

 
 

 

i. 
 

 
 

j. 
H

ig
he

r 
th

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 r
en

ta
l i

nc
om

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 a
 lo

w
er

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

oi
d 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

in
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

, a
nd

 fu
rt

he
r 

co
nv

er
si

on
 o

f n
ew

 
te

na
nc

ie
s 

be
in

g 
le

t a
t f

or
m

ul
a 

re
nt

. 

 
 

k.
 

 
 

 

l. 
 

 
 

m
. 

D
ue

 to
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 s
pe

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 th
is

 h
as

 
re

du
ce

d 
th

e 
8%

 fe
e 

in
co

m
e 

re
-im

bu
rs

ed
 to

 th
e 

H
R

A
. 

 
 

n.
 

A
n

y 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 a
t y

ea
r 

en
d,

 w
ill

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
H

R
A

 R
es

er
ve

. 
 

 

o.
 

 
 

 

 

73



74



Capital Programme Budget 

Monitoring 2016/17 

Period 11 

 as at 28th February 2017 

  Departmental Summary 

75



Capital Programme Monitoring Report – February 2017 

1. Overall Budget Performance 

Department
Revised 
Budget 
2016/17         
£’000

Outturn to 28 
February
2016/17     
£’000

Expected 
outturn 
2016/17   
£’000

Latest 
Expected 
Variance to 
Revised 
Budget 2016/17
£’000

Previous 
Expected 
Variance to 
Revised 
Budget 2016/17
£’000

Total 55,114 38,224 52,046 (3,068) -

External Funding

Council
Budget

Grant 
Budget

Developer & 
Other 

Contributions
Total 

BudgetDepartment
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1,289

14,185

32,199

7,441

Total 31,650 22,693 771 55,114

76



Department
Grant

Budget

Developer & 
Other 

Contributions
Budget

Total 
external 
funding 
budget

External 
funding 
received

External 
funding 

outstanding

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

4

3,566

1,714

50

Total 22,693 771 23,464 18,130 5,334

77



2. Department Budget Performance 

Department of the Chief Executive 

Department of the Chief 
Executive

Revised 
Budget 
2016/17        
£’000

Outturn to 
28 February
2016/17     
£’000

Expected 
outturn 
2016/17   
£’000

Latest 
Forecast 
Variance 
to Year 
End
2016/17   
£’000

Previous 
Forecast 
Variance to 
Year End
2016/17   
£’000

Subtotal 1,153 409 1,063 (90) -

Total 1,289 409 1,199 (90) -

Priority Works £’000

Council Buildings 

Asset Management (Property) 

78



Cemeteries and Crematorium 

Priority Works 

Summary 

79



Department for People  
      

Department for People
Revised 
Budget 
2016/17              
£’000

Outturn to 
31 January
2016/17
£’000

Expected
outturn 
2016/17
£’000

Latest 
Expected 
Variance to 
Year End
2016/17   
£’000

Previous 
Expected 
Variance to 
Year End
2016/17   
£’000

Total 14,185 10,065 11,665 (2,520) -

Adult Social Care 

General Fund Housing 

80



Children & Learning Other Schemes 

Condition Schemes

Devolved Formula Capital 

Primary and Secondary School Places

Summary 

81



Department for Place

Department for Place
Revised 
Budget 
2016/17      
£’000

Outturn to 
28 February
2016/17     
£’000

Expected 
outturn 
2016/17   
£’000

Latest 
Expected 
Variance 
to Year 
End
2016/17   
£’000

Previous 
Expected 
Variance to 
Year End
2016/17   
£’000

Total 32,199 21,669 31,741 (458) -

Culture 

82



ICT 

Enterprise, Tourism & Regeneration 

Southend Pier 

83



Coastal Defence and Foreshore 

Highways and Infrastructure 

Parking Management 

Section 38 and Section 106 Schemes 

Local Transport Plans (LTP Schemes) 

84



Local Growth Fund 

Transport 

Energy Saving Projects 

85



Summary 

86



Housing Revenue Account 

Housing Revenue Account
Revised 
Budget 
2016/17       
£’000

Outturn to 
28 February
2016/17     
£’000

Expected 
outturn 
2016/17   
£’000

Forecast 
Variance 
to Year 
End  
2016/17      
£’000

Previous 
Forecast 
Variance 
to Year 
End
2016/17   
£’000

Total 7,441 6,081 7,441 - -

Decent Homes Programme 

Council House Adaptions 

Other HRA 

87



Ex
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 1

 O
rig

in
al

 B
ud

ge
t 

20
16

/1
7 

 R
ev

is
io

ns
  

 R
ev

is
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

20
16

/1
7 

 A
ct

ua
l 

20
16

/1
7 

 F
or

ec
as

t o
ut

tu
rn

 
20

16
/1

7 
 F

or
ec

as
t V

ar
ia

nc
e 

to
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

 2
01

6/
17

 
 %

 V
ar

ia
nc

e 

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

Ch
ief

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e
15

,22
9

 
(1

3,9
40

)
    

    
    

 
1,2

89
 

40
9

 
1,1

99
 

(9
0)

 
32

%
Pe

op
le

13
,36

5
 

82
0

 
14

,18
5

 
10

,06
5

    
    

11
,66

5
 

(2
,52

0)
 

71
%

Pl
ac

e
34

,08
3

 
(1

,88
4)

 
32

,19
9

 
21

,66
9

    
    

31
,74

1
 

(4
58

)
 

67
%

Ho
us

ing
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
10

,77
3

 
(3

,33
2)

 
7,4

41
 

6,0
81

    
    

  
7,4

41
 

- 
82

%
73

,45
0

 
(1

8,3
36

)
    

    
    

 
55

,11
4

 
38

,22
4

    
    

52
,04

6
 

(3
,06

8)
 

69
%

 C
ou

nc
il A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Or
ig

in
al 

Bu
dg

et
 - 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 20
16

73
,45

0

Ch
ief

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e a
me

nd
me

nts
(1

5,8
46

)
 

Pe
op

le 
am

en
dm

en
ts

(1
44

)
 

Pl
ac

e a
me

nd
me

nts
(2

,04
5)

 
HR

A 
am

en
dm

en
ts

(3
,48

9)
 

Ca
rry

 F
or

wa
rd

 re
qu

es
ts 

fro
m 

20
15

/16
4,2

18
 

Ac
ce

ler
ate

d D
eli

ve
ry 

re
qu

es
ts 

to 
20

15
/16

(2
,80

7)
 

Bu
dg

et 
re

-p
ro

file
s (

Ju
ne

 C
ab

ine
t)

(1
34

)
 

Ne
w 

ex
ter

na
l fu

nd
ing

1,9
11

 
 C

ou
nc

il A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Re

vis
ed

 B
ud

ge
t -

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 2
01

7
55

,11
4

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

t 2
8t

h 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
7

Ac
tu

al
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 R

ev
is

ed
 B

ud
ge

t s
pe

nt
 is

 £
38

.2
24

M
 o

r 
69

%

88



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2

 Y
ea

r 
 O

ut
tu

rn
 £

m
 

 O
ut

tu
rn

 %
 

20
12

/1
3

61
.0

 
97

.9
 

20
13

/1
4

43
.3

 
93

.8
 

20
14

/1
5

34
.8

 
83

.8
 

20
15

/1
6

37
.9

 
97

.0
 

-1
0010203040506070

0
1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

£ Millions 

Ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
De

liv
er

y 
 

Cu
m

m
ul

at
iv

e 
Ca

pi
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 2
01

2/
13

 to
 2

01
6/

17
 

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

89



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Title: North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(FLAG) 

 

Page 1 of 6 Report Number: 17/023 

 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 
 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 

to 

Cabinet 
on 

14th March 2017 

Report prepared by: Emma Cooney, Director of Regeneration 
and Business Development 

 
North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG) 

Place Scrutiny Committee 
Executive Councillor: Councillor Ann Holland 

Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1. To provide Cabinet with an update on the establishment of the North Thames 

Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG). 
 

1.2. To seek agreement from Cabinet for the Council to be a formal partner to the 
FLAG and actively participate in its delivery over the next three years as set out 
in the draft Partnership Agreement (Appendix 1).  

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1. That the North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG) be supported 

given its potential to make a positive impact on the fisheries sector 
locally. 
 

2.2. That the draft Partnership Agreement in Appendix 1 be agreed in principle 
and that authority be delegated to the Director of Regeneration and 
Business Development in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Culture, Tourism and the Economy to agree the final Partnership 
Agreement and sign it on behalf of the Council  
 

2.3. That FLAG capital projects be forward funded by the Council up to a 
maximum of £120,000 p.a. (inc VAT) over 3 years which will be fully repaid 
in arrears and that authority is delegated to the Director of Finance and 
Resources and Director of Regeneration and Business Development in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and the 
Economy to agree any financial contribution to the FLAG by the Council 
on a case by case basis. 
 

2.4. That the initial Leigh Port feasibility study be funded by the Council at a 
total cost of £65k funded from the Business Transformation reserve which 
will be reimbursed by the FLAG in arrears following MMO approval. 

Agenda 
Item No. 

 
 

 

91

6



 

Report Title: North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(FLAG) 

 

Page 2 of 6 Report Number: 17/023 

 

 
2.5. That existing funding which is already within the Council’s budget for 

related projects is used as match funding and/or to lever additional 
investment for FLAG projects where appropriate and relevant. 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1. FLAG status is awarded via a competitive process and seeks to enable local 
fishery communities to address the challenges faced by the sector at a grass-
roots level using the knowledge of local stakeholders to tackle local issues. It is 
funded by the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund (EMFF). 

 

3.2. A FLAG is not a legal entity in and of itself but a board of different organisations 
and stakeholders with a status which means it can access ring-fenced funding 
as well as access other funds with greater expectation of success. As a result it 
requires partnership agreements to be signed by all partners. 
 

3.3. The FLAG is separate to the Kent and Essex Inshore Fisheries Conservation 
Authority (IFCA) and will operate independently of it. 

 
3.4. As with most European funding FLAG status is awarded in rounds and in the 

2016 round a partnership, led by the Thames Estuary Partnership (TEP) and 
supported by Council Members and officers, Leigh Coastal Community Team, 
the Cultural Engine and the local fishing industry, was successful and secured a 
FLAG for South Essex (Southend to Thurrock), though predominantly focused 
on Southend, and specifically Leigh-on-Sea. 

 
3.5. The North Thames FLAG has been awarded €800k over 3 years (2017-2020) to 

deliver a range of projects against their 5 priority themes: 
 

 Leigh Quayside infrastructure: To secure improvements to the quayside and 
channels that enable access to the port, creating well-functioning commercial 
spaces and ensuring that the port is fully accessible by all boats. 

 

 Environmental Monitoring: Changes in the estuary environment have seen 
some species disappear (shrimp) while others have thrived (Thornback Ray).  
Long term research in partnership between the industry, academics and other 
stakeholders will help to reconcile anecdotal data with formal scientific analysis 
thus helping to inform marine and fishing policy and management. 

 

 Combined fish/shellfish marketing: Collaboration between the industry and other 
partners to better promote the FLAG catch as sustainable and distinctive to the 
area, creating higher margins and new sales opportunities, and encouraging 
more direct sales to businesses and communities. 

 

 Training and Marine Academy: To help up-skill new entrants to the industry and 
provide bespoke training for marine related courses in the local area, as well as 
offering training/advice for local businesses supporting sustainable links 
between the fishing industry and the wider maritime and business community. 

 

 Culture and heritage: Recognising the deep cultural heritage of fishing and the 
active port to the FLAG area, there will be activity to celebrate and promote the 

92



 

Report Title: North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(FLAG) 

 

Page 3 of 6 Report Number: 17/023 

 

industry locally (including cooking), with close links to on-going or developing 
heritage and cultural projects. 

 

3.6. As a result of securing FLAG status investment, activity and profile, which 
wouldn’t otherwise have been levered, will be delivered to the benefit of North 
Thames fisheries. These are a unique part of Southend’s economy and play a 
significant role in the national shell fishing industry. 

 
3.7. Some of the actions to deliver against these objectives will be delivered by the 

FLAG, others will be delivered by partners who can submit applications to the 
FLAG in response to funding calls that they issue to deliver on their behalf.  
These ‘third party’ bids will have to be agreed with the Marine Management 
Organisation (MMO) prior to award. 

 
3.8. Match funding is on a 44:56 (FLAG:match) ratio with funding paid in arrears 

based on full and compliant evidence. This ratio needs to be achieved across the 
totality of the FLAG funding award of €800k, not on an activity by activity basis. In 
the FLAG application a number of other related funds have been identified to give 
an indication of other funding sources the FLAG may bid into to lever match 
funding. 

 
3.9. Thames Estuary Partnership (TEP) is a partnership (company limited by 

guarantee) hosted by University College London. It was established 20 years ago 
to be a neutral party across whole Thames Estuary which seeks to help maritime 
related groups collaborate. 

 
3.10. TEP is the FLAG lead partner. As a result they have the responsibility for all the 

administration of the partnership and are able to draw down 15% of the funding to 
cover overheads. The funding will also cover two members of staff (part time) to 
support the FLAG – an administrative officer based within TEP and a project 
Animator based in Southend at the Cultural Engine. These posts have recently 
been advertised. 

 

3.11. As a community led partnership a partnership agreement needs to be put in place 
with the Council. The roles and responsibilities of the Council in relation to the 
FLAG are set out on page 34 of the Partnership Agreement (Appendix 1). 
 

3.12. The first piece of work the FLAG would like to undertake is a feasibility study for 
which they have received a quote of £65k from Mott McDonald, one of the 
Council’s term contractors. The Council has been asked to underwrite the £65k 
cost of the study to be reimbursed in arrears following MMO approval. This could 
be managed through the Council’s coastal engineer and colleagues involved with 
the Shoreline Strategy. 

 
4. Options 

 
4.1. The Council has the option to participate in the FLAG as set out in the 

Partnership Agreement, to seek alterations to the Partnership Agreement or to 
decline to support the FLAG. The latter of these options does not accord with the 
Council’s prosperous corporate priority or its desire to support and enable 
community-led economic growth. Nor does it reflect the support provided by 
Members and officers in securing FLAG status. Officers have considered the 

93



 

Report Title: North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(FLAG) 

 

Page 4 of 6 Report Number: 17/023 

 

Partnership Agreement and believe the roles and responsibilities set out in there 
are reasonable and that proportionate and appropriate measures to manage the 
resource commitment to the FLAG can be put in place so that the partnership 
agreement can be signed and the FLAG formally supported by the Council. 

 
5. Reasons for Recommendations 

 
5.1. The fishing industry, while representing a small proportion of Southend’s 

economy, is a significant contributor to the national shell fishing sector and 
plays an important role in the heritage, community and offer of Leigh-on-Sea. It 
has not benefitted from investment of this kind previously so this offers a unique 
opportunity to better tell the story of fisheries in Leigh while deriving the benefits 
outlined in 3.5. 
 

6. Corporate Implications 
 

6.1. Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities 
 
Prosperous – The FLAG is seeking to secure greater economic prosperity for 
the maritime economy in the North Thames, particularly around Leigh-on-Sea. It 
also serves as an attractor for tourism spend and activity. 

 
6.2. Financial Implications  
 

The Council is being asked to forward fund financial contributions to the FLAG 
through loan and/or investment payments.  This is to assist with TEP’s cashflow 
as FLAG projects must be forward funded with FLAG funding repaid 
retrospectively as part of a claim process which isn’t unusual for European 
funding. 
 
Where the Council is asked to provide the project funding as a loan, to be paid 
retrospectively (to a maximum of £120,000 inc VAT each year for three years) 
this should be repaid on receipt of the funding from the MMO following the claim 
process. There is therefore a risk to the Council that it may  not recover this 
investment should the claim not be upheld as the work will have been 
undertaken and the money paid. It would however enable a partnership, which 
the Council is party to, to deliver against its objectives. This loan funding would 
be through the Council’s normal Treasury Management activity. 

 
Where the Council is asked to invest in a project the funding would not be 
returned but considered as part of the match funding ratio (56:44). In the first 
instance match funding should be sought from existing Council budgets for 
relevant, related activity. Where a request for match funding does not align with 
existing budgets, a report will be brought back to Cabinet to seek approval. 
 
In both instances a case by case consideration of the activity to be funded and 
the resulting risks, value for money and wider regeneration and economic 
growth implications would allow this to be managed. In the case that the Council 
declined to provide the funding the FLAG would need to look to alternative 
sources. Approval for funding, including match funding outside of existing 
budgets, is to be agreed on an ad hoc basis in accordance with procedure, 
which may be an SO46, in order to meet funding deadlines. 

94



 

Report Title: North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(FLAG) 

 

Page 5 of 6 Report Number: 17/023 

 

 
 
 

6.3. Legal Implications 
 
The Partnership Agreement will set out the formal relationship between the 
Council and the FLAG. 
 
Where investment/loan funding is sought directly or to forward fund activity it may 
be prudent to have additional, supplementary agreements in place for each to 
take into account the values, risks, etc. of the individual projects.  
 

6.4. People Implications 
 

Committing to supporting the FLAG will require Councillor and officer time which 
is over and above that currently in place resulting in an opportunity cost to time 
spent working with the FLAG than on other activity. Conversely, where the 
FLAG’s interventions and activity directly correlate with Council activity this 
could add capacity to the Council through some delivery by the FLAG. 

 
6.5. Property Implications 

 
Leigh Bell Wharf and the foreshore, as two of the identified geographies for the 
FLAG, are owned and managed by the Council. 
 

6.6. Consultation 
 
The FLAG is a partnership of local community groups and individuals. Wide 
ranging conversation has been undertaken by TEP, Leigh Coastal Community 
Team (CCT) and the Cultural Engine to engage people in the development of 
the FLAG and secure sufficient support to be successful in obtaining FLAG 
status and funding. 
 
The FLAG runs the length of South Essex from Southend to Thurrock, however 
activity is to be primarily focussed in Southend. Other South Essex Councils 
and Leigh Town Council should be made aware of the FLAG’s activity with an 
opportunity to participate and/or support as appropriate. 
 

6.7. Equalities and Diversity Implications 
 
None 
 

6.8. Risk Assessment  
 
The risks associated with FLAG delivery are owned by the partnership and TEP 
as the accountable body. 
 
The financial risks for the Council which can be mitigated by considering 
resource commitment on a case by case basis.  
 
 
 

95



 

Report Title: North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(FLAG) 

 

Page 6 of 6 Report Number: 17/023 

 

 
6.9. Value for Money 

 
Considering requests for loan and/or investment funding on a case by case 
basis will allow the Council to ascertain value for money as, at this stage, the 
exact activities and interventions are unknown. 
 

6.10. Community Safety Implications 
 
None 
 

6.11. Environmental Impact 
 
The FLAG has environmental aims and objectives so would seek to better 
understand the marine environment of the estuary and to bring about 
improvements where they are of benefit to the maritime economy, the local 
community and the natural environment. 

 
7. Background Papers  

 
None 

 
8.  Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 – Draft Partnership Agreement  

 

96



1 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft Partnership Agreement 

 

 

North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 

DRAFT  
Partnership Agreement between Thames Estuary Partnership and Southend-

on-Sea Borough Council 
February 2017 

 

The Purpose of the Partnership Agreement 

This document sets out the main roles and responsibilities for the two main organisations in relation 

to the North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group (NTFLAG) – Thames Estuary Partnership (TEP) and 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (SBC).  

 

What is the NTFLAG? 

FLAGs are partnerships between fisheries actors and other local private and public stakeholders. 
Together, they design and implement a bottom-up strategy that fits and addresses their area´s 
needs supporting economic, social and environmental outcomes. FLAGs aim to improve the 
sustainable development of fisheries sectors in a given area by working through public-private 
partnerships at the local level. Each FLAG manages a budget to support a range of projects proposed 
and delivered by a wide variety of local stakeholders. The North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group 
(NTFLAG) will provide the governance structure and build the capacity necessary to act as a catalyst 
for resolving some long-standing issues and challenges relevant to the fishing industry in Leigh-on-
Sea and its standing as an active port. The NTFLAG will also play a key role in informing relevant local 
priorities and strategies that impact on the industry and the port including economic development, 
shoreline and sea defences, tourism, regeneration and planning.  
 
The overarching aim of the NTFLAG is:  
Achieving a sustainable fishing industry in the North Thames area (Thurrock to Shoeburyness), 
recognising its importance to the area’s economy and culture, and better integrating the sector with 
wider community, economic, environmental and tourism outcomes. This will lead to a more seaward 
facing community that embraces the ethos of a healthy and productive marine environment 
underpinning their local economy, and engages with the industry economically and culturally.  
 

Each FLAG has a ring fenced pot of money of £600K for projects and £200K for administration and 

animation of projects. The £600K can be bid into by any stakeholder via the FLAG’s project 

application process which the FLAG oversees and the Animator coordinates. The FLAG then submits 

approved projects for sign off by the MMO and issues offer letters on behalf of the MMO. The 

overall FLAG programme for North Thames has an intervention rate of 44:56 FLAG:Match funding.  

 

Funding from EMFF, above and beyond the ring-fenced £800,000 for the FLAG, can also be accessed 

to support projects in the North Thames FLAG area. These funding applications can be supported by 

the FLAG and can therefore lever in extra funding to support investment in a range of projects (as 

long as they meet EMFF priorities). SBC can be an applicant to the EMFF, and as a public body can 

secure 100% funding from ‘public funds’ – 75% from EMFF and 25% other National funding which 

can include staff time (in-kind) or funding from other Government, Regional or Local Authority 

investment. This is a higher funding intervention rate than for other non-public organisations 

97



2 
 

(including Charities). The MMO are keen to see additional bids come forward from NTFLAG partners 

to complement the core allocation of £800,000.  

 

 

MMO EMFF and background to funding stream.  

Axis 4 of the European Fisheries Fund (EFF) 2007 - 2013 provided support for the sustainable 
development of fisheries areas. It supported measures to promote economic diversification and an 
improved quality of life in areas affected by decline in fishing activities. An important innovation 
element in the implementation of Axis 4 was the emphasis on encouraging and mobilising local 
actors from all sectors to work together as partners through a FLAG. In the European Maritime and 
Fisheries Fund (EMFF) 2014 – 2020, the EU is looking for FLAGs to build on the Community-Led Local 
Development (CLLD) approach that is central to this funding stream. This CLLD approach was 
previously developed through the LEADER programme. FLAGS are the CLLD ‘brand’ for fisheries. The 
Marine Management Organisation (MMO) is the Accountable Body for all FLAGs and the fund holder 
for the EMFF. Funding is through reimbursement directly to the lead applicant on specific projects 
and evidence of spend must meet MMO criteria. 
 

What is the timescale of the FLAG? 

The Local Development Strategy covers the period of Jan 2017- Jan 2020. All claims have to be made 

and reports signed off by the end of March 2020. 

 

TEP’s Responsibilities as Lead Partner for the NTFLAG 

The Lead Partner is the sole body that undertakes a legal agreement with the MMO. TEP has signed 
a Framework Agreement with the MMO upon receiving the official offer letter. The Lead Partner 
shall be responsible for ensuring that the FLAG complies with the terms of the Framework 
Agreement and it shall indemnify the MMO in respect of any loss or damage occasioned by a breach 
of the Framework Agreement by the FLAG. This includes ensuring the NTFLAG is delivering against 
the Local Development Strategy, undertaking its role fairly, transparently and inclusively. 
 
The Lead Partner also provides all the administrative management, reporting and financial 
management of the administration and animation costs for the NTFLAG. Administration will be 
based at TEP offices in London. TEP will recruit one part time (0.4FTE) Administrative Officer who will 
provide logistical support for the NTFLAG Steering Committee and Management Groups including 
compiling meeting papers, agendas and meeting minutes; compiling project and financial reports 
and completing the administration around administration financial claims; set up the processes 
necessary for monitoring and evaluation against FLAG milestones and monitor progress for reporting 
and driving the delivery of the NTFLAG strategy. This position will be line managed by TEP Director 
Pat Fitzsimons and supported by Programme Manager Amy Pryor.  
 
TEP will contract the full time NTFLAG Animator role to The Cultural Engine, a social enterprise based 
in Southend. This will ensure continuity as The Cultural Engine has been involved in and integral to 
the development of the NTFLAG to date. It will also ensure the NTFLAG aligns with local initiatives 
and maximises the local and regional match funding potential for projects as they develop. Having 
the Animator working in the local area will instil confidence and reassurance for the local NTFLAG 
members and wider community. The Animator role will be the first point of contact with all 
stakeholders, assist fishermen in accessing FLAG and EMFF funding, assist all project applicants in 
project development and applications, ensure compliance with MMO and FLAG processes and 
ensure that all funded project leads make timely claims and reports to the MMO. This role will be 
line managed by CE Director Giles Tofield. The Animator and Administrator will work closely 
together particularly on reporting and funding bids for match funding projects. 
 

98



3 
 

In summary TEP’s main responsibilities as Lead Partner are as follows: 
- Administer the NTFLAG Board and sub groups, attendance at all Board Meetings and 

relevant sub-groups  
- Take responsibility for all NTFLAG reporting / returns to the MMO and financial 

management of the NTFLAG process directly for administration and indirectly through the 
Animator for individual projects 

- Monitoring project delivery with the Project Animator (with input from SBC, Cultural Engine 
and other partners as appropriate) 

- Liaising with the MMO on all issues related to project delivery and Governance of the 
NTFLAG 

- Regular liaison with Cultural Engine, SBC and the Project Animator 
- Supporting SBC to secure funding for projects that support wider NTFLAG outcomes and 

priorities, including assisting with liaison with the MMO, bid writing and identification of 
match-funding.  

- Liaising with the Project Animator and Cultural Engine to arrange Board Meetings and 
ensuring that the Terms of Reference and Partnerships agreements for the NTFLAG are up to 
date and the review of the LDS and budget are completed in a timely manner for annual 
MMO review 

- Support the whole process, working with the Project Animator and Cultural Engine In terms 
of promotion and publicity help to ensure that as the NTFLAG is a partnership that a single, 
shared and positive voice should be used to talk about the work being undertaken, with no 
one party generating negative press about any other partner. 

 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council’s Role in Supporting the NTFLAG 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (SBC) is a critical partner for the NTFLAG and it is important that a 

productive relationship is formed with TEP to enable all partners to work effectively on tackling the 

issues set out in the NTFLAG Local Development Strategy. SBC is the primary landowner of the main 

areas of Leigh-on-Sea likely to feature prominently in NTFLAG related projects, and is the responsible 

body for shoreline management and sea-defences. SBC can also play an important role as an 

applicant to the MMO for EMFF Core and FLAG funding (supported by the NTFLAG process).  

 

It is important that SBC play an active role in taking forward priority projects that emerge through 

the NTFLAG process, including bringing forward projects and initiatives that support the future 

viability of Leigh-on-Sea as an active port and vibrant local economy. It is also important that SBC 

raise any concerns or issues through the NTFLAG Governance when projects and priorities conflict 

with existing or future SBC or strategic policy, or where alternative projects and initiatives have been 

proposed. In summary SBC will need to: 

- Commit to attending NTFLAG Board Meetings 

- Representation on sub-groups where relevant (particularly Leigh Quay Infrastructure)  

- Seeking to support NTFLAG priorities through aligning strategy where possible / appropriate 

- Align, where possible, the work of the Shoreline Strategy with that of the NTFLAG 

- Support the NFTLAG to source match-funding for priority projects (including using or 

bending its own resources and capital investments where possible). This can be on a case-

by-case basis to avoid any conflict of interest (for example where the Council wishes to bid 

directly to EMFF). The Council will also assist with in-kind match by providing 

information/financial value on staff time allocated to supporting/managing projects  

- Assessed on a case-by-case basis, provide up-front funding for capital projects (in order to 

enable work to begin on priority projects) – recognise that TEP is not able to front-load 

major investments due to funding being provided in arrears. This will be up to £100,000 

99



4 
 

(excluding VAT) for each of the three years. This is likely to be where the Council is the 

applicant for project funding through the FLAG to the MMO, and will therefore secure a 

commitment directly from the MMO for funding.  

- Provide oversight and where appropriate project manage initiatives that affect land or assets 

owned by SBC, or where there is a direct financial impact on SBC (for example is SBC is the 

applicant for funding, or where match-funding commitments are required by SBC).  

- Working to represent the interests and priorities of the NTFLAG at a local, sub-regional and 

regional level (for example through the South East LEP) 

- Engage regularly with the Project Animator for the NTFLAG who will be based with and 

managed by the Cultural Engine CIC in Southend. The FLAG Animator will assist all partners, 

including the Council, in accessing EMFF Core and FLAG funding.  

- In terms of promotion and publicity help to ensure that as the NTFLAG is a partnership that a 

single, shared and positive voice should be used to talk about the work being undertaken, 

with no one party generating negative press about any other partner. 

 

 

Appendix 1 – FLAG Governance Overview 

The below shows the outline Governance structure as agreed in the Local Development Scheme for 

the NTFLAG with the Marine Management Organisation. The five sub-groups are set out below the 

main NTFLAG Board.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

100



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 1 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 
 

Report of Deputy Chief Executives (Place and People) 

to 

Cabinet 
on 

28th March 2017 

Report prepared by: Emma Cooney 
Director of Regeneration and Business Development 

 
Better Queensway: Process to appoint a preferred project partner   

Place Scrutiny Committee  
Executive Councillor: Councillor Ann Holland  

(Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and the Economy) 
Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval to progress the project to 

procurement stage to identify a preferred partner(s). 
 

1.2. In order to commence procurement it is critical that the Council has an agreed 
position of its expectations of core criteria for the project to shape the market’s 
response and to ensure that the Council’s ambitions for the Queensway site are 
delivered through the partnership. The report sets out those criteria and seeks 
Members’ agreement to them. 

 
1.3. The report details a series of processes that need to be undertaken in order to 

meet the proposed procurement timetable. To enable this a number of approvals 
and delegated authorities are required and the reports seeks Members’ 
agreement to these. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1. That the following key elements are agreed for inclusion in the 
procurement documentation to set out the Council’s ambitions, 
parameters and expectations of Better Queensway and to enable the 
procurement process. 
 
Finance 
 

2.1.1 That the intention to act as senior lender is agreed and included in the 
procurement documentation while clearly stating that the Council will 
assess the position at the time to ensure that this meets the Council’s 
best interests.  

 
 

101

7



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 2 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

Procurement 
 

2.1.2 That Competitive Dialogue is agreed as the procurement approach to 
securing a preferred project partner(s). 
 

2.1.3 That commencement of the competitive dialogue process, based on the 
timetable set out in 5.4 is approved. 
 

2.1.4 That the term “Partnership Approach” be used in defining the approach to 
be developed by tenderers in response to the Council’s objectives and 
that this be used throughout the procurement documentation. 
 

2.1.5 That the proposed Better Queensway objectives/requirements are agreed 
in principle as an appropriate and comprehensive set of underpinning 
statements to be included in procurement documentation and to form the 
basis for evaluation questions and that the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 
and the Deputy Chief Executive (People) shall each be individually 
authorised, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism 
and the Economy, to refine and confirm the final objectives and 
requirements. 
 

2.1.6 That the outline evaluation criteria and weightings are agreed in principle 
and that the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and the Deputy Chief 
Executive (People) shall each be individually authorised, in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and the Economy, to refine 
and confirm the final evaluation criteria. 

 
Governance 
 

2.1.7 That a sponsoring group is established within the project structure 
including the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism 
and the Economy, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and 
Deputy Chief Executive (People). 

 
2.1.8 That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and the Deputy Chief Executive 

(People) shall each be individually authorised, in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and the Economy, in the context of 
the sponsoring group, to take decisions during the procurement process 
to ensure agile and timely decision making keeping the procurement to 
timetable and protecting the Council’s position. 
 

2.1.9 That the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and the Deputy Chief Executive 
(People) shall each be individually authorised, in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and the Economy, and the Director of 
Finance and Resources to negotiate to purchase residential and 
commercial properties which become available within the ‘Better 
Queensway’ site if this offers value for money and proves to be 
advantageous to the project.  

 
 
 
 

102



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 3 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

Planning 
 

2.1.10 That the draft site boundary as per the plan (Appendix 1) is agreed as the 
preferred regeneration area for which a partner(s) is sought but in order 
that adjustments, which may be required to optimise the final scheme, can 
be made that the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and the Deputy Chief 
Executive (People) shall each be individually authorised, in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and the Economy, to 
approve the final site. 

 
2.1.11 That a preference for buildings of no more than 12 storeys is reflected in 

the procurement documentation. 
 

2.1.12 That a preference for a minimum of 1:1 residential parking is reflected in 
the procurement documentation. 

 
2.1.13 That the outline for the Design Code is agreed and authority delegated to 

the Deputy Chief Executive (Place), in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing, Planning and Public Protection Services to approve 
the final document. 
 

2.1.14 That the demolition of the towers, as per the decision taken at Cabinet in 
September 2016 (Minute 261, item 4 refers), is confirmed as a minimum 
criterion in the procurement documentation. 

 
Housing 

 
2.1.15 That a minimum of 441 affordable homes is included in the specification 

and that the composition of tenancy type for the remaining housing units 
(private sale and private rented) is finalised through competitive dialogue. 

 
2.1.16 That the overall total number of housing units to be provided on the 

scheme, subject to compliance with Council planning policies, will be 
finalised through competitive dialogue. 

 
2.1.17 That a viable mix of 1, 2 and 3 bed residences will be developed as part of 

the overall Better Queensway scheme and finalised through competitive 
dialogue. 

 
2.1.18 That Assured Tenancies, containing the same terms and conditions as 

current Secure Tenancies, must be offered to returning current Council 
tenants. 

 
2.1.19 That the option of offering a ‘Right To Buy’ clause for returning Council 

tenants should be retained. 
 

2.1.20 That the partnership approach procured should entail the whole funding, 
development and management approach for all elements of the Better 
Queensway scheme (affordable, private, commercial and community). 

 
2.1.21 That the Council’s tender documentation encourages tenderers to consult 

with South Essex Homes (SEH) as the Council’s existing Arm’s Length 

103



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 4 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

Management Organisation (ALMO) and managers of the Council’s existing 
housing stock with regards to their approach to the scheme. 
 
Transport 
 

3.1.21 That the plan in Appendix 2 (SBCC10384-126-SBC-QW-P-0101A-A1) is 
approved as the preferred road transport layout for the regeneration area 
but in order that adjustments can be made, which may be required to 
optimise the road layout, that authority is delegated authority to the 
Deputy Chief Executive (Place), in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Transport and Waste, to approve the final layout. 
 
Land: 

 
2.1.23 That land and premises outside the Council’s ownership, but which may 

be of strategic significance for the project are identified and considered 
on a case by case basis for acquisition. 

 
Communication: 
 

2.1.24 That the communication and engagement activity includes the wider 
resident base, business community and stakeholders is agreed. 

 
2.1.25 That a general public awareness event be held prior to the submission of 

an outline planning application. 
 

Quality of Place: 
 

2.1.26 That a sustainable energy and environment approach is taken in the 
design and development of Queensway, to be determined by the market. 

 
2.1.27 That a Smart Cities approach is taken in regards to Queensway, designing 

in current and future-proofed capability to ensure that the site benefits 
from cutting-edge technology for the benefit of residents, businesses and 
in its management. 

 
2.1.28 That local skills and employment benefits are sought where possible from 

the design, development and delivery of Queensway. 
 

2.1.29 That external funding is sought for as many elements of the project as 
possible noting that external funding often requires match funding which 
may be able to be found in the partnership, but which may need to come 
back to Cabinet for approval as part of future budget rounds. 

 
2.1.30 That the principle of a community fund to maximise participative 

community development and integration be included in the procurement 
documentation for development through competitive dialogue. 

 
2.1.31 That roads surrounding the regeneration site (excluding primary highway 

roads), are considered for ‘home zone’ or equivalent treatment. 
 

104



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 5 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

2.2. That, on the basis of the objectives, expectations and processes set out in 
2.1 above, commencement of the procurement process in accordance 
with the timetable set out is agreed. 
 

2.3. That a further £1.25m financial support to the project is approved as set 
out in paragraphs 15.2  

 
2.4. That in agreeing the additional financing for the project there is approval 

for an addition to the capital programme of £1m and an adjustment to 
reserves of £0.25m to fund these costs subject to full council approval. 

 
2.5. That it is noted that the costs of any Sustainable Urban Drainage System 

(SUDS) interventions and relevant highways works beyond those directly 
related to the project are considered as part of the review of the Capital 
Programme in the 2018/19 budget setting.   
 

2.6. That it is noted that there may be additional funding requests for the 
Capital Programme in respect of commercial and residential acquisitions 
during 2017/18. 
 

2.7. That the status of the financial viability of the project as set out in 
paragraphs 4.1 to 4.3 is noted. 

 
3. Background 

 
3.1. The Better Queensway project is a regeneration and resident focussed project, 

which will transform part of the town centre. It is focussed on delivering better 
housing and better place. 

 
3.2. In September 2016 Cabinet received an update report on Better Queensway and 

agreed “That further work be undertaken on the preferred Joint Venture approach 
(through competitive dialogue) with a report being submitted to Cabinet to 
determine this matter and the selection of a development partner” (Item 261, 
recommendation 7 ref paragraph 2.7 refers). Since that time officers have been 
undertaking the necessary work ahead of seeking Cabinet approval to 
commence the procurement process. 
 

3.3. Given the scale of the project the work has been approached thematically and is 
set out accordingly in this report. Each theme provides the background 
information and updates relevant to the recommendations. In many cases the 
recommendations are to set out the Council’s objectives, expectations and base 
position as competitive dialogue should drive innovation from the private sector in 
how to best meet the needs that the Council sets out.  This seeks to ensure that 
the Council’s objectives and minimum expectations are met. 
 

4. Finance 
 

4.1. In order to establish whether a financially viable scheme is feasible on the 
Queensway site a series of financial viability assessments have been undertaken 
on potential schemes that could be delivered. This work has been based on 
example schemes that meet the Council’s minimum criteria, to re-provide 441 
affordable units within the scheme and to demolish the tower blocks, and its 

105



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 6 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

expressed preferences such as amongst others limiting development to 12 
storeys, providing 1:1 parking capacity and a sustainable energy solution. 
 

4.2. The financial viability work was based on updated costing and value studies that 
examined the potential cost of funding, developing and operating a scheme on 
the site. These were undertaken by the Council’s Property, Financial. Urban 
Planning and Environmental advisors and were integrated into a financial model 
that modelled the impact of different development assumptions. 
 

4.3. This work has shown that a viable scheme could be developed on the site that 
meets the Council’s stated minimum criteria and that a number of its preferences 
could also be accommodated depending on the design and delivery of the 
scheme. 
 

4.4. The partnership approach provides the opportunity for the Council to act as the 
Senior Lender (‘the bank’) to the scheme. By so doing, the Council could 
potentially borrow at a competitive rate and on lend to the partnership at a 
commercial rate to comply with the requirements of State Aid. The Council would 
then receive the difference between these two rates as investment income to the 
General Fund. However, this approach may not be advantageous to either party 
should circumstances change and/or the market dictate other sources of finance. 
By stating its intention to act as senior lender the Council would signal it’s clear 
intent to do so but reserves the decision to commit to this course dependent on 
its assessment of risk at the appropriate point. 
 

5. Procurement 
 

5.1. As noted in 3.2 Cabinet agreed that further work be undertaken on the preferred 
Joint Venture approach (through competitive dialogue). Extensive work has been 
undertaken by the Council and its specialist advisors to fully scope the necessary 
information to pursue competitive dialogue as the procurement route. 

 
5.2. Competitive dialogue seeks to drive innovation from the market through an 

iterative process. It will put the regeneration of Queensway to the market for 
response which, through dialogue, should result in significant added value while 
addressing the Council’s requirements and objectives. 

 
5.3. The competitive dialogue process will start with an open market position and as 

each stage is completed the bidders may be reduced. Three of the key stages for 
the procurement process are: 
 
 Selection Stage (formerly known as Pre-Qualification Stage), which will assess 

applicants’ past experience of delivering similar projects and their capacity to 
deliver a scheme such as Better Queensway, rather than their proposals; 

 Detailed Solution Stage, when a series of meetings are held with shortlisted 
tenderers to discuss aspects of their solution, following which solutions are 
submitted and evaluated; 

 Final Tender, which results in the selection of a preferred bidder. 
 

5.4. The procurement timescale below has been designed to enable the appropriate 
communications and decisions to take place with the least risk of delay to the 
overall procurement and enables a preferred partner to be approved by Cabinet 

106



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 7 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

in January 2018.To enable this timetable to be adhered to a detailed suite of 
legal documents is being developed in partnership with the project’s legal 
advisors. 
 

28th March 2017  Cabinet approval to commence the procurement 

8th May 2017  Publication of procurement 

June – November 2017 Dialogue stages 

January 2018 Preferred bidder recommended to Cabinet for approval 

Preferred Partner(s) established with contracts signed by 27th March 2018 

 
5.5. The September 2016 Cabinet report referred to the potential approach as a “Joint 

Venture”. Engagement with the market, as well as the work undertaken with the 
Council’s legal, financial and property advisors, has suggested changing this 
terminology to “partnership approach”. The primary reason for this is to avoid any 
limitations, which may be perceived by the market by specifying a joint venture 
as an approach because a variety of innovative partnership arrangements have 
emerged for the delivery of schemes similar to Better Queensway over recent 
years. The outcome of this will be that the partnership approach to be used will 
not be defined by the Council alone, instead the market will be asked to design a 
solution that meets the Council’s objectives/requirements. 
 

5.6. In order to assess the bids received an evaluation must be carried out in 
accordance with the published criteria which must be clearly stated from the 
outset and remain constant. Well-defined criteria and consistent evaluation are 
critical and will have a significant bearing on reducing the risk of challenge from 
unsuccessful tenderers. There is a significant risk to the procurement process 
should core components of the scheme and a full set of evaluation criteria not be 
determined and made available at the point when the Council advertises the 
opportunity to the market. 

 

5.7. Since the inception of the Better Queensway project multiple objectives and 
requirements for the scheme have been articulated at different stages. These 
have been reviewed based on the project’s progress and Cabinet decisions in 
order to form a basis for the procurement documentation and to underpin the 
evaluation of tenders. The objectives and requirements form the overall scope 
against which suppliers will be invited to tender and are a framework, which 
should reflect all those elements to be scored in the detailed evaluation process.  
An updated set of objectives and requirements have been developed to reflect 
the Council’s position for the scheme and for the partnership (Tables 1a and 1b 
below). 

 

5.8. Table 1a and 1b 

Scheme Objectives/Requirements 

1 
The Council requires a mixed use integrated residential and commercial use scheme on the site 
with mixed tenure housing development of private sale, private rent, and a minimum of 441 
affordable units as well as a scheme that is in accordance with the Council’s planning policies. 

2 
The Council aspires to the expeditious delivery of the scheme as soon as reasonably practicable in 
accordance with a robust and realistic proposal.  

3 
The Council is seeking the establishment of a safe, vibrant, sustainable community through the 
Better Queensway scheme that will impact positively on the economic and social well-being of the 
Community. This should include the establishment and operation of an ongoing Community Fund. 

107



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 8 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

Scheme Objectives/Requirements 

4 
The Council requires the delivery of the highway works serving the Better Queensway site as 
defined by the Council with all adopted roads continuing to be maintained by the Council. 

5 

In addition to the highways works, the Council requires the scheme to be permeable by the public, 
with appropriate parking provision, and improved pedestrian and cycling connectivity to the town 
centre with safe and legible routes whilst ensuring the road network still provides convenient and 
efficient transport links, particularly to the seafront. 

6 

The partnership will offer existing council tenants on the site the chance to return via an assured 
tenancy.  Although this will not be a direct Council tenancy, it will offer the same terms and 
conditions. The Council recognises that those seeking a secure tenancy will be offered Council 
housing elsewhere within the Borough as available.  Resident leaseholders must be offered a 
shared equity unit, and the remainder of the affordable must be genuinely affordable with rents at or 
below Local Housing Allowance levels on a continual basis.  The Council’s Residents Offer 
document, must be adhered to when delivering the scheme. 

7 
The Council is seeking a high quality sustainable scheme with high quality homes throughout the 
development at an appropriate density delivered in accordance with the Better Queensway Design 
Code.  

8 
Provide a high quality public realm ensuring all buildings (including the key heritage assets 
bordering the site) are set within attractive useable open spaces in which people feel safe to live, 
work and play. 

9 
The Council requires the development to be sustainably delivered both during construction and its 
lifetime, taking into account the impacts of climate change and therefore designed to mitigate the 
impacts of change in respect of heat, cooling, energy and water.  

10 
The Council requires the scheme to further and contribute to the Better Queensway Smart Cities 
aspirations. 

11 

The Council aspires to the development delivering: 

 1:1 car parking provision 

 Building heights not exceeding 12 storeys 

 Box culvert over the road 

 

Approach Objectives/Requirements 

12 
The Council requires a long-term partner to work with it to fund and develop the mixed use scheme 
identified above on the Better Queensway site including associated highways infrastructure and to 
fund, manage and maintain all public realm and retained operational units on the site. 

13 

The Council requires an ongoing role in the governance of Better Queensway  

including equal say on, at least, the following areas: 

 Community / Resident engagement  

 Changes to tenancy agreements; 

 Rent levels; 

 Tenure changes; 

 Retaining the minimum number of affordable units; 

 Operation of the Community Fund. 

The Council requires a significant influence over, at least, the following areas: 

 Design of the scheme;  

 Branding of the scheme; 

 Sales, operation and rental strategies of residential and commercial facilities; 

 Management and maintenance of all retained operational units and public realm; 

 Procurement of contractors 

14 
Where the Council does not already own the freehold of elements of the site at the point of entering 
the partnership it will seek to obtain such freehold ownership through the partnership.  Any costs 
associated with CPO/land assembly will be funded by the partnership. 

108



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 9 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

15 
The Council’s preference is to retain freehold ownership of the entire site throughout the 
development and operational periods. 

16 
The Council’s only guaranteed investment into any partnership arrangement will consist of the 
value of the long lease of the land. 

17 

The Council has some appetite for risk.  This could extend to providing senior debt funding for the 
initial development of the scheme and/or developing and operating the site. Any such investment 
must be balanced by commensurate reward.  Any investment by the Council must be balanced by 
private investment. 

18 
The Council expects to receive meaningful financial returns which are to be delivered throughout 
the development and the life of the operation of the scheme. 

19 
The Council requires the partnership to keep all relevant stakeholders engaged and informed in an 
open honest timely and appropriate way. 

 
5.9 The criteria for evaluating the procurement of a partner(s) must be published 

when the OJEU notice is published, and must remain the same throughout the 
competitive dialogue process. The weightings and the categories/questions set in 
each tier are fixed at the point it is published.  Any change to them would be likely 
to be seen as a material change to the procurement and would result in 
significant risk of challenge. 

 
5.10 The tenderers who pass the initial selection process will submit a detailed 

submission which will be evaluated against the criteria and those who pass that 
evaluation will submit a Final Tender which will also be evaluated against the 
criteria published from the outset. 

 
5.11 The assessment criteria are structured on the basis of tier and weighted in order 

to ensure they are given the importance they merit. At the highest level (‘Tier 
One’), the weighting is of Price against Quality. 

 

5.12 Price consists of all the costs and returns of the scheme, together with 
assumptions underpinning those costs and returns and proposals for funding the 
costs, giving a ‘Net Scheme Balance’ as an outcome. This is likely to be an 
indicative fund flow to the Council based on the scheme developed, and will be 
based on a number of assumptions that could flex over time, as such it is not 
going to be a guaranteed amount. 

 
5.13 Quality criteria refer to the Council’s requirements for what should be delivered.  

This covers the design of the scheme as it will be built, how the community will 
be developed, the benefits to be delivered, how existing residents' needs will be 
met and how the Council’s economic, social and environmental aspirations will 
be met. It will also include evaluation of the prospective partners and how they 
propose a potential partnership structure will be constituted and run in order to 
'fund, develop and manage'. Reviewing quality enables the procurement to make 
judgments, based on expert review, which are more subjective than those 
affecting price, but the criteria and questions must be formulated in such a way 
that the results are consistent, transparent and can be substantiated.  

 

5.14 This weighting of price and quality affects the evaluation outcome, both in terms 
of the result and the signal it gives the market about what is important to the 
Council. The Council, in partnership with its advisors, has drawn on market 
experience to establish the appropriate balance between the two. On the basis of 
this work a scoring approach with 35% of the score allocated to price and 65% to 

109



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 10 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

quality is recommended as it appropriately signals to the market the importance 
that the Council places on the quality of the scheme. 

 
5.15 The Council will set out its requirements from the outset, which will correlate with 

the overarching objectives in 5.8. Bidder responses will be marked against 
evaluation criteria which reflect the importance of the Council’s requirements. In 
addition the Council intends to set a threshold score for quality questions, i.e. 
tenderers will need to achieve at least the threshold score in order to remain in 
the procurement process. 

 

5.16 Certain key requirements, (including the requirement to provide the minimum of 
441 affordable homes) are set as “minimum criteria”. This means that these 
elements are 'Pass/Fail' criteria, which would automatically result in a tender 
failing if the minimum requirement is not met, and the bidder’s removal from the 
process if they are not met. 

 

5.17 The table below shows thirteen evaluation criteria for which questions are being 
developed. 

 
Note: Responses are scored at the Tier 3 level 

Split 
Tier 1 

Weighting 
Tier 1 

Split Tier 2 
Weighting 

Tier 2 
Split Tier 3 

Weighting 
Tier 3 

Price 35% Commercial Offer 

21% Net Scheme Balance 21% 

14% 
Assumptions 8.4% 

Funding Proposal 5.6% 

Quality 65% 

Design and Masterplanning 19.5% 

Masterplan 17.3% 

Environment and 
Sustainability 

2.2% 

Deliverability 15.2% 

Programme 8.7% 

Planning Strategy 3.2% 

Skills and Capabilities 3.2% 

Management 8.7% Operational Plan 8.7% 

Partnership Arrangements 8.7% Partnership Approach 8.7% 

Legal 8.7% Legal 8.7% 

Smart Cities 2.2% Smart Cities 2.2% 

Social Value 2.2% Social Value 2.2% 

 100%  100%  100% 

 

6. Governance 
 

6.1. Phases 1 and 2 of the project have identified the scope of the project, and tested 
the viability, market interest and routes to market respectively.  As the project 
moves into Phase 3 and engages with the market it is important that the project 
is structured to enable timely decision making and oversight by Members with 
designated responsibility for the project. A sponsoring group approach and 
structure has been successfully implemented on previous Council projects, such 
as the Forum, to enable responsive and agile decision making in response to 
negotiations with the market outside the usual Cabinet cycle, where necessary. 
The group, which will include the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Culture, 
Tourism and the Economy together with senior officers, is considered to be an 
appropriate governance approach to achieve the level of oversight and 
responsiveness required to progress the project. Terms of reference will be 

110



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 11 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

established for the group. The outcome of the procurement process will be 
presented to Cabinet for formal approval of the preferred project partner(s). 
 

6.2. There are a number of existing delegated authorities in place to facilitate the 
project’s progression. Following the senior management restructure autumn 2016 
the project structure the Senior Responsible Officer and Project Sponsors have 
changed. It is therefore necessary to update the delegations to reflect the 
changed structure as well as to put additional delegations in place to progress 
through the procurement phase. 

 
7. Planning 
 
7.1. At Cabinet in September 2016 Members resolved to submit an outline planning 

application based on the site set out in the report (item 6 of minute 261 refers).  
Since that time discussion has continued with relevant landowners and as a 
result some adjustments of the site boundary prior to planning are required. 
Following discussion with various landowners and refinement of the scheme, the 
site, as shown in the draft site boundary plan Appendix 1, is considered to be an 
appropriate site. This includes the following main areas of land: 
- The Short Street Public Car Park.  
- The temporary Essex Street Car Park. 
- The residential tower blocks known as Chiltern, Pennine, Malvern and 

Quantock and the surrounding land. 
- The properties to the north of Southchurch Road and east of Chichester 

Road. 

 

7.2. At the same Cabinet, item 4 agreed the project “should include the demolition of 
the towers”. This will be set out in the procurement documentation as a minimum 
requirement of the scheme. 

 
7.3. There are no specific policies referring to the heights of buildings within the 

Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) to establish maximum heights for 
the new accommodation and that Queensway is not identified as being a site for 
a landmark building. Modelling has shown that a scheme with buildings at 12 
storeys could be possible with the heights being reduced across the site to 
enable particular buildings to be features or focal points and also to enable the 
height of the buildings to be lowered to reduce the ‘step’ to neighbouring 
buildings. This is based on the provision of 1255 dwellings which is comparable 
to, the indicative target of 1200 dwellings that is set out within policy PA4 of the 
Southend Central Area Action Plan for the site. Delivery of at least 1200 
residential units on site the scheme will positively contribute towards Southend’s 
housing targets and meet demand from the market. It is considered that the total 
number of dwellings on the site should be led by the market and finalised through 
competitive dialogue. 
 

7.4. The viability of the scheme will be influenced by a number of factors including 
parking provision. A reduced level of parking in a location such as Queensway 
can improve viability of the scheme. It is considered that the Council proceed 
with the preparation of the procurement documentation on the basis of a Council 
preference for 1:1 residential parking.  
 

111



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 12 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

7.5. The Queensway regeneration must also deliver sustainable urban drainage 
system (SUDS) measures in line with planning requirements. Drainage needs to 
be designed to cope with water from the development, water from areas outside 
the development and to ensure that water from the development does not simply 
move surface water into another area. 
 

7.6. Given this relationship between water management in and around Queensway 
with the wider area it would be prudent to take the opportunity offered by the 
project, and the SUDS works required to support it, to include additional 
measures which align with the studies and work underway to the benefit of 
central area. The scale and cost of these additional works will be disaggregated 
from those specific to the Queensway development so that the project considers 
only the direct costs and that the Council funds the additional works separately. 

 
7.7. Achieving a high standard of development has been a consistent ambition for the 

project, particularly the residential accommodation. A design code is being 
developed in order to ensure quality is placed at the forefront of the scheme 
development process. A design code is a form of planning guidance which seeks 
to achieve high quality, well designed places in a transparent, streamlined and 
collaborative way and which is tailored to reflect local needs and circumstances.  
 

7.8. The Better Queensway design code currently under development will be 
structured to cover: 
 

1 Introduction Status and how to use code 

2 Design Objectives: 
Better Housing,  
Better Living;  
Better Place 

- Connectivity/Permeability 
- Safety/Security  
- Health 
- Economic vitality 
- Sustainability 

3 Part A: Standards - Space Standards, Amenity Space 
requirements Housing Mix, Car Parking Ratios 
etc. 

- Performance requirements: Energy, SUDS, 
Recycling 

- Community Facilities: Play Areas, MUGA 
- Smart Tech Standards 
 

4 Part B: Built Form - Residential Building Typologies: Apartments, 
Town Houses, Terraced Houses 

- Other Uses (Commercial) 
- Public Realm 
- Route Typologies: Vehicular Access, 

Pedestrian Links 
 

 
8. Housing 
 
8.1. Residential accommodation will represent the majority of the buildings on the 

Queensway site. The re-provision of housing for existing tenants together with 
the introduction of additional homes which will meet market demand while 
contributing towards delivery against the Council’s housing targets and which 

112



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 13 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

reinforce the town centre through additional footfall and activity is complex, but a 
vital aspect of the project. 
 

8.2. The Council has undertaken work with its advisors using a number of models for 
assessing the likely viability of the project.  This, together with soft market testing, 
has led to the conclusion that the market should be allowed to make proposals 
for the total number of homes to be delivered on the Queensway site as part of 
competitive dialogue. This will form part of the overall proposal for Better 
Queensway in which tenderers must demonstrate that they can meet the 
Council’s requirements for viability and quality.  To specify a target number of 
homes would have the effect of constraining tenderers’ room to exercise 
innovation and maximise viability. 

 
8.3. Any proposal must obtain planning consent on the basis of the appropriate 

policies, including the Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP).  The overall 
number of units to be delivered will be one of the many aspects of the scheme to 
be scrutinised in this light. The planning consent process will allow the Council to 
ensure that only a proposal which is appropriate and in line with Council policy 
progresses. 

 

8.4. The Council needs to at least maintain, if not increase, the number of affordable 
homes on the site. There are currently 441 flats within the Queensway area.  In 
order to ensure that there are sufficient homes for current Queensway tenants 
who wish to return to the regenerated scheme and an appropriate stock of new 
homes for local people on low incomes to which the Council will have nomination 
rights for those who the Council has a legal duty to house the market will be 
required to provide a minimum of 441 affordable homes. 
 

8.5. Soft market testing has shown that bidders are likely to propose a range of total 
numbers of residential units on Better Queensway. The Council’s policy 
aspiration, set out in the Development Management Policy (Council DPD2 Policy 
DM7) is that at least 30% of all units across the development should be 
affordable. The Council’s minimum of 441 affordable homes will meet or exceed 
this proportion until the total number of units grows beyond 1,466. 
 

8.6. The market may yield proposals which meet the Council’s aspirations for viability 
and quality which exceed this total number of units and this will be subject to the 
normal planning procedure, which allows the Council to ensure appropriate 
standards are met. 

 

8.7. Soft market testing has shown that the greatest benefits will be delivered by 
allowing the market to propose the mix of housing in terms of the number of 
bedrooms as they will need to demonstrate that their proposed scheme is viable. 

 
8.8. Development Management Policy (Council DPD2 Policy DM7) sets out the 

Council’s aspiration for residential accommodation, as a result of which the 
planning process will ensure that any development is appropriate.  
 

Tenure 1 Bedroom 2 Bedrooms 3 Bedrooms 4 Bedrooms 

Market 9% 22% 49% 20% 

Affordable 16% 43% 37% 4% 

113



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 14 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

This has been taken into account in the viability testing. 
 

8.9. The Government’s Technical Housing Standards – nationally described space 
standard - deals with internal space within new dwellings for application across 
all tenures. It sets out requirements for the Gross Internal (floor) Area of new 
dwellings at a defined level of occupancy as well as floor areas and dimensions 
for key parts of the home, notably bedrooms, storage and floor to ceiling height.  

 
8.10. The Local Lettings and Decant Policies, which are also being considered by this 

Cabinet, are relevant to the Better Queensway project. The former is specific to 
Queensway while the latter is a borough-wide policy. They set out the legal terms 
and conditions relating to the resident moves required to enable the Queensway 
project to progress.  
 

8.11. As part of the scheme, a Residents’ Offer document which will embody relevant 
aspects of these policies is under development and will be communicated to all 
current residents. 

 

8.12. The Council has stated its intention that existing Council tenants will be offered a 
new tenancy at the same rent levels and other terms and conditions as their 
existing tenancy. Offering secure tenancies (current council tenancy) to tenants 
returning to Queensway would: 

 Rule out the partnership arrangement as an ownership/management 
vehicle as secure tenancies can only be offered by the Council. 

 Limit future opportunity to shape policy in relation to the stock in order to 
meet local housing need. 

 Limit options for rent levels and flexibility of management of stock. 
 

8.13. In exploring an alternative, the two key elements in a tenancy offer to existing 
council tenants are: 

 that any existing secure tenants who wish to continue to live on the Better 
Queensway scheme are given the opportunity to do so (albeit under a new 
form of tenancy). 

 that any existing secure tenants who wish to remain as secure tenants are 
given the opportunity, if available, to take up a secure tenancy elsewhere in 
the Borough. 

 
8.14. An Assured Tenancy offers a viable alternative under which the Council can offer 

all the elements required to replicate key existing terms and conditions but can 
be delivered through the partnership. 
 

8.15. Secure tenants currently have the option of utilising the ‘Right To Buy’ scheme to 
purchase their properties. The new ‘Assured Tenancy’ arrangement would fall 
outside the statutory scheme however can be included as a term within an 
assured tenancy offered to returning tenants. 
 

8.16. The September 2016 Cabinet report showed three example variations of 
partnership approaches, each involving varying levels of Council involvement in 
the funding, development and operation of elements of the site. A further review 
of these, together with feedback from the market, has concluded that the 
Council’s financial position does not support self-development of the affordable 

114



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 15 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

units due to limitations in the Council’s borrowing headroom in the Housing 
Revenue Account and that a holistic approach to the scheme where the 
partnership develops and manages all residential units on the site will deliver a 
more effective long term solution. A partnership which provides the delivery and 
management approach for all units (affordable, private, commercial and 
community) is therefore the most beneficial approach. 
 

8.17. Management of the rented properties on the Better Queensway scheme, 
including private, affordable and commercial stock, will require a management 
partner or partners to manage these properties. There will potentially be a 
number of different approaches to delivering the management of rented 
properties, ranging from having a single management agent for both private and 
affordable stock, to having separate arrangements for each type of property.  As 
part of the procurement process and documentation the Council should ensure 
that: 

 it does not pre determine the management approach for each type of rented 

property as this could limit the interest from the market. 

 it does not pre determine the management partner which helps deliver each 

type of property to avoid any risk of procurement challenge. 

 the market proposes different approaches to managing the types of properties 

to drive innovation in service delivery. 

8.18. South Essex Homes (SEH), as the Council’s Arm’s Length Management 
Organisation (ALMO), currently manages the Queensway residences. On the 
basis that the management partner is not pre-determined in the procurement 
documentation, SEH would need to participate in the procurement process to 
undertake this role for the new scheme. The Council has been working with SEH 
to develop and market their wider property services capabilities (such as 
Facilities Management services, cleaning, security) which could give them the 
potential to respond the opportunity. 
 

8.19. The Management Agreement between the Council and SEH runs until 31 March 
2019 and sets out the working arrangements between the two bodies and has 
been reviewed by legal advisors in the context of this approach. The 
Management Agreement does not prohibit this approach. Subject to Cabinet 
approval discussion, in line with the agreement, will follow between the Council 
and SEH and be reflected accordingly in the procurement documentation. 
 

9. Transport 
 
9.1. Further refinement to the road alignment and modelling has been undertaken 

with consideration given to other network improvements, including Variable 
Message Signs (VMS) signage, which will have an impact on traffic flows through 
Queensway, connectivity to the seafront and visitor parking, east–west and 
north-south traffic movements, minimising impact on surrounding streets and the 
quality of the public realm so as to increase permeability. 

9.2. The draft transport layout in Appendix 2 (SBCC10384-126-SBC-QW-P-0101A-
A1) is proposed as the traffic layout for the site and includes the following key 
features: 

115



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 16 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

o Removal of all roundabout slip roads except north bound off slip from 
Queensway to Southchurch Road. 

o Realignment of the underpass, reducing the width to a wide single 
carriageway (accomplished by the construction of a box culvert), thus 
enabling the covering of up to150m for public realm/landscaping. 

o Adjustments to surrounding road network to take account of above, 
including modifications to:  
 The southern end of Sutton Road and closure of Lancaster Gardens 

into and out of Southchurch Road to install new traffic signalised 
junction.  

 New signalised junction at Sutton Road/Southchurch Road through 
development.  

 Realigned one-way link between Southchurch Road and Sutton Road.  
 Reconfigured Southchurch Road and widened Chichester Road (high 

quality public realm design standards to allow pedestrian permeability 
including crossings dependent upon final masterplan desire lines).  

 Reconfigured Chichester Road/Short Street junction to allow additional 
traffic movements in and out of Short Street. 

o New access arrangements for Warrior Square and Tylers Ave/York Road 
car parks to permit access/egress onto Queensway. 

o Further localised adjustments to the highway adjacent to the site for traffic 
management purposes, e.g. relocated bus stops, cycle route modifications, 
speed limits. 

o Further network management modifications to promote walking, cycling, 
signage to car parks, and general direction/tourist signage to better improve 
the connectivity of the site to the town centre. 

 
10. Land 
 
10.1. The Council is not the land owner for the whole of the Queensway site and in 

September 2016 Cabinet resolved that “the use of the Council’s Compulsory 
Purchase Powers continue to be investigated and that the preparatory work be 
undertaken for the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order, which will be 
subject to a formal resolution of the Cabinet in the future.” (Item 3 of minute 261 
refers). Work has been undertaken in this regard to ensure a full understanding 
of the Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) process with indicative timescales and 
implications included. However, prior to commencing CPO every attempt to 
purchase a site through direct negotiation must be made. 

 
10.2. It is good practice within regeneration schemes to own the whole site and 

through direct negotiation or CPO this can be achieved. Prior to entering into the 
partnership, the Council will seek to acquire strategically advantageous sites 
which will be considered on a case by case basis. Once in the partnership any 
compulsory site purchases will require use of the Council’s CPO powers and will 
therefore be owned by the Council but funded through the partnership. 
 

10.3. Sites may be purchased through direct negotiation with the land owner. All 
acquisitions will be subject to the valuation and compensation payable having 
been approved by the Council’s retained strategic property advisors. 
 

10.4. CPO powers must be as a last resort, where acquisitions by agreement have 
failed. Therefore prior to commencing a CPO process negotiations with 

116



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 17 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

landowners must be commenced and concluded. There are a number of holdings 
which have been identified as potentially having a strategic significance for the 
project but those sites are not likely to be required at the same time. Therefore a 
case by case basis is suggested for considering the need for purchase. 
 

10.5. Land assembly for such a regeneration project needs to be considered in relation 
to the coherence of the proposition and Council contribution to the scheme as the 
partnership is put in place, and in relation to the corresponding financial returns. 

 
11. Communication 
 
11.1. The overarching objective of the Communication Strategy is: “To keep all 

relevant stakeholders, including affected local tenants/leaseholders and 
businesses, councillors, funding partners and media engaged and informed in an 
open, honest, timely and relevant way.” 
 

11.2. Targeted engagement with local residents of the Queensway estate and 
Coleman Street has been provided through regular face to face update sessions 
and direct communications in 2016 such as letters and newsletters. A site visit to 
London with tenants, leaseholder drop in sessions, a trader’s breakfast briefing 
and a ‘Day in the Life’ resident session to inform the ‘better place’ element of the 
project have also been carried out. Resident design sessions were also held in 
December 2016 to help inform the outline planning application. All of these 
events have been well attended, with the exception of the trader session. A 
Tenant Liaison Officer has also been appointed to undertake direct 
communication with residential tenants and will be a key role as the project 
progresses through to delivery. 
 

11.3. The project has now progressed to a stage where engagement with a wider 
stakeholder base and the public would be appropriate to ensure wider awareness 
of the project and its impact, mitigating any risks associated with limiting 
consultation for a project of this significance, to solely the statutory consultations. 

 
12. Quality of Place: 
 

The Council’s ambition for Queensway is for it to be an exemplar of 
transformational town centre regeneration. The quality of the development over 
its entire lifecycle is therefore of upmost importance. There is a number of factors 
to be considered which can add value and contribute to the quality of the 
development; mitigating the  challenges faced by developments of this scale and 
nature and delivering a high quality, future-proofed, place which to the benefit of 
its residents and the wider town for decades to come. 

 
There is a number of factors to be considered which can add value and 
significantly contribute to the quality of the development. 
 

a) Energy and Environment 
 

The Council’s Low Carbon Energy and Sustainability Strategy (LCESS) sets out 
the corporate approach to energy and sustainability issues and should apply to 
Better Queensway. The delivery of the project should be consistent with the 
strategy and assist with achievement of these objectives as well as ensuring 

117



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 18 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

compliance with all planning and legal requirements relevant to such a scheme. 
However, how these are addressed, and the technology applied to do so, 
should be for the market to determine. 
 
Some of the most pertinent issues to be considered through the competitive 
dialogue should address the provision and use of sustainable energy, access to 
sufficient energy, use of green infrastructure, responding to climate change, 
electric charging points for vehicles, and the application of new technologies. In 
doing so benefits can be derived for the Queensway area in terms of site 
management, quality of accommodation and environment, energy supply and 
costs, and future-proofing.  
 

b) Smart Cities 
 

In 2015 IBI, the Councils retained urban design advisor, produced a report for the 
Council in relation to smart cities in the context of the project. They identified, via 
a multi-user stakeholder workshop, a number of opportunities where smart city 
concepts and enabling infrastructure could be applied to help deliver the ‘better 
living’ headline of the project such as: 

 Health and wellbeing 

 Mobility 

 Environmental sustainability 

 Community cohesion 

 Education and skills 

 Employment 

Designing the principle of a smart cities approach into the project from the 
outset, and future-proofing the Queensway to allow for new and emerging 
technology, would enable the community to be at the forefront of high-quality 
contemporary living, equipped to be resilient in the face of change, reduce 
costs, and maximise the benefits that the individual can derive – be that 
independent living, increased access to skills, or enhanced travel options. 

 
c) Economic Growth  

 

The Economic Impact Assessment that was undertaken for the Better 
Queensway Project in early 2015 indicated that approximately 2,500 temporary 
construction jobs would be created during the development and construction 
phases of the project. In order to deliver the wider benefits of Better Queensway 
and other regeneration projects, the Virtual Skills Academy has been established 
between the Council and local education providers as a mechanism to ensure 
that the maximum opportunity and benefits from local regeneration activities are 
accessible to local residents. The experience of other large scale regeneration 
projects indicates that an active pursuit of local skills and employment benefits 
can maximise resident benefit, increase buy-in, improve public perception and 
generate a strong legacy for the project.  

 
d) External Funding 

 
The scale of the Better Queensway regeneration project is significant and funding 
to deliver it is not yet in place. Securing funding from external sources reduces 
the commercial funding required making the project more attractive, and/or 
creating opportunities for added value and raising the profile of the project with 

118



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 19 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

Government and funders through the submission of bids. While funding for the 
project in its entirety will not be secured via grants there may be discrete 
elements which meet the requirements of different funding rounds improving the 
financial case for the project.  
 
While external funding brings investment, which would otherwise have not been 
available, it often requires local match funding of a set percentage of total cost. 
Should match funding be required, in a project of the size and scale of Better 
Queensway, it is likely to be found within the partnership. However, should the 
match funding requirements be outside the scope of the partnership these will be 
brought back to Cabinet for consideration. 

 
e) Community Cohesion 

 
One of the key objectives of the project is to maximise community cohesion. Not 
just across the site as the severance caused by the road is addressed but 
across the town centre as communities to the north of Queensway are not only 
more able to access the town centre but are encouraged to do so by walking or 
cycling through Queensway. As a result community space, provision and 
infrastructure will be vital to shape this new community and fully integrate it with 
surrounding ones. 
 
Work has been undertaken to map the community infrastructure, in all forms, 
within a short distance of the Queensway site. This has found that there are a 
range of venues which are available to be used by any number of groups 
wishing to do so. As a result the need for a more traditional community centre or 
hall on the Queensway site is negated. However, investment in existing 
community infrastructure to enhance and embed community cohesion; 
maximise accessibility, create a sense of belonging for all groups and giving 
everyone in the area equal opportunities to thrive is a key facet of the project. 
 
The creation of a community fund, into which groups can bid, would deliver 
creative and contemporary spaces for events and networks which enhance and 
support the Queensway community and draw other residents in to use and 
enjoy the space. It would encourage the community to actively participate in 
community development and enable it to be responsive to changes in 
technology, intergenerational contact, challenges faced by specific groups etc 
and therefore focus investment on a more forward-looking, inclusive and agile 
approach to community development. 
 

f) Surrounding Roads 
 
Home zoning is a living street (or group of streets) which are designed primarily 
to meet the needs of pedestrians, cyclists, children and residents and where the 
speeds and dominance of cars is reduced. Home zones can assist with a better 
balance of road space use for pedestrians and to create a high quality urban 
space. It is an excellent way to help cement community identity, generate inspire 
activity across a community. 
 
The introduction of homezone or equivalent treatment to streets outside the 
regeneration area, but in close proximity to it, would serve to integrate the 
Queensway development with surrounding streets through softening and blurring 

119



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 20 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

the edges of the site rather than the possibility of a stark contrast between the 
two. It could also create opportunities for the benefits of the development to 
radiate out from the main regeneration area. 
 

13. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

It is critical that the Council has an agreed, robust and transparent position on 
each of the matters presented in this report in order to shape the procurement 
documents and to ensure that the Council’s ambitions for the Queensway site 
are delivered through the partnership. Not reaching agreement on any of these 
matters risks delaying the procurement process or leaving the Council exposed 
in the partnership with no defined red lines or tolerances on specific matters. 

 
14. Other Options 
 
14.1. Should the requirements, parameters and processes outlined in this report not 

coalesce with Cabinet expectations these could be subject to further work and 
refinement before being brought back to a later Cabinet. This would impact on 
the procurement timescale and mean that the preferred bidder could not be 
confirmed before the end of March 2018. 
 

14.2. Cabinet considered three different funding models for the development in 
September 2016.These could be revisited to explore alternative route to the one 
set out in this report, at which point the focus of the work would need to 
immediately shift from setting out the Council’s position for the market to re-
evaluation of finical options to fund the development and its implications for 
timescales, resources, phasing and delivery. 

 
15. Corporate Implications 
 
15.1  Corporate Priorities  
 

The project has all the Council’s corporate priorities at its core. Safe through 
reconfigured transport layout improving connectivity and permeability for 
residents in and through the area. Also through improved quality of buildings, 
community space and public realm safety and security of the area will be 
significantly enhanced. Clean through the introduction of new parks and open 
spaces and adhering to the principles of the Council’s Low Energy and 
Sustainability Strategy in responding to climate change and energy generation 
opportunities. Healthy by seeking to improve the lives of existing and new 
residents through better quality accommodation and environment, including 
connectivity and transport methods. Prosperous by aiming to derive maximum 
benefits from the development of the project through skills and employment for 
local people, reinforcing the town centre with increased footfall from greater 
numbers of residents living within a short distance of it, and securing outside 
investment in the town. Excellent through delivering a high quality regeneration 
project that everyone can be proud of, which is a sought-after location to live in 
and which is recognised by Government for its innovation and impact. 

 
 
 
 

120



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 21 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

15.2 Financial Implications 
 
15.2.1 To date the Council spend on the associated costs over the last three years and 

commitments to this stage of the project have been: 
 

 
 
 

 
£000’s 

 
2014/15 
 

 
26 

 
2015/16 
 

 
345 

 
2016/17 
(up to end of Feb 2017) 
 

 
636 

 
Committed not yet 
spent  
 

 
465 

 

 
Total  

 
1,472 

 

 
15.2.2 The above sum has and is to be spent mainly on a project management team, 

external advisors, various surveys and a significant ground penetrating radar 
survey. This spend has been fully budgeted for in the Council’s capital and 
revenue budgets over the last three years along with the use of some external 
funding secured specifically for the Queensway project.  In addition, the Council 
has already approved a Capital budget of £1.4m to allow for the flexibility to 
purchase commercial and residential units to facilitate full ownership of the 
regeneration site. Therefore, in total the sum spent and committed to the project 
has been £2.872m. 

15.2.3 To enable the project to proceed to a position of selecting a preferred project 
partner(s) a further Council budget is required to meet the relevant costs over 
the financial year 2017/18. 

15.2.4 The costs that will be incurred in 2017/18 will relate to: 

 External advisors (to support the competitive dialogue process, financial 
advice and modelling, property advice and legal advice) 

 Project Management Team 
 Master planning for outline planning submission 
 Outline planning application (Surveys, fees and planning advice) 
 Tenant and Stakeholder communications 
 Traffic Modelling 
 Contingency 

15.2.5 The estimated spend on the above areas, to enable the project to reach the 
stage of the selection of a proposed partner(s) by the end of 2017/18, is 
estimated to be circa £1.25m including contingency.  Of this sum certain items 
of expenditure can be capitalised and some will need to remain to be funded 
from revenue. 

121



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 22 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

15.2.6 The estimated funding of the spend is £1m capital and £0.25m revenue. No 
current budgets exist for this proposed expenditure and therefore there will need 
to be provision for a new capital budget of £1m approved with associated 
financing costs of £70k per annum. Additionally £0.25m revenue funding will be 
required from earmarked reserves and allocated to the Queensway reserve. 

15.2.7 This will therefore bring the Councils commitment on the project to  
£4.122m by the end of 2017/18. 

15.2.8 The project will require a Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS). As set 
out in paragraph 7.6 the current designs include future proofing rather than the 
basic needs for such a regeneration scheme. A capital budget will be required 
for this overage for the Council to fund and will be calculated through the 
Competitive Dialogue process. Initial indications are that this sum could be circa 
£1m and will need to be included in the Capital Programme review for 2018/19 
budget setting.  Members are asked to note this is also likely to be required for 
highways works to be included in future capital budget rounds. 

15.2.9 The project will require relevant land acquisition, both residential and 
commercial. Any acquisitions that are not resolved by the time of partner 
contract will need to be funded through the Partnership. Those costs incurred 
before this date will require funding by the Council. Currently the Council has a 
capital budget of £0.9m for commercial acquisition and £0.5m for residential 
acquisition. These sums are likely to be insufficient over the next year or so and 
therefore further requests to Cabinet for capital funding may be required 
depending upon the position of acquisition negotiations. 
 

15.3 Legal Implications  
 

This is a complex and intricate project which has legal implications throughout 
its development, procurement, partnership and delivery. Specialist legal advice 
has been procured to ensure that the Council is compliant and protected. 

 
15.4 People Implications  
 

The project draws significantly on internal staff resource supplemented by 
procured specialist advisors. This is proposed to be amplified with the 
introduction of a sponsoring group which will include elected Members. 

 
15.5 Property Implications  
 

While much of the land and premises within the project area are owned by the 
Council it is proposed that those which are not but may be of strategic 
importance to the project are considered on a case by case basis. Specialist 
advice has been sought to develop an approach to land acquisition using all 
powers available to the Council.  
 

15.6 Consultation  
 

Resident consultation has been undertaken throughout the evolution of the 
project and will continue to be a primary activity as it continues. Engagement 
with traders has not yielded the same engagement to date but further activities 

122



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 23 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

are planned and will draw on wider resources to try to secure a response. Wider 
consultation is also underway with key stakeholders and landowners. A full 
public engagement event is recommended prior to submitting the outline 
planning application. 

 
15.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 

Ensuring equality of access to the opportunities which arise as a result of this 
regeneration will continue to be considered as the project progresses.  
 

15.8 Risk Assessment 
 

The scale of the project is such that it must be set in a wider context to fully 
comprehend its impact, opportunities and challenges. The project has been 
promoted and supported at both a sub-regional and LEP level and is of interest to 
the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA – soon to be renamed Homes 
England) and the Housing and Finance Institute. This may lead to funding 
opportunities, further profile or Government support in driving innovation in its 
delivery. Just as it is of interest outside Southend so it is also subject to market 
forces outside Southend. Increases in construction costs over the past year and 
the weakened pound, among other things, mean that the costs relating to the 
project currently look quite different to those identified when the project was first 
established. It is important to note that this will continue to be the case as the 
development takes place over the next 5-10 years. Market changes and outside 
influences may affect timings, costs and phasing so the programme will have to 
be updated on a regular basis. 
 
There is a risk register specifically for the project which has been developed 
through cross-organisational consultation, is owned by the Project Office and 
the respective workstreams, and is reviewed on a regular basis by the Project 
Board. 

 
The most significant risks relevant to this report: 

 are not establishing the Council’s position and parameters prior to 
procurement could leave it open to challenge and deviation. 

 too extensive a list of requirements and restrictive tolerances, or 
competition with other regeneration schemes nationally result in a minimal 
response from the market. 

 external factors and their implications for costs, timing and market 
response 

 planning blight in regards to land acquisition. This has been reviewed and 
considered not to be a material risk 

 that the Council’s aspirations are not viable resulting in a limited or nil 
response from the market. Actions taken to address this include: financial 
viability modelling of an indicative scheme by the specialist advisors, 
informing the approach to competitive dialogue to ensure that there is 
scope for discussion where appropriate and ensuring only costs which 
relate to the project are reflected in the approach. 

 the partnership will be required to deliver the highway works against a 
detailed design which the Council has completed for all elements except 
the box culvert and as such all design risk remains the Council’s.  

123



Report Title: Better Queensway: Process to appoint a 
preferred project partner 

 

Page 24 of 24 Report Number: 17/036 

 

However, for the box culvert, the partnership undertakes the detailed 
design risk and works thus it takes the risk. 

 not progressing a scheme on the site, leading to continued quality, access 
and housing pressures. 

 
15.9 Value for Money  
 

By undertaking a fully competitive procurement process and ensuring the right 
evaluation scoring criteria within the procurement exercise this should establish 
VFM for the Council. 

 
15.10 Community Safety Implications  
 

As the tower blocks and the surrounding area have been subject to some anti-
social behaviour in the past it will be an important objective for the project to 
reduce such instances through the regeneration proposals. It will be essential to 
work closely with the Police to achieve secured by design principles. In addition 
work has been completed to install security doors to the tower blocks and Victoria 
neighbourhood patrols continue. 

 
Investigation work has been carried out with the local community and third sector 
partners to investigate what investment in community facilities may be needed on 
and around the Better Queensway Estate. 

 
15.11 Environmental Impact 
 

A development of this scale and nature will have a significant impact on the 
local environment. In this instance the project seeks to improve the 
environmental impact through the introduction of measures, technology and 
future-proofing capability which respond to climate change, water drainage and 
management, sustainable transport and energy generation as well as the 
introduction of more green space. 

 
16.  Background Papers 
 

Better Queensway Cabinet Report 20th September 2016 – item 261 
 
17.  Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft Site Boundary Plan  
 
Appendix 2 – Proposed transport layout (SBCC10384-126-SBC-QW-P-
0101A-A1) 
 

124



125



This page is intentionally left blank



SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

SP

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

SP

SP

Stump

SP

SEP

SEPSEP

Col.

SEP

SEP

SEP

SEP

SEP

SEP

SEP

SEP

L.Plane

Sp:12.00

Di:0.40

Ht:12.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.50

Di:0.45

Ht:12.00

Unknown

Sp:3.00

Di:0.05

Ht:4.50

L.Plane

Sp:14.00

Di:0.45

Ht:12.00

Ash

Sp:6.50

Di:0.30

Ht:5.00

Unknown

Sp:6.00

Di:0.30

Ht:6.00

Holly

Sp:5.00

Di:0.20

Ht:4.50

Holly

Sp:4.00

Di:0.15

Ht:4.50

Unknown

Sp:7.00

Di:0.30

Ht:3.50

Ash

Sp:15.00

Di:1.10

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:4.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.50

Unknown

Sp:4.00

Di:0.30

Ht:4.50

Acer

Sp:4.00

Di:0.15

Ht:5.00

Holly

Sp:5.50

Di:0.25

Ht:6.00

Holly

Sp:7.00

Di:0.30

Ht:6.00

L.Plane

Sp:5.50

Di:0.15

Ht:6.00

Unknown

Sp:7.00

Di:0.20

Ht:3.00

Unknown

Sp:8.00

Di:1.00

Ht:4.00

Unknown

Sp:6.00

Di:0.30

Ht:10.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.45

Ht:12.00

L.Plane

Sp:5.00

Di:0.70

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:4.50

Di:0.70

Ht:8.00

Acer

Sp:14.00

Di:0.60

Ht:13.00

Acer

Sp:4.00

Di:0.25

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:4.00

Di:0.30

Ht:4.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.50

Di:1.10

Ht:15.00

Ash

Sp:6.50

Di:0.40

Ht:7.00

Ash

Sp:5.00

Di:0.30

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:6.00

Di:0.50

Ht:4.00

Acer

Sp:7.50

Di:0.50

Ht:13.00

Acer

Sp:11.00

Di:0.95

Ht:13.00

H.Chestnut

Sp:11.50

Di:0.60

Ht:12.00

H.Chestnut

Sp:11.50

Di:0.70

Ht:12.00

L.Plane

Sp:3.50

Di:0.10

Ht:4.50

Unknown

Sp:3.50

Di:0.10

Ht:4.50

L.Plane

Sp:17.00

Di:1.00

Ht:15.00

L.Plane

Sp:16.00

Di:0.90

Ht:13.00

L.Plane

Sp:14.00

Di:0.75

Ht:12.00

H.Chestnut

Sp:6.00

Di:0.50

Ht:8.00

S.Birch

Sp:2.00

Di:0.05

Ht:4.00

Ash

Sp:8.00

Di:0.35

Ht:13.00

Unknown

Sp:5.00

Di:0.20

Ht:4.00

Acer

Sp:12.00

Di:0.40

Ht:13.00

Ash

Sp:12.00

Di:0.30

Ht:12.00

Unknown

Sp:3.00

Di:0.05

Ht:4.00

L.Plane

Sp:10.50

Di:0.35

Ht:8.00

Acer

Sp:10.00

Di:1.00

Ht:10.00

L.Plane

Sp:15.00

Di:0.90

Ht:13.00

Acer

Sp:7.50

Di:0.35

Ht:12.00

L.Plane

Sp:14.50

Di:0.90

Ht:15.00

Ash

Sp:7.50

Di:0.35

Ht:8.00

Ash

Sp:2.00

Di:0.05

Ht:3.50

L.Plane

Sp:16.00

Di:1.00

Ht:15.00

L.Plane

Sp:17.50

Di:0.80

Ht:15.00

L.Plane

Sp:9.00

Di:0.40

Ht:12.00

L.Plane

Sp:14.50

Di:0.90

Ht:15.00

L.Plane

Sp:17.00

Di:1.00

Ht:15.00

Unknown

Sp:4.50

Di:0.15

Ht:5.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.00

Di:0.75

Ht:12.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.00

Di:1.00

Ht:12.00

Unknown

Sp:4.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Unknown

Sp:4.00

Di:0.10

Ht:5.00

Unknown

Sp:4.00

Di:0.10

Ht:5.00

G

20.947

TC

21.284

TC

21.519

LP

G

20.392

G

20.348

LP

TC

21.005

G

20.966

TC

21.263

TC

21.421

SV

21.476

FH

21.497

G

21.504

TC

21.794

G

21.522

WC

22.123

LP

TC

22.265

TC

22.304

G

22.062

WC

22.382

LP

WC

22.367

WC

22.331

WC

22.311

WC

22.439

EC

22.503

G

22.660

G

22.670

G

22.241

G

21.986

TC

21.890

TC

21.881 SV

21.772

G

21.547

WC

21.584

LP

WC

21.478

WC

21.949

WC

21.927

WC

21.960

WC

21.979

WC

21.933

WC

21.941

WC

22.008

WC

22.003

G

22.229

WC

22.163

WC

22.105

LP

G

22.186

AV

22.354

LP

G

22.185

G

22.062

G

22.092

G

22.186

LP

G

21.977

G

23.339

G

21.944

LP

G

23.135

G

21.856

TC

22.136

LP

SV

22.011

G

22.664

G

21.806

G

22.642

G

21.815

G

21.962

AV

22.149

G

21.973

G

21.805

G

21.832

AV

21.905

SV

21.959

SV

21.982

FH

21.965

WC

22.126

WC

22.012

G

21.847

G

22.026

LP

G

21.032

LP

G

22.045

G

22.423

WC

22.708

G

20.151

KO

20.163

G

22.460

G

22.725

G

23.095

LP

G

23.192

G

19.024

KO

19.065

G

22.918

G

23.588

G

23.599

G

17.962

LP

AV

23.734

G

23.945

KO

18.002

LP

G

23.819

G

23.904

G

23.985

LP

RWP

G

23.985

G

24.009

G

24.039

G

24.211

G

24.283

G

23.782

WC

23.832

WC

23.819

LP

G

23.725

G

23.970

G

23.968

FH

23.808

G

24.435

G

24.358

G

24.290

LP

G

24.349

G

24.064

G

24.155

G

24.063

TC

24.058

LP

TC

24.532

SV

24.636

WO

24.667

SV

24.688

G

24.509

G

24.677

G

24.519

G

24.713

TC

24.905

SV

25.002

FH

25.136

SV

25.149

LP

G

24.752

TC

25.062

G

24.716

KO

19.056

G

24.676

KO

20.206

LP

G

20.407

G

24.747

G

21.496

KO

21.382

G

24.716

LP

G

24.794

LP

LP

KO

22.546

G

24.884

ER

25.601

WC

25.618

FH

25.645

WC

25.643

SV

25.646

FH

25.656

TC

25.661

ER

25.661

G

22.650

G

24.900

G

25.010

LP

G

24.080

G

23.664

G

24.960

LP

TC

25.349

LP

G

25.088

TC

25.309

G

25.112

G

25.099

G

24.597

G

24.788

G

25.052

G

24.896

LP

ER

25.648

TC

25.589

TC

25.585

G

25.016

G

25.053

G

24.967

LP

G

24.895

G

25.011

LP

SV

25.548

SV

25.553

G

25.314

G

24.927

LP

TC

24.426

G

24.429

RWP

TC

24.326

G

24.117

LP

G

24.088

TC

24.310

WC

24.378

TC

24.412

WC

24.595

TC

24.543

SV

24.349

G

23.876

WC

24.076

WC

24.094

G

23.974

TC

24.231TC

24.211

LP

TC

24.197

EC

24.289

TC

24.299

WC

24.244

TC

24.309

WC

24.289

WC

24.226

WC

24.284

TC

24.291

TC

24.298

TC

24.253

G

24.081

EC

24.151

EC

24.141

WC

24.118

WC

24.106

FH

24.326

EC

24.423

TC

24.415

TC

24.467

TC

24.487

WC

24.479

LP

WC

24.511

TC

24.493

TC

24.316

G

24.197

G

24.173

TC

24.417

RWP

G

24.079

G

24.152

WC

24.326

TC

24.221

G

24.094

LP

EC

24.168

TC

23.988

ER

25.044

TC

24.687

G

24.494

G

24.445

LP

G

19.149

G

24.641

TC

24.213

G

24.102

LP

TC

24.345

WC

24.346

RWP

TC

24.370

TC

24.375

G

24.195

TC

24.333

WC

24.341

RWP

TC

24.364

G

24.235

G

24.253

LP

EC

24.398

WC

24.362

SV

24.384

G

24.329

TC

24.457

TC

24.463

G

24.448

TC

24.404

SV

24.473

SV

24.480

SV

24.440

WC

24.336

EC

24.298

TC

24.365

EC

24.408

LP

G

24.282

TC

24.370

WC(x11)

24.361(Av.)

WC

24.451

WC

24.432

WC

24.550

WC

24.565

WC

24.680

WC

24.731

WC

24.729

TC

24.749

WC

24.748

LP

WC

24.699

G

24.651

TC

24.742

TC

24.698

WC

24.785

TC

24.987

TC

24.828

TC

24.882

TC

24.954

WC

25.115

TC

25.157

WC

25.170

WC

25.188

WC

25.206

WC

25.242

EC

25.415

EC

25.391

EC

25.345

KO

25.235

WC

25.454

WC

25.416

EC

25.461

TC

25.482

G

25.406

WC

25.373

WC

25.532

EC

25.632

EC

25.450

WO

25.435

KO

25.337

WC

25.534

SV

25.385

TC

25.406

WC

25.308

TC

25.216

LP

TC

25.146

TC

25.104

TC

25.040

WC

25.043

G

24.792

G

24.857

WC

24.882

TC

24.831

G

25.562

EC

25.735

TC

25.733

TC

25.712

EC

25.690

TC

25.638

TC

25.643

EC

25.622

EC

25.504

G

25.547

TC

25.866

TC

25.872

WC

25.837

WC

25.820

TC

25.852

WC

26.049

WC

26.060

WC

26.065

WC

26.063

WC

26.058

G

25.979

G

24.292

G

24.244

WC

24.876

EC

25.583

TC

25.639

EC

25.660

TC

25.678

TC

25.705

TC

25.770

TC

25.689

G

25.386

G

25.458

LP

TC

25.779

TC

25.780

TC

25.755

TC

25.768

LP

SV

25.628

WC

25.625

WC

25.636

SV

25.635

TC

25.746

TC

25.756

TC

25.756

G

25.387

TC

25.758

G

25.442

TC

25.727

SV

25.627

SV

25.709

FH

25.688

AV

25.678

SV

25.697

SV

25.676

WO

25.642

SV

25.646

SV

25.775

TC

25.752

WC

25.585

SV

25.734

FH

25.618

SV

25.569

TC

25.786

G

25.538

G

25.503

ER

25.609

ER

25.732

SV

25.736

ER

25.829

TC

25.834

G

25.654

G

25.769

SV

25.788

G

25.318

LP

LP

G

24.866

G

24.956

LP

LP

KO

25.117

SV

25.527

LP

SV

25.568

SV

25.590

WO

25.583

ER

25.643

TC

25.646

LP

TC

25.772

KO

25.323

LP

G

25.700

LP

TC

25.661

TC

25.581

G

25.432

LP

LP

FH

25.619

WC

25.742

TC

25.730

TC

25.400

G

25.566

G

25.535

LP

LP

TC

25.869

TC

25.895

G

25.726

KO

25.726

G

25.654

TC

25.811

ER

25.871

G

25.698

KO

25.732

G

25.746

KO

26.365

G

26.443

G

26.053

G

26.096

G

26.221

LP

G

26.456

LP

G

26.240

G

26.008

G

25.903

G

25.898

G

25.910

G

25.853

G

25.844

LP

TC

26.019

WC

26.257

TC

26.244

G

26.170

LP

WC

26.568

FH

26.512

FH

26.274

G

26.286

TC

26.672

G

26.549

SV

26.667

LP

G

26.625

G

25.523

TC

25.822

G

25.686

LP

G

25.510

LP

TC

25.794

G

25.281

FH

25.436

G

25.081

LP

G

24.771

LP

G

24.812

TC

21.987

LP

LP

G

24.338

TC

25.623

STN V

X:588561.365

Y:185678.110

Z:22.150

STN W

X:588590.331

Y:185690.936

Z:21.901

STN P

X:588545.141

Y:185796.948

Z:22.445

STN N

X:588647.567

Y:185875.589

Z:23.837

STN S

X:588575.969

Y:185863.058

Z:24.024

STN B

X:588595.097

Y:185886.313

Z:23.945

STN C

X:588543.724

Y:185895.327

Z:23.092

STN O

X:588576.049

Y:185927.042

Z:24.530

STN Q

X:588513.459

Y:185903.580

Z:24.526

STN U

X:588521.025

Y:185944.305

Z:25.049

STN M

X:588632.731

Y:185978.866

Z:25.063

STN L

X:588614.063

Y:186053.121

Z:25.537

STN K

X:588569.892

Y:186046.951

Z:25.607

STN A

X:588513.922

Y:185875.411

Z:24.341

STN D

X:588453.988

Y:185875.167

Z:24.339

STN D1

X:588436.352

Y:185910.363

Z:24.753

STN T

X:588467.110

Y:185981.812

Z:25.552

STN J

X:588477.916

Y:186046.106

Z:25.578

STN E

X:588381.159

Y:185849.949

Z:24.442

STN G1

X:588368.135

Y:185917.471

Z:25.146

STN I

X:588382.436

Y:186021.742

Z:25.676

STN R

X:588353.113

Y:186009.628

Z:25.257

STN H4

X:588339.141

Y:185981.856

Z:25.170

STN G2

X:588321.105

Y:185936.695

Z:25.437

STN G

X:588300.063

Y:185899.427

Z:25.558

STN F

X:588291.744

Y:185840.913

Z:25.654

STN H3

X:588290.787

Y:185951.764

Z:25.760

STN H

X:588278.633

Y:185992.017

Z:25.864

STN H1

X:588273.479

Y:186023.445

Z:25.548

STN H2

X:588213.847

Y:186003.602

Z:26.516

GV

26.302

GV

25.760

GV

25.518

GV

25.668

GV

25.716

GV

25.643

GV

25.812

GV

25.630

GV

25.371

GV

25.119

GV

25.267

GV

25.037

GV

24.815

GV

24.706

GV

24.480

GV

24.659

GV

24.292

GV

24.197

GV

24.334

GV

24.280

GV

24.303

GV

24.293

GV

24.293

GV

24.396

GV

24.286

GV

24.469

GV

24.443

GV

24.418

GV

24.393

GV

24.280

GV

24.302

GV

24.325

GV

24.261

GV

24.384

GV

24.451

GV

24.367

CV

CL:21.096

MH

CL:22.285

MH

CL:22.094

MH

CL:22.160

MH

CL:22.091

CV

CL:21.694

CV

CL:21.733

MH

CL:21.607

MH

CL:21.583

MH

CL:22.348

MH

CL:23.451

CV

CL:23.484

CV

CL:23.424

MH

CL:22.080

CV

CL:22.333

MH

CL:21.943

CV

CL:22.079

MH

CL:22.054

CV

CL:22.205

MH

CL:21.999

CV

CL:22.107

MH

CL:21.980

MH

CL:21.664

CV

CL:22.736

CV

CL:22.756

CV

CL:22.750

CV

CL:22.764

CV

CL:22.997

CV

CL:23.186

CV

CL:23.339

CV

CL:23.356

MH

CL:18.909

MH

CL:23.512

CV

CL:23.762

MH

CL:24.077

MH

CL:24.128

CV

CL:24.046

CV

CL:24.043

CV

CL:24.027

CV

CL:24.141

MH

CL:24.066

MH

CL:23.882

MH

CL:24.222

MH

CL:24.345

MH

CL:24.224

CV

CL:24.358

IC

CL:24.423

CV

CL:24.415

CV

CL:24.413

CV

CL:24.416

CV

CL:24.557

IC

CL:24.404

CV

CL:24.273

IC

CL:24.448

CV

CL:24.540

CV

CL:24.507

CV

CL:24.223

CV

CL:24.181

CV

CL:24.072

MH

CL:24.033

CV

CL:24.321

CV

CL:24.326

CV

CL:24.310

MH

CL:24.344

MH

CL:24.312

CV

CL:24.247

CV

CL:24.592

CV

CL:24.592

MH

CL:24.646

CV

CL:24.685

CV

CL:24.631

MH

CL:18.640

MH

CL:18.734

CV

CL:24.897

MH

CL:24.788

MH

CL:24.871

CV

CL:24.979

MH

CL:25.023

MH

CL:24.938

CV

CL:24.855

CV

CL:24.584

MH

CL:24.482

MH

CL:24.397

MH

CL:24.374

MH

CL:24.584

CV

CL:24.557

MH

CL:24.783

MH

CL:24.809

MH

CL:24.829

CV

CL:25.106

MH

CL:21.652

CV

CL:25.584

MH

CL:25.096

MH

CL:25.116

CV

CL:25.305

CV

CL:25.289

CV

CL:25.424

MH

CL:24.578

MH

CL:24.255

MH

CL:25.390

CV

CL:25.203

CV

CL:25.206

MH

CL:25.062

MH

CL:25.090

MH

CL:25.182

MH

CL:25.702

CV

CL:25.658

MH

CL:25.662

CV

CL:25.627

CV

CL:25.724

CV

CL:25.362

CV

CL:25.039

MH

CL:25.159

MH

CL:25.506

MH

CL:25.542

MH

CL:25.518

CV

CL:25.239

CV

CL:25.408

MH

CL:25.176

MH

CL:24.934

CV

CL:25.744

CV

CL:25.742

CV

CL:25.701

CV

CL:25.853

CV

CL:25.955

CV

CL:25.864

CV

CL:25.811

MH

CL:25.808

CV

CL:25.734

CV

CL:25.976

CV

CL:25.638

CV

CL:25.606

MH

CL:25.542

MH

CL:25.649

CV

CL:25.669

CV

CL:25.461

CV

CL:25.564

CV

CL:25.566

MH

CL:25.632

RE

25.623

CV

CL:25.598

CV

CL:25.624

CV

CL:25.772

MH

CL:25.639

MH

CL:25.599

MH

CL:25.603

MH

CL:25.649

CV

CL:25.691

CV

CL:25.757

CV

CL:25.913

CV

CL:25.901

CV

CL:25.928

CV

CL:25.937

CV

CL:25.704

CV

CL:25.896

CV

CL:25.735

CV

CL:25.857

IC

CL:25.665

CV

CL:25.889

CV

CL:25.871

CV

CL:25.808

CV

CL:25.737

CV

CL:25.750

CV

CL:25.815

CV

CL:25.602

CV

CL:25.691

CV

CL:25.830

CV

CL:25.621

MH

CL:25.639

CV

CL:25.668

CV

CL:25.675

MH

CL:25.670

CV

CL:25.828

CV

CL:25.599

CV

CL:25.834

CV

CL:25.709

CV

CL:25.785

CV

CL:25.754

MH

CL:25.546

CV

CL:25.623

CV

CL:25.697

CV

CL:24.318

MH

CL:24.401

MH

CL:24.458

MH

CL:24.458

CV

CL:24.398

MH

CL:24.378

CV

CL:24.403

CV

CL:24.670

CV

CL:24.865

CV

CL:25.149

MH

CL:25.847

CV

CL:25.767

MH

CL:25.651

CV

CL:25.786

MH

CL:25.629

MH

CL:25.608

MH

CL:25.560

CV

CL:25.390

MH

CL:25.615

CV

CL:25.758

CV

CL:25.774

MH

CL:25.188

CV

CL:25.410

CV

CL:25.583

CV

CL:25.667

CV

CL:25.461

CV

CL:25.371

CV

CL:24.129

CV

CL:26.059

MH

CL:25.703

MH

CL:25.702

MH

CL:25.700

MH

CL:25.699

MH

CL:25.783

CV

CL:25.917

CV

CL:26.264

CV

CL:26.337

MH

CL:26.429

CV

CL:26.286

CV

CL:26.423

MH

CL:26.382

MH

CL:26.033

MH

CL:26.121

MH

CL:26.113

CV

CL:26.053

MH

CL:26.044

MH

CL:25.983

CV

CL:26.309

IC

CL:26.585

CV

CL:26.077

CV

CL:25.970

CV

CL:25.861

CV

CL:25.864

CV

CL:25.834

CV

CL:26.506

MH

CL:26.293

CV

CL:26.496

MH

CL:26.416

CV

CL:26.725

CV

CL:26.557

MH

CL:26.524

CV

CL:26.782

MH

CL:26.618

MH

CL:26.496

CV

CL:26.581

MH

CL:26.630

MH

CL:24.134

MH

CL:24.107

GV

25.672

GV

25.821

Unknown

Sp:4.50

Di:0.05

Ht:3.50

SP

SP

SP

SP

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

SP

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

BD

SN

LP

LP

TP

SN

SN

SN

BD

BD

LP

PT

PT

PT

PT

PT

SN

SN

SN

PT

PT

PT

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

TP

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

PT's

BD

BD

LP

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

LP

SN

BD

BD

PT

LP

LP

LP

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

LP

LP

PT

PT

PT

PT

BD

SVP

SVP

SVP

LP

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

LP

LP

MP

MP

MP

SVP

SVP

SP

SP

Unknown

Sp:8.00

Di:0.25

Ht:8.00

Willow

Sp:5.00

Di:0.30

Ht:4.00

Willow

Sp:6.00

Di:0.70

Ht:6.00

Unknown

Sp:8.00

Di:0.30

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.00

Di:0.80

Ht:15.00

Unknown

Sp:12.00

Di:0.80

Ht:15.00

Unknown

Sp:13.00

Di:0.40

Ht:8.00

Unknown

Sp:11.50

Di:0.35

Ht:8.00

Unknown

Sp:10.50

Di:0.20

Ht:6.00

Unknown

Sp:9.00

Di:0.15

Ht:4.00

Unknown

Sp:9.00

Di:0.15

Ht:4.00

Unknown

Sp:9.00

Di:0.15

Ht:4.00

Unknown

Sp:9.00

Di:0.15

Ht:4.00

Willow

Sp:6.00

Di:0.25

Ht:5.00

L.Plane

Sp:15.00

Di:0.70

Ht:15.00

TC

25.576

G

25.277

FH

25.552

WC

25.530

WC

24.627

TC

24.866

TC

24.812

TC

24.760

TC

24.588

TC

24.521

TC

24.930

TC

25.537

TC

25.542

TC

25.433

TC

25.469

TC

25.463

TC

25.741

TC

25.733

GV

24.655

ER

25.513

ER

25.551

ER

25.563

ER

25.605

ER

25.556

ER

25.545

ER

25.505

G

24.742

G

24.765

G

24.593

G

24.642

G

24.472

G

24.444

G

24.422

G

24.436

G

24.485

G

24.773

G

24.779

G

25.266

G

25.367

G

25.349

G

25.427

G

25.340

CV

CL:24.876

CV

CL:24.820

CV

CL:24.769

CV

CL:24.712

CV

CL:24.671

CV

CL:24.668

CV

CL:25.187

CV

CL:25.194

CV

CL:25.081

CV

CL:25.315

CV

CL:24.469

CV

CL:24.495

CV

CL:24.501

CV

CL:25.402

CV

CL:24.917

CV

CL:24.882

CV

CL:25.620

CV

CL:25.645

CV

CL:25.666

CV

CL:25.611

CV

CL:25.556

CV

CL:25.584

CV

CL:25.396

CV

CL:25.441

CV

CL:25.464

CV

CL:25.663

CV

CL:25.673

CV

CL:25.636

CV

CL:25.526

CV

CL:25.675

CV

CL:25.629

CV

CL:25.591

CV

CL:25.667

CV

CL:25.649

CV

CL:25.618

BD

Entrance

24.633

Doorway

THL:24.59

Doorway

THL:24.70

Doorway

THL:24.70

Entrance

24.593

Doorway

THL:24.59

Doorway

THL:24.32

Doorway

THL:24.34

Doorway

THL:24.17

Doorway

THL:24.57

Doorway

THL:24.54

Doorway

THL:24.41

Doorway

THL:24.40

Doorway

THL:24.39

Doorway

THL:24.39

Doorway

THL:24.47

Doorway

THL:24.45

Doorway

THL:24.70

Doorway

THL:24.78

Doorway

THL:24.79

Doorway

THL:24.74

Doorway

THL:24.74

Entrance

24.791

Doorway

THL:25.10

Doorway

THL:25.22

Doorway

THL:25.35

Entrance

25.386

Doorway

THL:25.59

Doorway

THL:25.56

Doorway

THL:26.99

Doorway

THL:26.39

Doorway

THL:26.17

Doorway

THL:25.81

Doorway

THL:25.75

Doorway

THL:25.91

Doorway

THL:25.78

Doorway

THL:25.81

Doorway

THL:25.81

Doorway

THL:25.79

Doorway

THL:25.78

Doorway

THL:25.77

Doorway

THL:25.76

Doorway

THL:25.81

Doorway

THL:26.05

Doorway

THL:25.88

Entrance

25.79

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

TCB

SP

SP

SP

SP

BN

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

TB

TB

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

1.2CBF CEP

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

SP

Col.

Col.

Col.

SN

PT

PT

SN

SN

BD

SEP

SEP

BD

BD

BD

BD

TFL

SN

TFL

BD

SEP

BD

SEP

SN

SN

BD

BD

BD

SEP

SEP

SEP

PT

PT

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

BD

BD

BD

BD

SN

BD

BD

SN

SN

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

SEP

SEP

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BN

BD

BD

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

TFL

TFL

SN

SEP

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

SN

TFL

TB

TFL

TFL

TB

TFL

SN

TB

TB

SN

SN

SN

BD

SN

SN

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

SN

Sensor

BN

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

SN

SN

SN

PT

Sensor

SN

SN

Sensor

BD

BD

BD

BD

BN

BN

BN

BN

BN

SN

BD

Entrance

24.42

Doorway

THL:25.54

Doorway

THL:25.29

Entrance

25.219

Entrance

THL:25.15

Doorway

THL:25.21

Doorway

THL:25.79

Doorway

THL:24.80

Doorway

THL:24.69

Doorway

THL:24.80

Doorway

THL:24.60

Doorway

THL:24.50

Doorway

THL:24.38

Entrance

24.33

Doorway

THL:24.37

Entrance

24.27

Doorway

THL:24.40

Doorway

THL:24.41

Entrance

24.37

Entrance

24.40

Doorway

THL:25.17

Entrance

THL:24.87

Entrance

24.40

Entrance

24.24

Entrance

24.32

Entrance

24.44

Entrance

24.23

Doorway

THL:24.45

Prunus

Sp:4.00

Di:0.15

Ht:4.00

Lime

Sp:10.00

Di:0.60

Ht:8.00

Cypress

Sp:6.00

Di:0.40

Ht:8.00

Cypress

Sp:6.00

Di:0.40

Ht:8.00

Cypress

Sp:6.00

Di:0.40

Ht:8.00

Ash

Sp:10.00

Di:0.60

Ht:10.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.00

Di:0.80

Ht:12.00

Sapling

Sp:3.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Sapling

Sp:3.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Sapling

Sp:3.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Sapling

Sp:3.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Sapling

Sp:3.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Fruit

Sp:7.00

Di:0.30

Ht:6.00

Sapling

Sp:4.00

Di:0.10

Ht:5.00

Sapling

Sp:4.00

Di:0.10

Ht:5.00

Sapling

Sp:3.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

S.Birch

Sp:8.00

Di:0.60

Ht:7.00

Poplar

Sp:4.00

Di:0.70

Ht:10.00

Beech

Sp:9.00

Di:0.50

Ht:8.00

Sapling

Sp:2.00

Di:0.10

Ht:4.00

Ash

Sp:8.00

Di:0.40

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:4.00

Di:0.15

Ht:5.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:9.00

L.Plane

Sp:9.00

Di:0.78

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:9.00

Di:0.78

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:9.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.40

Ht:8.00

Acer

Sp:10.00

Di:0.50

Ht:9.00

Prunus

Sp:6.00

Di:0.20

Ht:5.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:9.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.50

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.40

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.50

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.40

Ht:7.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:9.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.50

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:7.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:9.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:9.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:7.00

Prunus

Sp:5.00

Di:0.15

Ht:5.00

Prunus

Sp:8.00

Di:0.20

Ht:5.00

Prunus

Sp:8.00

Di:0.20

Ht:5.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.60

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.60

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:12.00

Di:0.80

Ht:10.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.60

Ht:8.00

L.Plane

Sp:8.00

Di:0.60

Ht:8.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:7.00

Di:0.25

Ht:7.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:8.00

Acer

Sp:8.00

Di:0.70

Ht:8.00

WC

22.780

WC

22.751

WC

22.879

WC

22.870

WC

22.834

WC

22.857

WC

22.329

WC

23.136

WC

23.162

WC

23.585

WC

23.632

WC

23.664

WC

23.631

WC

23.655

WC

23.629

WC

24.584

WC

24.744

WC

24.690

WC

24.735

WC

24.729

WC

24.773

WC

24.810

WC

24.892

WC

24.949

WC

25.049

WC

25.132

WC

25.146

WC

25.199

WC

25.301

WC

25.366

WC

25.418

WC

25.391

WC

25.379

WC

25.303

WC

25.305

WC

25.302

WC

25.605

WC

25.599

WC

25.616

WC

25.705

WC

25.707

WC

25.714

WC

25.801

WC

25.844

WC

25.798

WC

25.810

WC

25.883

WC

25.930

WC

25.921

WC

25.906

WC

25.978

WC

26.058

WC

26.065

WC

26.077

WC

26.071

WC

26.009

WC

25.952

WC

25.867

WC

25.640

WC

25.583

WC

25.563WC

25.548

WC

25.607

WC

25.607

WC

25.631

WC

25.600

WC

25.628

WC

25.612

WC

25.605WC

25.611

WC

25.628

WC

25.591

WC

25.619

WC

25.619

WC

25.619WC

25.606

WC

25.604

WC

25.608

WC

25.668

WC

25.605

WC

25.598

WC

25.537

WC

25.638

WC

25.581

WC

25.581

WC

25.587

WC

25.548

WC

25.568

WC

25.636

WC

25.620

WC

25.643

WC

25.613

WC

25.628

WC

25.652

WC

25.664

WC

25.662

WC

25.331

WC

25.320

WC

24.990

WC

25.022

WC

24.969 WC

24.977

WC

24.979

WC

24.977

WC

24.995

WC

24.965

WC

24.945

WC

24.944

WC

24.983

WC

25.480

TC

22.512

TC

22.680

TC

22.387

TC

22.852

TC

22.922

TC

22.941

TC

23.261

TC

23.278

TC

23.348

TC

23.369

TC

23.476

TC

22.557

TC

22.957

TC

23.356

TC

23.820

TC

23.754

TC

23.931

TC

23.954

TC

24.432

TP

TC

24.506

TC

24.896

TC

24.705

TC

24.886

TC

24.896

TC

24.940

TC

24.936

TC

25.003

TC

25.016

TC

24.810

TC

24.935

TC

24.951

TC

25.118

TC

24.975

TC

24.929

TC

24.979

TC

25.111

TC

25.001

TC

25.063

TC

25.091

TC

25.174

TP

TC

25.223

TC

25.367

TC

25.364

TC

25.321

TC

25.334

TC

25.394

TC

25.398

TC

25.513

TC

25.519

TC

25.540

TC

25.542

TC

25.796

TC

25.856

TC

25.946

TC

25.962

TC

25.996

TC

25.604

TC

25.546

TC

25.597

TC

25.611

TC

25.635

TC

25.614

TC

25.528

TC

25.608

TC

25.679

TP

TC

25.651

TC

25.575

TC

25.571

TC

25.576

TC

25.554

TC

25.558

TC

25.572

TP

TC

25.603

TC

25.608

TC

25.560

TC

25.626

TP

TC

25.556

TC

25.489

TC

25.491

TP

TC

25.615

TC

25.576

TC

25.556

TC

25.374

TC

25.658

TC

25.531

TC

24.963

TC

24.943

GV

22.831

GV

22.981

GV

22.359

GV

23.719

GV

23.756

GV

23.996

GV

24.699

GV

24.686

GV

24.735

GV

24.930

GV

25.130

GV

25.009

GV

25.333

GV

25.356

GV

25.821

GV

25.859

GV

25.943

GV

26.008

GV

25.980

GV

25.941

GV

25.568

GV

25.598

GV

25.574

GV

25.556

ER

23.274

EC

23.412

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

ER

23.422

ER

23.369

ER

23.508

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

ER

25.351

ER

25.341

ER

25.404

LP

LP

LP

LP

ER

25.405

LP

LP

LP

ER

25.566

ER

25.584

LP

ER

25.469

ER

25.518

LP

ER

25.549

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

ER

25.683

ER

25.602

ER

25.673

ER

25.691

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

EC

25.564

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

ER

25.356

LP

ER

25.626

G

22.338

G

22.434

G

23.108

G

22.859

G

23.035

G

23.659

G

23.515

G

24.022

G

24.375

G

24.664

G

24.493

G

24.784

G

24.888

G

25.074

G

25.330

G

25.377

G

25.359

G

25.379

G

25.326

G

25.370

G

25.589

SVP

G

25.598

SVP

G

25.355

G

25.357

G

25.374

G

25.374

G

25.492

G

25.636

RWP

RWP

RWP

SVP

SVP

SVP

G

26.008

G

25.397

G

25.548

G

25.484

G

25.433

G

25.366

G

25.361

G

25.376

G

25.490

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

G

25.491

G

25.340

G

25.512

G

25.615

G

25.611

SVP

G

25.570

G

25.588

SVP

G

25.596

SVP

G

25.585

G

25.623

SVP

SVP

G

25.599

G

25.581

SVP

G

25.567

SVP

G

25.593

G

25.631

SVP

SVP

G

25.607

G

25.562

SVP

G

25.568

G

25.643

RWP

SVP

RWP

RWP

G

25.615

RWP

G

25.595 G

25.595

RWP

RWP

G

25.593

G

25.603

RWP

G

25.594

SVP

G

25.618

G

25.591

RWP

RWP

G

25.578

G

25.545

G

25.597

G

25.262

SVP

SVP

G

25.218

G

25.205

G

25.397

SVP

G

25.393

SVP

G

25.381

SVP

G

25.366

G

25.479

G

25.456

G

25.466

G

25.102

G

25.313

G

25.388

G

25.500

G

25.369

G

25.392

G

25.469

G

25.513

SVP

RWP

SVP

G

25.222

G

25.348

MH

CL:25.541

MH

CL:25.645

MH

CL:25.633

MH

CL:25.621

IC

CL:25.567

IC

CL:25.575

IC

CL:25.559

MH

CL:25.481

MH

CL:25.472

CV

CL:25.737

MH

CL:25.722

MH

CL:25.647

CV

CL:25.707

CV

CL:25.686

CV

CL:25.625

CV

CL:25.695

CV

CL:25.734

CV

CL:25.658

CV

CL:25.646

CV

CL:25.664

MH

CL:25.619

CV

CL:25.710

CV

CL:25.669

CV

CL:25.731

CV

CL:25.657

CV

CL:25.650

MH

CL:25.635

MH

CL:25.625

CV

CL:25.995

CV

CL:25.931

MH

CL:25.657

MH

CL:25.547

MH

CL:25.405

MH

CL:25.400

MH

CL:25.324

CV

CL:25.441

CV

CL:25.626

CV

CL:25.621

MH

CL:25.604

MH

CL:25.481

CV

CL:25.458

CV

CL:25.658

CV

CL:25.532

MH

CL:25.516

MH

CL:25.617

MH

CL:25.546

MH

CL:22.623

MH

CL:23.065

CV

CL:22.895

CV

CL:23.342

MH

CL:23.537

MH

CL:23.591

MH

CL:23.597

CV

CL:23.277

CV

CL:23.704

CV

CL:23.613

CV

CL:23.625

MH

CL:23.925

MH

CL:23.946

MH

CL:23.869

CV

CL:24.001

CV

CL:23.896

CV

CL:23.967

CV

CL:23.958

CV

CL:23.779

MH

CL:23.578

MH

CL:23.874

CV

CL:23.804

MH

CL:24.460

MH

CL:24.718

IC

CL:24.961

CV

CL:24.934

CV

CL:24.918

CV

CL:24.901

CV

CL:24.920

CV

CL:24.951

CV

CL:24.957

CV

CL:25.011

CV

CL:25.006

IC

CL:25.139

MH

CL:25.109

CV

CL:25.615

CV

CL:25.662

CV

CL:25.609

CV

CL:25.672

MH

CL:25.604

MH

CL:25.458

MH

CL:25.605

IC

CL:25.412

CV

CL:25.406

CV

CL:25.388

CV

CL:25.470

MH

CL:25.376

MH

CL:25.369

IC

CL:25.495

CV

CL:25.443

CV

CL:25.440

MH

CL:25.421

CV

CL:25.467

CV

CL:25.420

CV

CL:25.439

CV

CL:25.379

CV

CL:25.407

MH

CL:25.401

MH

CL:25.335

IC

CL:25.519

IC

CL:25.523

MH

CL:25.580

MH

CL:25.596

MH

CL:25.563

MH

CL:25.566

MH

CL:25.628

MH

CL:25.563

MH

CL:25.548

MH

CL:25.628

MH

CL:25.606

MH

CL:25.459

IC

CL:25.480

CV

CL:25.507

CV

CL:25.478

CV

CL:25.494

MH

CL:25.062

CV

CL:25.411

MH

CL:25.392

CV

CL:25.710

Doorway

THL:25.96

Entrance

25.88

Doorway

THL:26.07

Doorway

THL:26.12

Doorway

THL:26.06

Doorway

THL:26.24

Doorway

THL:26.25

Doorway

THL:26.23

Doorway

THL:26.26

Doorway

THL:26.40

Doorway

THL:26.39

Entrance

26.00

Shop

Awning

Bush

Sp:4.00

Ht:4.00

Bush

Sp:4.00

Ht:4.00

Bush

Sp:4.00

Ht:4.00

Bush

Sp:4.00

Ht:4.00

Bush

Sp:4.00

Ht:4.00

Bush

Sp:4.00

Ht:4.00

Doorway

THL:23.08

Entrance

22.72

Entrance

22.72

Entrance

22.74

Doorway

THL:22.72

Doorway

THL:22.80

Doorway

THL:22.73

Doorway

THL:23.08

Doorway

THL:22.88

CV

CL:25.640

Doorway

THL:24.71

G

24.802

G

24.621

ER

25.607

ER

25.629

CV

CL:25.686

MH

CL:25.464

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

ER

25.370

TB

Doorway

THL:24.59

L.Plane

Sp:15.00

Di:1.00

Ht:15.00

WC

25.672

TC

25.838

CV

CL:25.841

CV

CL:25.794

GV

25.755

CV

CL:25.721

GV

25.737

TC

25.747

CV

CL:25.719

G

25.403

Doorway

THL:25.108

20.808

20.554

19.448

19.744

19.600

20.270

20.158

19.176

19.179

19.153

19.185

19.187

20.695

20.654

20.138

20.047

19.540

19.536

19.206

19.181

19.163

19.165

19.153

19.163

19.166

19.163

19.167

19.161

24.082

21.512

21.385

21.473

22.744

22.712

22.755

22.515

22.355

21.998

Tarmac

21.700

21.692

2

1

.

6

9

2

23.013

2

1

.

2

3

0

21.226

22.524

22.484

22.715

22.472

21.901

21.574

21.388

21.780

22.659

22.736

2

2

.8

4

3

22.837

22.343

22.318

21.975

21.967

21.721

21.474

21.474

21.688

21.398

2

1

.

2

1

9

21.256

2

1

.

2

7

3

2

1

.

5

1

2

2
1
.
7
0
5

21.876

21.965

2

1

.
6

9

2

2

1

.
6

8

6

2

1

.
6

8

7

2
1
.
6
8
7

22.589

22.680

23.251

23.470

22.577

20.911

23.040

23.107

23.069

Tarmac

21.471

21.015

21.390

22.158

21.733

21.356

20.973

20.896

21.564

21.910

21.910

21.506

21.131

21.023

21.254

21.954

22.220

22.073

21.140

2

1

.

1

2

4

2

1

.

0

0

0

2

1

.

0

0

4

2

1

.

0

0

2

21.570

21.576

21.232

21.264

22.055 22.064

2

1

.

0

0

5

2

1

.

0

0

2

2

1

.0

7

3

2

1

.
1

8

2

2

1

.
2

9

5

21.124

21.056

21.471

21.187

21.905

21.8

98

21.9

02

21.905 21.240

21.521

21.213

2

1

.

2

1

6

21.433

21.511

2

1

.

2

8

7

22.111

21.557

22.134

22.234

22.305

22.574

22.157

22.145

22.569

21.537

2

1

.

2

8

1

2

2

.9

0

7

2

2

.9

1

5

21.559

22.052

22.899

22.093

22.874

2
2
.
8
7
1

2

1

.

2

8

1

21.577

2

1

.

2

7

2

23.060

23.048

23.077

23.077

23.000

21.234

21.225

21.169

21.155

21.225

21.240

2

1

.

2

4

6

2

1

.
3

5

2

2

1

.
3

5

0

2

1

.
3

5

5

2

1

.

4

0

7

2

1

.

4

0

7

2
1

.
3

9
7

21.135

20.895

2

0

.
8

8

4

20.867

21.345

21.339

21.711

21.714

22.150

22.112

20.898

21.166

21.196

21.45321.456

22.049

22.055

21.372

2

1

.
4

0

7

2

1

.
4

0

7

CV

CL:21.712

Paving

Slabs

Steps

Up

Steps

Up

Drainage

Channel

Ramp

Up

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Low Concrete

Wall & Metal

Railings

Paving

Slabs

Wall Ht.

21.29

Wall Ht.

21.32

Wall Ht.

21.35

Wall Ht.

21.37

Wall Ht.

21.36

Wall Ht.

21.36

CV

CL:20.894

CV

CL:20.905

CV

CL:22.791

G

22.745

G

22.735

Paving

Slabs

CV

CL:21.633

Paving

Slabs

CV

CL:21.014

CV

CL:21.578

Paving

Slabs

CV

CL:21.024

CV

CL:19.176

Paving

Slabs

CV

CL:19.199

Concrete

Bridge Wall &

Metal Railings

Concrete

Bridge Wall &

Metal Railings

Small Trees &

Dense Shrubs

Small Trees &

Dense Shrubs

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Low Concrete

Wall & Metal

Railings

Drainage

Channel

20.908

2

2

.
6

4

6

22.648

21.681

Paving

Slabs

Paving

Slabs

Drainage

Channel

Steps

Up

Ramp

Up

Ramp

Up

20.998

Wall Ht.

21.28

Wall Ht.

21.28

Wall Ht.

21.30

Wall Ht.

21.29

Wall Ht.

21.27

Wall Ht.

21.26

Low Concrete

Wall & Metal

Railings

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Low Concrete

Wall & Metal

Railings

Small Trees &

Dense Shrubs

Small Trees &

Dense Shrubs

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Brick

Retaining

Wall

Low Brick

Wall & Metal

Railings

Steps

Up

Steps

Up

Paving

Slabs

2

1

.

2

9

2

Steps

Up

Drainage

Channel

Ramp

Up

Ramp

Up

Paving

Slabs

Paving

Slabs

Drainage

Channel

Steps

Up

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Steps

Up

Steps

Up

1

7

.

2

0

9

1

7

.

4

1

2

1

7

.

2

9

8

17.060

17.215

1

7

.

4

5

2

1

7

.

6

2

5

17.404

17.628

1

7

.

4

4

1

17.199

17.397

1

7

.

6

2

6

1

7

.

0

8

4

1

7

.

2

3

8

1

7

.

3

1

9

1

7

.

2

8

6

1

7

.

4

4

9

1

7

.

5

0

3

1

7

.

6

4

3

1

7

.

4

9

7

1

7

.

3

1

4

1

7

.

4

7

8

1

7

.

1

6

2

1

7

.

3

2

1

1

7

.
1

6

2

1

7

.
0

1

1

1

6

.

9

1

9

1

6

.

8

5

3

1

6

.

8

1

1

1

6

.

8

4

9

1

6

.

9

1

8

1

7

.
2

6

3

17.042

1

7

.
1

5

5

16.941

16.845

1

7

.

0

9

5

1

7

.

0

7

8

16.815

1

7

.

0

9

3

16.850

1

7

.

1

5

8

16.924

1

6

.
9

7

8

1

6

.
8

7

7

16.935

17.051

17.215

1

7

.
4

5

3

1

7

.
2

9

8

1

7

.
1

9

0

1

7

.

1

2

4

16.860

1

7

.

0

8

0

16.823

1

7

.

0

9

9

16.864

16.933

1

7

.

1

6

1

1

7

.

2

6

5

17.036

1

6

.

8

0

2

1

6

.

7

7

1

1

6

.

7

9

4

1

6

.

9

8

8

1

7

.

1

6

1

1

7

.

1

4

3

1

7

.

0

3

8

1

6

.

9

8

2

1

6

.

8

5

0

1

6

.

7

8

7

1

6

.

6

7

8

1

6

.

7

6

4

1

6

.

6

4

7

1

6

.

7

8

9

1

6

.

6

8

7

1

6

.
8

7

8

1

6

.

7

6

1

1

6

.
9

6

4

1

6

.
8

4

7

1

7

.
3

2

5

1

7

.
1

8

2

1

7

.
0

3

9

1

7

.
1

7

3

1

7

.
0

4

1

1

6

.
8

7

8

1

7

.

0

5

8

1

6

.
9

4

9

1

6

.

7

8

2

1

6

.

9

9

5

1

6

.

8

8

2

1

6

.

7

1

9

1

6

.

9

5

2

1

6

.

6

8

4

1

6

.

9

6

8

1

6

.

7

1

7

1

7

.

0

3

8

1

6

.

7

9

4

1

7

.

1

4

7

1

7

.

0

7

7

1

6

.

9

0

4

1

7

.

0

4

1

1

7

.

0

2

5

1

7

.

1

8

9

1

6

.

9

7

2

1

7

.

1

0

7

1

6

.

9

4

2

1

6

.

9

5

1

1

6

.

9

5

6

1

7

.

1

0

6

1

7

.
0

1

6

1

7

.
1

6

5

1

7

.
1

3

4

1

7

.
2

8

3

MH

CL:17.532

KO

17.677

MH

CL:17.330

G

17.231

G

16.892

G

16.687

G

16.648

G

16.697

G

16.663

MH

CL:16.830

MH

CL:16.899

MH

CL:17.079

G

16.821

MH

CL:17.000

KO

16.936

G

16.947

KO

17.174

KO

17.022

KO

16.708

G

16.712

MH

CL:16.808

G

16.694

KO

16.684

KO

16.942

MH

CL:16.926

G

16.774

KO

16.770

KO

16.908

G

16.911

Crash

Barrier

Crash

Barrier

1

6

.

9

4

7

1

6

.

8

8

0

1

6

.

8

5

1

Crash

Barrier

Crash

Barrier

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Drainage

Channel

Brick

Retaining

Wall

C

L

O

S

E

C

R

7

8

5

6

Henley

3

4

1

2

2

2

1

0

8

4

7

6

3

0

SL

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

E

l
 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

W

a

r
d

 
B

d

y

R

e

f
e

r
 
t
o

 
I
n

s

e

t
 
A

Q

u

e

e

n

s

w

a

y

Q

u

e

e

n

s

w

a

y

Southchurch Road

S

u

t

t

o

n

 

R

o

a

d

Bascombe Road

C

o
le

m

a
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

B
1
0
1
5
 
S

u
t
t
o
n
 
R

o
a
d

D

e
e
p
in

g

C

h

i
c

h

e

s

t
e

r
 
R

o

a

d

G

u
il
d
fo

r
d
 R

o
a
d

S
h
o
r
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

M

i
l
t
o
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

G

u
il
d
fo

r
d
 R

o
a
d

W

a
r
r
i
o
r
 
S

q
u
a
r
e

W

h

i
t
e

g

a

t
e

 
R

o

a

d

L

a

n

c

a

s

t

e

r

 

G

a

r

d

e

n

s

T

y
r
r
e

l
 
D

r
i
v
e

Wimborne Road

W

a
r
r
io

r
 
S

q
u
a
r
e
 
N

o
r
t
h

P

O

R

T

L

A

N

D

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

Posts

3

5

1

H

E

Y

G

A

T

E

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

8

6

7

7

9

1

A
v
e
n
u
e

2

6

7

9

8

0

9

0

14.0m

T
O

L
E

D
O

 
R

O
A

D

Q

U

E

E

N

S

W

A

Y

H
O

R
A

C
E

 
R

O
A

D

9
1

1

5

1
0
6

Queensway

Lodge

1

 
t
o

 
9

S
M

18.9m

Q

u

e

e

n

s

w

a

y

© 

SBC OS Note V1 edited by 'ait' Rev: OS1-012013

Southend-on-Sea

Borough Council

Department

for Place

PO Box 5560, Civic Centre

Victoria Avenue, Southend on Sea,

SS2 6ZQ

SBC A1 Titlebox edited by PWM Rev: A1-112013

Queensway Regeneration

Queensway

General Arrangement

1:1000

C.STYLES

CDS
12/01/17

Revisions

Rev Details Auth Date

A

Original Issue

D

R

A

F

T

Inset A

127

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of The Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright and database Crown copyright and database rights 2013. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecutions or civil proceedings. Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Licence number 100019680

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Drawing Status

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Drawing Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Designed by

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
  /   /

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Tender

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Preliminary

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
  /   /

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
As Constructed

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Issued

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Scales @ A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Quality Project No. :

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Project Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
SBCC10384-126-SBC-QW-P-0101A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Revocation of Pier cycling byelaw 
 

Page 1 of 3 Report No: 17/038 

 

 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 
 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 

to 

Cabinet  

on 

28 March 2017 

 
Report prepared by Scott Dolling, Director for Culture, 

Tourism and Property 

 
Revocation of Pier cycling byelaw 

 

Place Scrutiny Committee 
Executive Councillor: Councillor Ann Holland 

Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)  

 

 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To consider whether there is a need to revoke byelaw 18 of the Council byelaws 
regulating and governing the riding or use of bicycles or other wheeled vehicles 
on Southend Pier (“byelaw 18”) (Appendix 1). 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 Authorisation be given to prepare all necessary draft orders, to undertake 
consultation and to seek the confirmation of the Secretary of State for the 
Department of Communities and Local Government where required to 
enable members to decide whether or not to revoke byelaw 18.  

 
3. Background 

 
3.1 Southend Pier is operated by the Council and is subject to byelaws regulating 

and governing Southend Pier dated the 28th April 1892. 
 
3.2  Byelaw 18 restricts the use of bicycles or other wheeled vehicles on the Pier. 
 
3.3 At the time of the byelaw being established there was open public access to the 

Pier and as such control of such vehicles would have required byelaws to 
enforce control. 

 
3.4 With the pier entry gates and arrangements now in place, control of access by 

such vehicles can be completely managed by the Council without the need for 
the byelaw. 

 
3.5  Authorised users of bicycles on the Pier such as the RNLI who have been 

allowed use to attend emergencies are technically in breach of the byelaw. This 
has not caused any difficulty but demonstrates the current byelaw anachronism. 

 

Agenda 
Item No. 

 
 

 

129

8



 

Revocation of Pier cycling byelaw 
 

Page 2 of 3 Report No: 17/038 

 

3.6  Transport options are also hampered as a result of this bylaw. During 2016 the 
Pier trains were unable to operate and restrictive byelaws prevented some 
options from being considered. Future commercial opportunities on the Pier 
involving wheeled transport is also expanded by removing the byelaw. 

 
3.7 The objective of revoking byelaw 18 is to permit in certain cases cycles or other 

wheeled vehicles on the Pier such as cycles used by R.N.L.I as above, 
Rickshaws and other conveyances so authorised. Such user is currently in 
breach of byelaw 18 and cannot be achieved short of revoking the byelaw. It is 
not considered the impact of revoking byelaw 18 will affect the regulation and 
governance of the Pier or the enjoyment of the Pier by visitors or occupiers. The 
regulation and governance of the above is more easily controlled by the Council 
as set out in clause 3.4 

4. Other Options 

4.1 Amending the bylaws would require involvement with DCLG. The controls 
provided as a result of this byelaw are able to be managed independently as 
stated in this report. 

 
Leaving the byelaws in place results in restrictive practices and places RNLI in 
breach if using cycles to attend emergency call-outs. 

5. Reason for Recommendation 

5.1 The byelaws are obsolete and unnecessary and the provisions within them can 
now be managed by the Pier’s entry arrangements separately. 

6. Corporate Implications 

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities  
 
 Safe – the RNLI attending call-outs without breaking bylaws would be removed 
 Prosperous – the ability to set up rickshaw trading will improve the visitor offer 

and provide potential new income 
 
6.2 Financial Implications  
 
 There are no financial implications for the council 
 
6.3 Legal Implications 
  
 As described above 

 
6.4 People Implications  
 
 No people implications  
 
6.5 Property Implications 
 
 No property implications  
 
6.6 Consultation 
 

The proposed revocation will need to be publicised for minimum 28 days. 

130



 

Revocation of Pier cycling byelaw 
 

Page 3 of 3 Report No: 17/038 

 

 
6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications 
 
 None.  
 
6.8 Risk Assessment 
 

N/A 
 
6.9 Value for Money 
 
 N/A 
 
6.10 Community Safety Implications 
 
 RNLI access to the pier head by bicycle currently breaks the byelaws. 
 
6.11 Environmental Impact 
 

 Cycling used as part of the visitor offer / safety regime may reduce use of the 
train in certain circumstances. 

 
7. Background Papers 
 

None 
 
8. Appendices 
 
 Appendix 1 shows the historic byelaw   
 

131



This page is intentionally left blank



133



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday 23rd January 2017
	5 Monthly Performance Report (MPR)
	6 North Thames Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG)
	Appendix 1 - Draft Partnership Agreement

	7 Better Queensway: Process to appoint a preferred project partner
	Appendix 1 - Draft Site Boundary Plan
	Appendix 2 - Proposed Transport Layout SBCC10384-126-SBC-QW-P-0101A-A1
	Sheets and Views
	A1



	8 Revocation of Pier Cycling Byelaw
	Appendix 1


